pISSN: 2220-7562 eISSN: 2617-9482 CODEN: JBUMB7 Recognized by HEC

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Volume 13 Issue 2, April - June 2023



Bahria University Health Sciences Campus Karachi Adjacent PNS SHIFA, DHA Phase II, Karachi

JBUMDC
Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College
Peer Reviewed Multidisciplinary Quarterly Published Journal
ISSN (print): 2220-7562, ISSN (online): 2617-9482, CODEN: JBUMB7
Recognized by HEC
Online edition is available at URL: https://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk,
Indexed with Index Medicus for the Eastern Mediterranean Region (IMEMR),
https://vlibrary.emro.who.int/journals/jbumdc-journal-of-bahria-university-medical-and-detal-college/
ROAD Directory of Open Access Scholarly Resources at https://portal.issn.org/resource/ISSN/2617-9482
Pakmedinet at www.pakmedinet.com/jbumdc,
Google Scholar at https://scholar.google.com.pk/,
Crossref at https://doi.org/10.51985/aluu2996
ICMJE at https://www.icmje.org/journals-following-the-icmje-recommendations/#J
Bahira University DSpace Repository at http://111.68.99.22:8080/xmlui/handle/123456789/6388,
Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Center (PASTIC) at http://pastic.gov.pk/

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College is an open access journal and is licensed under CC BY-NC 4.0. which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

To view a copy of this license, visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0



Correspondence Address:

Editor, JBUMDC, Bahria University Medical & Dental College, Adjacent PNS SHIFA,

DHA Phase II, Karachi Pakistan

L +92-21-35319491-9

https//jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk

🧟 editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

https://www.facebook.com/jbumdc/, https://www.facebook.com/journal.bumdc.7

Published by: Bahria University Medical & Dental College



JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College Recognized by HEC

Patron-in-Chief Vice Admiral (R) Asif Khaliq HI(M) Rector Bahria University Patron Vice Admiral (R) Ather Mukhtar HI(M) Director General BUHSCK

Editor-in-Chief Ambreen Usmani **Editor** Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala Managing Editor Ammara Hameed

Associate Editors Shakeel Ahmed Shama Asghar Saman Hakeem Khalid Aziz Assistant Editors Ali Akber Aftab Samia G. Muhammad Khadija Farrukh Saima Mazhar Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Nadia Khalid

Members - National

Asad Javaid (BMUH) Farzeen S. Waseem (DIKIOHS) Hina Zafar Raja (CMH Lahore) Hussain Mehdi (JMDC) Jodat Askari (LCMD) M Pervaiz Sandela (LCMD) M Sameer Qureshi (DUHS) M.Khuwaja Hammaduddin (DIKIOHS) Nighat Huda (LNH) Rashina Hoshang Sukia (AKUH) Rozina Nazir (FUCD) Rubina Ghani (JMDC) Salman Matiullah (JMDC) Syed Yawar Ali Abdi (SIOHS) Talib Hussain (WMDC) Tanveer Jilani (AKUH) Tayyaba Saleem (IMDC) Zeba Ahmed (DUHS) Zeba Haque (DUHS)

Members - International

Bugra Ozen (Turkey) Ghulam Mustafa Surti (USA) Gökmen ÖzcgriraN (Turkey) Mukhtiar Baig (KSA) Reem M. N. Alariqi (China) Shazia Iqbal (KSA) Zarrin Seema Siddiqui (Veitnam)

Technical Assistant Mirza Hassan Ahmed

Plagiarism Check Ghulam Ashdar **Statistician** Muhammad Faisal Fahim

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College Volume-13, Issue-2. April - June 2023

CONTENTS

Editorial	
Ethical Aspects of Studying Anatomy by Cadaveric Dissection Quratulain Javaid	75
Original Articles	
Estimation of Oxidant and Antioxidant Levels in Hemodialysis Treated end Stage Renal Disease Patients and Comparison with Normal Population Sadia Rehman, Santosh Kumar, Om Lal, Suniya Rehman, Hasan Ali, Fatima Rehman	77
Efficacy of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin in Children Presenting with Hepatitis C at Tertiary Care Hospital, Faisalabad Naginal Shahzadi, Naureen Kanwal Satti, Huma Arshad, Nadeem Hashmat	82
Acanthosis Nigricans in Adolescents versus Adults; Association with Obesity, Diabetes and Hypertension Furquana Niaz, Nadia Shams, Naresh Kumar, Irfan Sheikh, Nayer-ul-Islam, Najia Ahmed	87
Evaluation of Hematological, Coagulation and Inflammatory Parameters in COVID-19 in a Tertiary Care Setting of Sindh, Pakistan Faiz us Saba, Zunera Sajjad, Ayesha Khan, Muhammad Iqbal, Muhammad Faisal Faheem, Nabeela Khan	93
Injection Sclerotherapy vs Rubber Band Ligation in the Management of Patients with 2nd Degree Haemorrhoids Zahid Raza, Muhammad Jalil, Waseem Ahmad Khan, Jehanzeb Rahman, Shahid Abbas, Shahid Mahmood	97
Perception of Telemedicine in Health Care Workers of a Tertiary Care Hospital Shehnaz khan, Tahseen Haider Kazmi, Noor Shahid, Shamaila Hassnain	101
Effects of Myopia on Visual Evoked Potentials in Patients at Tertiary Care Hospital Abdul Haleem Mirani, Amjad Ali, Ataullah Bukhari, Tehmina Imdad, Ateeq Ur Rehman Channa, Maqbool Ahmed Jamali	106
Assessment of Family planning services utilization among women of Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir Mehwish Fayaz, Qandeel Tahir, Tehmina Zafar, Muhammad Usman Tayyab Butt	110
Association Between Stress and Parafunctional Habits Among Undergraduate Healthcare Students of Pakistan	115
Rabia Masood, Afifa Ehsan, Naila Umer, Simra Khan, Mahgul Asif, Sabaiyna Sohail	
Cytogenetic Analysis of Patients with Recurrent Miscarriages Muhammad Umar, Hamid Saeed Malik, Hira Nadeem, Babar Zaman, Noor ul Huda Alhadi, Fauzia Khan	121
Spectrum of Biochemical Derangements in Patients with Covid-19 Infection Sajjad Ali Haider, Zujaja Hina Haroon, Athar Iqbal Paracha, Muhammad Aamir, Saima Bashir, Syed Raza Jaffar	125
Effectiveness of Intracervical Foley's Catheter with Pge2 Versus Pge2 Alone for Induction of Labour at Term Pregnancy Fauzia Afridi, Romana Bibi, Maimoona Oadir, Rugia Wazir	130
Age Related Cytoarchitectural Comparison of Histopathological Changes in Thyroid Nodule Tanweer Fatima, Sanum Ali, Ghansham Rawtani, Surrendar Dawani, Sehrish Hussain, Sarah Zahid, Aillah Baluch, Shahid Rasul	135
Frequency of Post-Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) Complications Asma Abdul Razzak, Muhammad Raza	140
Case Report	
Dumanian Technique for Repair of Complex Incisional Hernias Sadia Lateef, Surrendar Dawani, Salman Jafferi, Nimra Aslam, Shahid Rasul	144

CONTENTS

Case Report	
"Endocrown" A Major Paradigm Shift in Restorative Dentistry: A Case Report Amir Hamza, Parivash Anwar, Nehal Sher Khan, Rana Saad Bin Sohail	147
Commentary	
Personality Disorders among Medical Professionals Henna Fatma	150
Letter to Editor	
Artificial Intelligence and Telehealth as Diagnostic Approach to Middle Ear Disease- Advances in Otology Soubia Akhtar, Yumna Afzal	152
Narcissism in Medical Students - A Matter of Concern Shazia Fakhir Durrani	153

Ethical Aspects of Studying Anatomy by Cadaveric Dissection

Quratulain Javaid

How to cite this Article:

Javaid Q. Ethical Aspects of Studying Anatomy by Cadaveric Dissection. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):75-6 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022130

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Cadaveric dissection is being there for ages serving as an important tool for teaching anatomy and that's why it is an indispensable part of medical students' curriculum.^{1,2} It is believed that dissection for the purpose of anatomy teaching was there since the period of Renaissance. Other than the anatomical core knowledge for medical students, cadavers serve many purposes including how death seems like and they are able to judge the importance of life seeing a dead body in front of them.³ The basic purpose behind this is to establish a sense of empathy in the students along with sensitizing them with the feel, features and structures of a real body. Other than the knowledge of structures, dissection is an essential way to sensitize the future doctors with the core ethical values.¹ Development of ethical norms and their maintenance remains a cornerstone in the development of ethical values in the young learners.² It is a crucial part of medical education to nurture values of respect and ethics in the students.^{2,4}

Nurturing the ethical aspects of the dead bodies can be initiated form the very beginning of the medical profession. Kundu et al in their study documented the role of cadaveric oath and cadaveric gratitude ceremonies by the medical students a needed aspect of developing core ethical values for the deceased. The importance of these activities in the hidden curriculum remain a cornerstone in teaching bioethics of dead bodies to the young medical learners and also to make them morally and ethically sound physician.³ In China at Zhongshan School of Medicine, cadaveric gratitude ceremony by the name of 'Salute to silent mentor' is organized annually at the commencement of human anatomy course. Other than professionalism, the cadaveric gratitude ceremonies cultivate empathy for the dead ones.⁵ The oath ceremonies at the start of the medical profession play an imperative role in developing values of dignity, respect and empathy for the dead bodies. The students realize that those who are in front of them as cadavers were once alive as they are. This contemplation make them virtuous and righteous medical personals.⁶ There are various aspects which must

Quratulain Javaid Associate Professor, Department of Anatomy Bahria University Health Sciences, Campus Karachi Email: quratulain.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk Received: 14-09-2022 Accepted: 22-02-2023 be kept in mind while handling the cadavers. First and foremost, respect should be given to all the bodies as they are serving as teachers to all the medical students.^{1,4}

The human dead bodies must be kept moist so that the body tissues could not get putrefied.^{2,4} Also, only those body parts should be exposed which are being used for the educational purpose at a certain given time in a learning session. Other remaining parts of the cadaver must be covered with respect and dignity.² Other than the organs, small dissected parts which are not in use must be buried or cremated with respect and it's a duty not to throw the parts in the waste bins. All the students of the medical students must be facilitated by a teacher who could make sure that students are following the ethical guidelines and are not showing unethical behavior in the dissection hall. It is must to make sure that students are there only for the academic purpose and must not at any point be indulged in any other activities related to fun and leisure, like eating food or drinking, making videos or taking selfies. Additionally students are supposed not to make any derogatory remarks about the dead bodyies.² The bodies that serve as an educational tool to the medical students need to be dissected with great respect and paramount carefulness.³ Lastly one should keep in mind that disrespecting a human body is equivalent to disrespecting the humanity. Once dead body is used for the purpose, funeral should be organized in which body should be buried with due respect in presence of the family members.⁷

The bodies that are used for the purpose of dissection are either donated or they are among the unclaimed bodies.⁴ Kramer et al has mentioned in their research that in South Africa recent trend in dissection is to have more donated bodies as compared to unclaimed bodies and female gender was more in comparison to the male gender.8 Other than the unclaimed bodies, many donate their bodies for the purpose to be a source of imparting knowledge to the future healers of the society.^{2,4} The donation of the human bodies for the purpose of education was started in the late 20th century. The selfless act of donation on the one hand was as brightening as a beam of light for the learners but on the other hand, the process also has ethical aspects associated with it. One important feature is getting informed consent from the donor.² It is also vital that the person giving the informed consent must be of sound mind so he could be able to rationalize his decision.⁷ Also, other ethical aspect could be misuse of the human body for the commercial purpose. Other cardinal feature is that the donors of the bodies or their families should not get any sort of monetary benefit from donation. Another salient aspect is confidentiality of information of the donor or the family.² Proper legal documentation regarding the donation of the body and how the body will be handled by the organization has to be mentioned in the document. The legal procedure prevents commercialization of the body.⁹ The act of altruism must be kept in mind while one explores the dead body.

The evolvement of Bioethics has made many realize that the use of unclaimed bodies for dissection is unethical. Since the deceased has not consented for the use of his/her body, that is why it is equivalent to showing contempt for the dead. As many unclaimed dead bodies belong to poor, there is a chance of exploitation of the vulnerable.¹⁰ Keeping in mind, the possibility of exploitation and the ethical values, it is crucial that informed consent be received from the donor during his life. Informed consent regarding the donation of body makes the person exercise autonomy and also dignity is maintained. Creation of awareness among the public regarding donation is a must. Trust of people on those who carry the procedures of dissection is considered to be vital for public to donate.11 Exploitation of bodies of donors can also come to a halt provided there is a regulatory body that ensures that bodies will not be exchanged for any sort of financial benefit. The finance for cremation should be the responsibility of the institutes receiving and using the bodies.12

It is highly advisable that every medical professional entering the field should be involved in certain important practices when they come across deceased. They include giving honor, staff should always be there with the students, gratitude ceremonies be held, use of attire should be appropriate, only required minimal exposure of bodies for purpose of teaching has to be ensured, human tissues should not be the part of general waste bins, drinking, eating, video making, photography should be banned, avoidance of irrelevant and funny chats, dissection region should only be for selective staff and students and after use bodies should be cremated or buried with utmost esteem.

Authors Contribution: Quratulain Javaid: Substantial, (direct, intellectual) contribution to the conception, design, analysis and/or interpretation of data

REFERENCES:

- Souza AD, Kotian SR, Pandey AK, Rao P, Kalthur SG. Cadaver as a first teacher: A module to learn the ethics and values of cadaveric dissection. J Taibah Univ Medical Sci. 2020;15(2):94-101. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/ j.jtumed .2020.03.002
- 2. Ghosh SK. The practice of ethics in the context of human dissection: setting standards for future physicians. Ann. Anat. 2020:1-11. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aanat.2020.151577
- Kundu S, Sherke AR, Gurudiwan R. Cadaver as the first silent medical teacher: Exploring bioethical perceptions of department of anatomy. Asian J Med Sci. 2022;13(5):75-84. DOI: https:// doi.org/10.3126/ajms.v13i5.39305
- Nurunnabi AS, Ara S, Khalil M, Khalil M. Ethics in dissection of cadaver in teaching and learning of anatomy. Bangladesh J Bioeth. 2012;2(3):10-5. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3329 /bioethics.v2i3.10258
- Guo K, Luo T, Zhou LH, Xu D, Zhong G, Wang H, Xu J, Chu G. Cultivation of humanistic values in medical education through anatomy pedagogy and gratitude ceremony for body donors. BMC medical education. 2020;20(1):1-0. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-020-02292-1
- Ghosh SK. Paying respect to human cadavers: We owe this to the first teacher in anatomy. Ann Anat. 2017;211:129-34. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aanat.2017.02.004
- Sawant SP, Rizvi S. Moral & Ethical values of cadaver procurement for dissection. Scholar J Applied Med Sci. 2015;3(29):1043-5.
- Kramer B, Hutchinson EF, Brits DM, Billings BK. Making the ethical transition in South Africa: Acquiring human bodies for training in anatomy. Anat Sci Educ. 2019;12(3):264-71. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1002/ase.1814
- Champney TH, Hildebrandt S, Gareth Jones D, Winkelmann A. Bodies R us: ethical views on the Commercialization of the dead in medical education and research. Anat Sci Educ. 2019;12(3):317-25. DOI: 10.1002/ase.1809
- 10. Jones DG, Whitaker MI. Anatomy's use of unclaimed bodies: reasons against continued dependence on an ethically dubious



Estimation of Oxidant and Antioxidant Levels in Hemodialysis Treated end Stage **Renal Disease Patients and Comparison with Normal Population**

Sadia Rehman, Santosh Kumar, Om Lal, Suniya Rehman, Hasan Ali, Fatima Rehman

ABSTRACT:

Objectives: To estimate the plasma oxidant and antioxidant levels in hemodialysis treated end stage renal disease patients and to match them with normal population.

Study Design and Setting: It was a comparative prospective study. This study was carried out at Jinnah Post Graduate Medical Center Karachi, from January 2018 till December 2018.

Methodology: The hemodialysis patients (group B) were selected from the Dialysis Center of JPMC Karachi whereas the controls (group A) were recruited from normal healthy population. Consecutive sampling technique was used. The cases taken were receiving maintenance hemodialysis thrice a week. Antioxidant levels were determined by estimating plasma superoxide dismutase (SOD) while oxidant levels were estimated by detection of serum malondialdehyde (MDA) and compared with the levels of control group.

Results: The mean superoxide dismutase level in control group was 108.53±19.44 while mean SOD levels in hemodialysis group was 46.20±19.18. In control group mean MDA was 10.87±3.04, and in hemodialysis group mean MDA was 31.01±8.48. This results show the increased risk of oxidative stress resulting in complications in hemodialysis patients.

Conclusion: Antioxidant levels are reduced in hemodialysis patients as compared to the normal population while the oxidant levels are much increased in hemodialysis group. This imbalance contributes to the oxidative stress related complications taking place in these patients. This study will help the nephrologist to elaborate the protective role of antioxidant administration in oxidative stress that can improve the cardiovascular mortality rate in hemodialysis treated end stage renal disease.

Keywords: Antioxidants, End Stage Renal Disease, Hemodialysis, Oxidants, Oxidative Stress.

How to cite this Article:

Rehman S, Kumar S, Lal O, Rehman S, Ali H, Rehman F. Estimation of Oxidant and Antioxidant Levels in Hemodialysis Treated end Stage Renal Disease Patients and Comparison with Normal Population. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):77-81 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2021056

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/bv-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

	INTRODUCT
Sadia Rehman (Corresponding Author) Assistant Professor, Department of Biochemistry Bahria University Health Science, Karachi Email: dr.sadia89@hotmail.com	Development of problem all over
Santosh Kumar Assistant Professor, Department of Nephrology Jinnah Sindh Medical University, Karachi Email: eishaan407@gmail.com	characterized by function. Haen replacement the reported to ind primarily throu
Consultant Physician, Department of Medicine Jinnah Post Graduate Medical Center, Karachi Email: dromlal@yahoo.com	CKD is a pro-oz to oxidative str
Suniya Rehman Medical Officer, Department of ENT Sir Ganga Ram Hospital, Lahore Email:suniya.rehman20@gmail.com	chronic kidney production of pr species (ROS) a
Hasan Ali Professor, Department Head of Biochemistry Bahria University Health Sciences, Karachi Email: drhasan_ali@yahoo.com	mechanisms. ¹ Total antioxida
Fatima Rehman Assistant Professor, Department of Anatomy Liaquat National Hospital and Medical College, Karachi Email: fatimakureshi@hotmail.com	There exists ar antioxidants in systems is calle
Received: 07-09-2021 Accepted: 01-02-2023	due to disturban and antioxidant

ION:

of chronic renal failure has become serious er the world. Chronic renal failure (CRF) is y slow and progressive decline in the kidney modialysis (HD) is the commonest renal erapy in developing countries and has been duce repetitive bouts of oxidative stress ugh membrane bio-incompatibility. While xidant state, HD may contribute significantly ress in these patients.¹ Oxidative stress in y disease (CKD) results from increased rooxidant molecules such as reactive oxygen and nitric oxide (NO), insufficient clearance oducts, and deficient antioxidant defense

nt capacity is described as the sum total of and exogenous antioxidants in a medium.² n equilibrium among the free radicals and n humans.² The imbalance between these ed oxidative stress. Oxidative stress occurs ce in the equilibrium between the pro-oxidant s which results in the formation of reactive

oxygen species (ROS) and free radicals which cause damage to the body cells. Reactive oxygen species (ROS) are highly reactive molecules derived from molecular oxygen.³ These ROS include hydrogen peroxide (H_2O_2) and superoxide anion (O_2 ⁻).⁴

The half-life of free radicals is very short that is only a few seconds so the clinical evaluation of oxidative stress is done by estimating stable oxidized compounds or their derivatives.⁵

Malondialdehyde (MDA) is a low molecular weight, 3carbon containing aldehyde with the $\hat{E}CH_2(CHO)_2$ and a byproduct of lipid metabolism in the body MDA is commonly used as a biomarker of lipid peroxidation.⁶ Reactive oxygen species causes the degradation of \hat{E} , causing lipid peroxidation and formation of MDA. This compound also forms mutagenic DNA adducts when it reacts with and in DNA. Thus the levels of production of MDA can be used as a biomarker to estimate the level of \hat{E} .⁷

Oxidative stress leads to over production of free radicals and hence more MDA is formed.8 Certain theories explain this reduction in antioxidant levels; these include the uremic state itself, the impermeability of the dialyzer membrane to antioxidants and the bacterial contamination of the dialysate.¹⁰ Superoxide dismutase (SOD) is one of the most important enzymatic antioxidants and a major defense system against oxidative damage. A recent study suggests that superoxide dismutase is a major antioxidant enzyme, involved in managing oxidative stress during progressive renal injury.9 SOD is involved in prevention of atherogenesis by causing inhibition of oxidative damage caused by O2, inhibition of O₂⁻ mediated removal of NO and therefore enhancing endothelium-dependent vasorelaxation, Êinhibiting the adhesion of leukocytes and altered vascular cellular responses.¹⁰ Hence the deficiency of SOD acts as an important cause in the development of oxidative stress related complications in hemodialysis patients. When SOD levels were measured in patients with chronic inflammation, their enzyme activity was significantly lower when compared to healthy individuals. Researchers suggest new therapeutic possibilities that target SOD antioxidant pathways so that pro-inflammatory responses can be limited.¹⁰

New pharmacological antioxidant therapies and dialysis strategies can help in reducing the complications of oxidative stress in hemodialysis patients. The presence of oxidative stress even before the initiation of maintenance dialysis therapy suggests that therapeutic antioxidant strategies should preferably be developed very early in the course of renal failure.

Hence the current study is planned to estimate the levels of superoxide dismutase and malondialdehyde in hemodialysis patients in order to access their antioxidant and oxidant levels and to match these levels with the control group.

METHODOLOGY:

This comparative prospective, hospital based study was carried out in Nephrology Department Ward 22 of Jinnah Post Graduate Medical Centre, Karachi from January 2018 till December 2018 in collaboration with the Department of Biochemistry, Basic Medical Science Institute of JPMC Karachi. Ethical permission for the present study was taken by the Institutional Review Committee JPMC, Karachi dairy no: NO.F.2-81-IRB/2018-GENL/5173/JPMC. Informed consent was obtained from all study participants and the data obtained from the study subjects was kept confidential. Open epi website calculator was used for calculation of sample size by using a reference study carried out in Shanghai, China.¹³ A sample size of 120 subjects was calculated which was further divided into two groups. Group A (control group) included 60 normal controls from healthy population and Group B (hemodialysis group) included 60 patients receiving maintenance hemodialysis for more than 2 years duration and were not on any supplementary antioxidant therapy.

The subjects' age, gender, duration of hemodialysis and drug history was noted. Height, weight, BMI, blood pressure (BP), pulse, temperature, respiratory rate and previous medical record were also noted. A written informed consent was taken from every subject. A pre formed proforma was used as a data collection tool.

The inclusion criteria included subjects both males and females with age between 18 to 50 years, and receiving hemodialysis therapy for more than 2 years and not taking any supplementary antioxidants.

The exclusion criteria were patients suffering from any other chronic inflammatory state like malignancy or tuberculosis and patients receiving hemodialysis due to acute renal failure and all subjects having history of any previous cardiovascular disease or event and all subjects not willing to participate in the study were excluded from the study.

Non probability consecutive sampling technique was used for the recruitment of study subjects. Biochemical parameters (serum malondialdehyde, plasma superoxide dismutase) were measured in both the study groups.

BMI was calculated by using the formula for BMI i.e weight (kg)/height (m^2)

Levels of SOD were measured by using reagent method (method of Kono, 1978)

The malonldialdehyde (MDA) was estimated in the form of thiobarbituric acid reacting substances (TBARS) by the method of Okhawa et al, 1979.

Data was analysed using SPSS 23. Descriptive statistics of categorical data were presented as frequencies and percentages.

RESULTS:

Results showed that mean age of control group samples (Group A) was 34.67 ± 7.73 , mean BMI was 23.47 ± 3.26 ,

mean systolic blood pressure was 107.33 ± 9.80 mmHg, mean diastolic blood pressure was 66.33 ± 8.09 mm Hg, mean weight was 66.10 ± 7.75 Kg, and mean height was 1.69 ± 0.12 meters whereas hemodialysis group patients (group B) had mean age 43.20 ± 4.66 years, mean BMI was 22.21 ± 4.21 , mean systolic blood pressure was 159.0 ± 12.42 mmHg, mean diastolic blood pressure was 93.67 ± 10.66 mmHg, mean weight was 64.67 ± 6.13 Kg and mean height was 1.63 ± 0.12 meters. The mean superoxide dismutase level in control group was 108.53 ± 19.44 while mean SOD levels in hemodialysis group was 46.20 ± 19.18 . In control group mean MDA was 31.01 ± 8.48 . The mean difference in serum MDA concentration was found statistically significant with

Table 1: Comparison of Anthropometric Measurements among study groups

Characteristics	A (controls) (n=60)		B (hemodia- lysis group) (n=60)		p value	
	Mean	SD	Mean	SD		
Age (years)	34.67	7.73	43.20	4.66	0.20	
Body Mass Index (kg/m2)	23.47	3.26	20.21	4.21	< 0.01*	
Systolic Blood Pressure	107.33	9.80	159.00	12.42	< 0.01*	
Diastolic Blood Pressure	66.33	8.09	93.67	10.66	< 0.01*	
Weight (kg)	66.10	7.75	59.19	6.13	< 0.01*	
Height (m)	1.69	0.12	1.63	0.12	0.20	

*p<0.05 was considered statistically significant using t-test

Figure 1: Comparison of mean plasma superoxide dismutase (SOD) levels between studied groups



Figure 2: Mean comparison of serum malondialdehyde (MDA) levels among studied groups



p-value less than 0.01.

DISCUSSION:

Oxidative stress is a major complication in patients treated with hemodialysis. The dialysis procedure itself leads to a decrease in the antioxidants and an increase in oxidative molecules, thus aggravating the already present oxidative stress.²² Uremic state along with dialysis procedure is a major risk factor for oxidative stress related complications in these patients. The present study was designed to estimate oxidant and antioxidant levels in hemodialysis treated end stage renal disease patients. Significant results were seen during the comparison between the studied groups.

The aim of our study was to estimate the antioxidant and oxidant levels in hemodialysis treated end stage renal disease patients. For this purpose we estimated serum malondialdehyde and plasma superoxide dismutase levels. We found a significant increase in the mean systolic BP (159± 12.42mmHg) and diastolic BP (93.67±10.6mmHg) of the hemodialysis patients as compared to the control group (107.33±9.80mmHg) and (66.33±8.09mmHg) respectively. Our results are similar to the findings of Wang et al ¹⁴ who reported a mean SBP of 143.2 ± 32.7 mmHg and mean DBP of 79.0 ± 15.9 mmHg among hemodialysis patients. This increase in blood pressure can be due to fluid overload, over-activity of renin angiotensin system, erythropoietin administration and enhanced stimulation of the sympathetic nervous system.¹⁵ No significant difference in the mean ages among the two groups was found. A significant decrease in the weight and BMI was seen in the hemodialysis patients. This is similar to the findings of Rysz et al.¹⁶ Li et al ¹⁷ who also reported a decrease in BMI in hemodialysis treated patients. The decreases in BMI may be due to protein energy wasting, chronic inflammation, repeated infections and restricted diet in hemodialysis patients.¹⁸ Moreover the uremic state and chronic illness also contributes to anorexia, nausea and vomiting in these patients.11,12,19

We also explored the relationships between oxidants and antioxidants. Our study showed that very low levels of SOD were found in hemodialysis group (46.2U/ml) as compared to the control group (108.53U/ml). The possible mechanism behind this low level depends on several factors, such as age, creatinine clearance, the duration of dialysis, arteriosclerosis, imbalance of hemostasis and coagulation factors. Chronic inflammation and uremic state contributes to the formation if reactive oxygen species which causes an imbalance between oxidants and antioxidants. Moreover the selective permeability of the dialyzer membrane to antioxidants also significantly contributes to the decreased levels of antioxidants in these patients as the antioxidants are decreased after every cycle of dialysis. Our results are similar to the published work of Rysz et al ¹⁶ and Kundoor et $a.l^{20}$ Marjani et al ²¹ also reported a decrease in the antioxidant levels in hemodialysis patients. These findings of our study and international studies show that hemodialysis patients are subjected to a constant reduction in antioxidant levels due to repeated infections, dietary restrictions, removal of antioxidants during dialysis procedure, impermeability of the dialyzer membrane to antioxidants and enhanced inflammatory cascade. Decreased SOD activity may also be due to a direct inactivation of the enzyme by its product hydrogen peroxide, or by superoxide anion itself. This reduction in antioxidants is a major factor that leads to oxidative stress in these patients. The morbidity and mortality can be much reduced if this imbalance is treated prior to development of complications.

Serum malondialdehyde was also significantly increased in hemodialysis group (31.01 U/ml) as compared to control group (10.87U/ml). Kundoor et al ²⁰ and Barati et al ²² also described a significant increase in serum MDA in hemodialyzed patients as compared to controls. The possible mechanism which leads to an increase in MDA levels is that ROS activate phospholipase A2 causing peroxidation of many mediators by arachidonic acid which is finally metabolized to MDA. As MDA is a biomarker of oxidative stress hence elevated MDA levels indicate excessive reactive oxygen changes and oxidative changes in low density lipoprotein molecule and other lipid and protein molecules. This could be due to the fact that hemodialysis by the application of a modified circulation and forced passage of blood through a number of filters, activates, endogenous inflammatory mechanisms and induces chronic release of molecules resulting in an increased production of reactive oxygen species.²² The enhanced oxidative stress in hemodialysis patients is caused due to poor intake of exogenous antioxidants in diet, formation of oxidative products and loss of antioxidants during hemodialysis. The levels of MDA rise with repeated cycles of dialysis. This relationship of repeated dialysis cycles and MDA concentration was shown by Hou et al 23 in his study.

These factors are linked to the development of atherosclerosis and chronic inflammation and lead to cardiovascular complications in these patients. Yeter *et al* ²⁴ studied the effects of dialysis membranes on inflammation and oxidative stress. He concluded that increased oxidative stress in this patient population is multi-factorial and is affected by other factors other than inflammation which include the dialysis membranes also. Lestaringsih *et al* ²⁵ studied the relationship of oxidative molecules with the development of atherosclerosis in hemodialysis treated patients and showed that increase in oxidative molecule lead to excessive formation of oxidized LDL which leads to development of atherosclerosis.

Our data led us to conclude that oxidative stress is enhanced in hemodialysis patients which may contribute to the development of dialysis-related complications such as cardiovascular disease, anemia etc. The administration of

antioxidants plays a protective role against oxidative stress by neutralizing the harmful effects of oxidative molecules, however, it has still not been adopted as a regular treatment protocol in clinical practice. Antioxidant supplementation with vitamins A, C, and E; beta-carotene; or N-acetylcysteine (NAC) seems to be beneficial in decreasing cardiovascular risk in hemodialysis patents. Vitamin E is a powerful antioxidant exerting anti-inflammatory properties; it has been shown to interfere with cell membrane lipid peroxidation. Observational clinical studies have shown that the intake of vitamin E (more than 100 IU/day), which inhibits oxidized LDL formation by hindering lipid peroxidation, reduced the rate of coronary events in hemodialysis. Vitamin C plays a significant antioxidative role as it can reduce ROS levels, thus providing protection against kidney oxidative damage and helping to maintain vascular and endothelial function. Wang et al.25 demonstrated that vitamin C (ascorbic acid) diminished oxidative damage, inflammation and renal injury in ischemia nephrotoxic acute kidney injury and rhabdomyolysis-induced renal injury. More prospective studies are required to elaborate the protective role of antioxidant administration in oxidative stress that can improve the cardiovascular mortality rate in hemodialysis treated end-stage renal disease. More over the oxidative stress parameters in these patients need to be monitored to avoid the possible outcomes of oxidative stress. Dietary guidelines should also be developed to ensure the intake of adequate vitamins and minerals in these patients. This study will help the nephrologists to elaborate the protective role of antioxidant administration in oxidative stress that can improve the cardiovascular mortality rate in hemodialysis treated end-stage renal disease. We recommend the addition of antioxidants in the treatment regimes of these patients.

The limitations of the study were small sample size and limitation to only one dialysis center. It was a self-funded study so the scope of study could not be extended beyond one study setting. Also, since non-probability sampling technique was used, it was difficult to make inference about the entire population. Other markers of oxidative stress like CRP, glutathione peroxidase and myeloperoxidase enzyme could not be included due to budget limitations. More studies with bigger sample size and multiple centers are required for further investigation of these findings. More markers of oxidative stress should be explored. Interventional studies using supplementary antioxidants should be carried out to further validate the protective role of antioxidants in hemodialysis patients.

CONCLUSION:

Antioxidant levels are reduced in hemodialysis patients resulting in elevated oxidant levels in hemodialysis patients as compared to control group. This decrease contributes to the oxidative stress related complications which are the major factors of mortality in these patients. I

Authors Contribution:	
Sadia Rehman: Principal researcher	
Santosh Kumar: Research supervisor	
Om Lal: Data collection and analysis	
Suniya Rehman: Literature review and writeup	
Hasan Ali: Approval of draft and literature review	
Fatima Rehman: Statistical analysis	

REFERENCES:

- Gaæ P, Porêba M, Januszewska L, Prokopowicz A, Martynowicz H, Mazur G, et al. The Total Antioxidant Status, Serum Selenium Concentrations and the Ultrasound Assessment Carotid Intima Media Thickness in Patients with Arterial Hypertension. Antioxidants. 2021;10(1):63 DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/antiox10010063
- Sedaghattalab M, Razazan M, Sadeghi H, Doustimotlagh AH, Toori MA, Abbasi Larki R, et al. Effects of nasturtium officinale extract on antioxidant and biochemical parameters in hemodialysis patients: a randomized double-blind clinical trial. Evid Based Complement Alternat Med. 2021;10(3):45-46 DOI: https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/1632957
- Domínguez-Zambrano E, Pedraza-Chaverri J, López-Santos AL, Medina-Campos ON, Cruz-Rivera C, Bueno-Hernández F, et al. Association between serum uric acid levels, nutritional and antioxidant status in patients on hemodialysis. Nutrients. 2020;12(9):2600 DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/nu12092600
- Yokoi M, Ito T, Fujita H, Sugiura T, Seo Y, Ohte N. Increased serum malondialdehyde-modified low-density lipoprotein and coronary angiographic progression after drug-eluting stent implantation in patients with stable angina. Circulation Journal. 2020;84(10):1837-45 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.1253/ circj.CJ-20-0060
- Domínguez-Zambrano E, Pedraza-Chaverri J, López-Santos AL, Medina-Campos ON, Cruz-Rivera C, Bueno-Hernández F, et al. Association between serum uric acid levels, nutritional and antioxidant status in patients on hemodialysis. Nutrients. 2020;12(9):2600 DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/nu12092600
- Wojtaszek E, Oldakowska-Jedynak U, Kwiatkowska M, Glogowski T, Malyszko J. Uremic toxins, oxidative stress, atherosclerosis in chronic kidney disease, and kidney transplantation. oxidative medicine and cellular longevity. 2021;2021. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/6651367
- Manabe S, Kataoka H, Mochizuki T, Iwadoh K, Ushio Y, Kawachi K, et al. Maximum carotid intima-media thickness in association with renal outcomes. J. Atheroscler. Thromb. 2020:57752 DOI: https://doi.org/10.5551/jat.57752
- Zhou C, Zhang Y, Chen J, Mei C, Xiong F, Shi W, et al. Association between serum advanced oxidation protein products and mortality risk in maintenance hemodialysis patients. J. Transl. Med. 2021;19(1):1-8 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.1186/s12967-021-02960-w
- Furukawa S, Suzuki H, Fujihara K, Kobayashi K, Iwasaki H, Sugano Y, et al. Malondialdehyde-modified LDL-related variables are associated with diabetic kidney disease in type 2 diabetes. Diabetes Res. Clin. Pract. 2018;14(1):237-43 DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.diabres.2018.05.019
- Kerforne T, Favreau F, Khalifeh T, Maiga S, Allain G, Thierry A, et al. Hypercholesterolemia-induced increase in plasma oxidized LDL abrogated pro angiogenic response in kidney grafts. J. Transl. Med. 2019;17(1):1-4 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.1186/s12967-018-1764-4
- Yari Z, Tabibi H, Najafi I, Hedayati M, Movahedian M. Effects of soy isoflavones on serum systemic and vascular inflammation markers and oxidative stress in peritoneal dialysis patients: A randomized controlled trial. Phytotherapy Research. 2020;34(11):3011-8 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10. 1002/ptr.6729

- 12. Ostadmohammadi V, Soleimani A, Bahmani F, Aghadavod E, Ramezani R, Reiter RJ, et al. The effects of melatonin supplementation on parameters of mental health, glycemic control, markers of cardiometabolic risk, and oxidative stress in diabetic hemodialysis patients: a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial. J. Ren. Nutr. 2020;30(3):242-250. DOI: https://doi.org/10.2147/IJGM.S178276
- 13. Raoof IB, Abdalah ME. Quality assessment of unsaturated iron-binding protein capacity in Iraqi patients undergoing hemodialysis. J. Pharm. Bioallied Sci. 2020;12(3):246 DOI: 10.4103/jpbs.JPBS_12_20
- 14. Wang T, Li Y, Wu H, Chen H, Zhang Y, Zhou H. Optimal blood pressure for the minimum all-cause mortality in Chinese ESRD patients on maintenance hemodialysis. Biosci.Rep. 2020;40(8) DOI: https://doi.org/10.1042/BSR20200858
- 15. Wu PJ, Chen JB, Lee WC, Ng HY, Lien SC, Tsai PY, et al. Oxidative stress and nonalcoholic fatty liver disease in hemodialysis patients. BioMed Res. Int. 2018;20(2)43-44. DOI: 10.1155/2018/3961748
- Rysz J, Franczyk B, £awiñski J, Gluba-Brzózka A. Oxidative Stress in ESRD Patients on Dialysis and the Risk of Cardiovascular Diseases. Antioxidants. 2020;9(11):1079 DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/antiox9111079
- 17. Li ZJ, Du LF, Qin Y, Liu JB, Luo XH. Ultrasound assessment of intima-media thickness and diameter of carotid arteries in patients undergoing hemodialysis or renal transplantation. Curr. Med. Sci. 2018;38(4):727-33 DOI https://doi.org/10.1007 /s11596-018-1937-7
- Giaretta AG, Schulz M, Silveira TT, de Oliveira MV, Patrício MJ, Gonzaga LV, et al. Apple intake improves antioxidant parameters in hemodialysis patients without affecting serum potassium levels. Nutr. Res. 2019;6(4):56-63 DOI: https://doi. org/10.1016/j.nutres.2018.12.012
- Wagner S, Apetrii M, Massy ZA, Kleber ME, Delgado GE, Scharnagel H, März W, Metzger M, Rossignol P, Jardine A, Holdaas H. Oxidized LDL, statin use, morbidity, and mortality in patients receiving maintenance hemodialysis. Free. Radic. Res. 2017;51(1):14-23 DOI: https://doi.org/10.1080/10715762 .2016.1241878
- Kundoor N, Mohanty S, Narsini RK, Kumar TN. Pro-oxidants and antioxidants levels in chronic renal failure patients treated by dialysis. Asian J Pharmaceu Res Health Care. 2017 1;9(2):71-74 DOI: 10.18311/ajprhc/2017/14740
- Marjani A, Velayeti J, Mansourian AR, Dahmardeh N. Evaluation of oxidative stress and thyroid hormone status in hemodialysis patients in Gorgan. Indian J Physiol Pharmacol. 2017;61(3):278-284 DOI: 10.4103/2230-8210.179986
- 22. Barati Boldaji R, Akhlaghi M, Sagheb MM, Esmaeilinezhad Z. Pomegranate juice improves cardiometabolic risk factors, biomarkers of oxidative stress and inflammation in hemodialysis patients: a randomized crossover trial. J. Sci Food Agric. 2020;100(2):846-54 DOI: https://doi.org/10.1002 /jsfa.10096
- Hou JS, Wang CH, Lai YH, Kuo CH, Lin YL, Hsu BG. Serum Malondialdehyde-Modified Low-Density Lipoprotein Is a Risk Factor for Central Arterial Stiffness in Maintenance Hemodialysis Patients. 2020;12(7):2160 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.3390/nu12072160
- Yeter HH, Korucu B, Akcay OF, Derici K, Derici U, Arinsoy T. Effects of medium cut-off dialysis membranes on inflammation and oxidative stress in patients on maintenance hemodialysis. International Urology and Nephrology. 2020; 52(9):1779-89 DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s11255-020-02562-3
- Wang S, Eide TC, Sogn EM, Berg KJ, Sund RB. Plasma ascorbic acid in patients undergoing chronic haemodialysis. European journal of clinical pharmacology. 1999;55(7):527-32 DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s002280050668

Efficacy of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin in Children Presenting with Hepatitis C at Tertiary Care Hospital, Faisalabad

Naginal Shahzadi, Naureen Kanwal Satti, Huma Arshad, Nadeem Hashmat

ABSTRACT

Objectives: To assess efficacy, safety, and outcome of combination of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin in various genotypes, in children with hepatitis C infection.

Study design and setting: It was a quasi-experimental study, conducted at the Gastroenterology and Hepatology Department, Children Hospital Faisalabad, from August 2017 to August 2021.

Methodology: 50 confirmed cases of HCV infection aged 5 to 18 years, were given an oral dose of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin daily for 12 weeks. PCR was assessed at 4 weeks (for Rapid Viral Response (RVR)) and repeated at 8 weeks and 12 weeks (for Early Viral Response (EVR)) and again 12 weeks after the completion of therapy for Sustained Viral Response (SVR)). Primary outcome was the number who achieved an SVR at 12 weeks (SVR12) after completion of treatment with a viral load below quantitation level.

Results: Genotype 3 was found in 80%, type 1 in 6%, type 2 in 4% and 10% were untypeable. All children were PCR positive at presentation; 96% became PCR negative at 4 weeks (RVR), while 100 percent were negative at 8 weeks, 12 weeks (EVR), and SVR 12 weeks after completion of 12 week course was 100%.

Conclusion: Although majority of patients were Genotype 3, 12 week course of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin of hepatitis C-infected children was highly effective, with 100 percent PCR-negative cases at 8 weeks and 12 weeks with only minor side effects, and, SVR of 100% twelve weeks after completion of therapy.

Keywords: Chronic Hepatitis C, Children, Antiviral, Sofosbuvir, Ribavirin

How to cite this Article:

Shahzadi N, Satti NK, Arshad H, Hashmat N. Efficacy of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin in Children Presenting with Hepatitis C at Tertiary Care Hospital, Faisalabad. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):82-6 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2021128

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

INTRODUCTION:

Hepatitis C (Hep C) infection is a global health burden in children as well as adults. It is estimated that 70 million people, or 1% of the population, are infected with hepatitis C worldwide ¹. In Pakistan 6.5% population is afflicted with Hep C with prevalence in children of 1.6%.² Chronic Hep C virus infection is the most common cause of liver transplantation globally and its importance is signified by

Nagina Shahzadi (Corresponding Author) T L Assistant Professor Pediatric Gastroenterology, T Children Hospital and Institute of Child Health, Faisalabad Email: nagina.asim139@gmail.com I I Naureen Kanwal Satti I General Pediatrician, Department of PediatricS I I Faisalabad Medical University Email: nkanwal2019@gmail.com Huma Arshad Professor, Department of Pediatric Gastroenterologyy and Hepatology Children Hospital Lahore Email: peadsgi@gmail.com I L Nadeem Hashmat I Consultant, Department of Pediatric I Faislabad Medical University I Email: nhashmat17@gmail.com L Received: 27-12-2021 I I Accepted: 01-02-2023

2016 WHO strategy to reduce Hep C infection by 90% by 2030.³

Hep C virus has 6 genotypes. The most common worldwide is type 1 with a prevalence rate of 49% globally, followed by genotypes 3, 4, and 2 with prevalence rates of 17.9%, 16.8%, and 11% respectively. The rest of the genotypes account for less than 5%.4 On the other hand, the most common genotypes prevalent in Pakistan are 3 and 3 b, followed by 1a, 2a, and untypeable.⁵

The routes of spread of hepatitis C in Pakistan include reuse of syringes, surgical procedures, dental extractions, blood transfusions, perinatal transmission, and reuse of instruments at barbershops. Chronic disorders requiring repeated blood component transfusions have an alarmingly high prevalence of Hep C; a meta-analysis done on 5789 beta-thalassemics revealed a prevalence of 36.21%6

Diagnosis of Hep C virus requires PCR to confirm on Serology Positive patients. Genotyping is done to further categorise into one of the 6 genotypes.

The importance of treating hepatitis C disease in childhood cannot be overemphasised due to its impact on halting progression to chronic liver disease in later years.

Until 2017, pegylated interferons and ribavirin were the only approved treatments for children with hepatitis-C. This

treatment regime has several drawbacks, including duration of treatment, compliance, and parenteral use for a longer duration than Direct Antiviral Agents (DDA). DAAs were approved for children above 12 years of age by the FDA in 2017. Recently, the FDA has approved the use of Sofosbuvir and Velpatasvir in children 6 years and older and weighing at least 17 kilograms with any of the genotypes of hepatitis C^{7} At the time of writing of this account, WHO has already recommended conditional use (due to very low certainty of evidence) of combination of DAAs from 3-5 years of age.8 Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin is the first combination approved for use in children. Limited local data is available regarding its efficacy and safety in children. A study done in The Children's Hospital Lahore showed excellent results of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin combination in children in genotypes 1 and 3 with sustained virologic response of 97%.9 Recent treatment recommendations in all children older than 03 years are use of interferon free directly acting antiviral regimens. First line combinations are Glecaprevir and pibrentasvir for 08 weeks in children 12 years and older and Sofosbuvir and Velpatasvir Ribavirin for 12 weeks in children 03 years and older. These combinations have good virological response across genotypes. All patients older than 03 years having positive HCV detection by PCR should be treated regardless of initial viral load, genotype and liver biochemistry.10

The introduction of DAAs has dramatically changed the treatment outcome of hepatitis C in children. In Pakistan Genotype 3 is the predominant genotype, seen in the large majority of patients. Data on the use of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin in adults is available in Pakistan, but there is limited data on its use in children. The available studies, globally and locally, however have shown excellent results with a combination of Ribavirin and Sofosbuvir.?'11 Both drugs are used in combination and are safe in children with fewer side effects. Standard recommendation for genotype 3 is a regimen of 24 weeks, but since RVR and EVR are excellent in genotype 3 patients in studies done to date, we assume that if we give a regimen of 12 weeks only, this effect will be maintained in SVR 12 as well. Therefore we planned to do a 12 week treatment study. This may increase confidence in retaining Ribavirin in regimens used to treat Hep C in children and increase its acceptability because of short duration.

METHODOLOGY:

A Quasi-experimental study was conducted from August 2017 to August 2021. The research was carried out in the Gastroenterology and Hepatology Department of the Children Hospital and Institute of Child Health, Faisalabad, to investigate the efficacy, safety, outcome, and complications profile of treatment with Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin for 12 weeks in Hepatitis-C confirmed cases.

The study was approved by the Ethical Review Board of

The Children Hospital and Institute of Child Health, Faisalabad bearing ERC number "33" dated 10-11-2020. Informed written consent was taken from parents or guardians of all children prior to enrolment in this study. Eligibility criteria for patients to be enrolled for the study included; age above 6 years (> 5 completed years) to 15 years, the evidence of chronic HCV infection with any genotype (positive Qualitative PCR) and no prior treatment at any centre for HCV. Patients who had decompensated liver disease, co-infection with Hepatitis A, B or HIV, end stage renal disease or any history of psychiatric illness, were excluded from the study. Children who had previously received any treatment for HCV infection were also excluded from the study.

Patients were enrolled using the Consecutive Sampling technique. Openepi.com Sample Size Calculator was used to calculate the sample size keeping confidence interval 95%, absolute precision 5%, and anticipated efficacy (sustained virologic response at 12 weeks after completion of therapy) 97%.¹¹ Therefore Effect Size was 97. Total sample size thus calculated was 10 by Kelsy, 8 by Fleiss and 12 by Fleiss with CC. Our sample size however was 50 cases, well above the calculated numbers.

A detailed proforma was filled out, which recorded a detailed history, all clinical features of chronic liver disease, extrahepatic manifestations, disease severity, and the exclusion of other causes. Other causes of liver disease were ruled out using biochemical tests and imaging. To rule out concomitant infection, baseline tests including hepatic viral markers for HBV, HCV, HAV, and HIV were performed. Data on HCV transmission routes, risk factors, lab work, and previous treatment received by patients were collected.

All enrolled patients were followed up at 04 weekly intervals. The history of new symptoms and clinical signs, as well as any side effects related to the medication and the disease itself, were recorded at four-week intervals during the course of treatment. If advanced liver disease was suspected, CT scans, MRIs, and endoscopies were performed to rule out the disease and its complications.

Patients were given Sofosbuvir 400 mg once daily and Ribavirin at a dose of 10-15 mg per kg twice daily for 12 weeks irrespective of the genotype. All children were closely monitored, and a 4-week follow-up was performed, which included a detailed history of clinical signs and symptoms after treatment, as well as lab work. A CBC was performed weekly to assess low Hb levels, as well as LFTs, serum albumin, INR, PT, and APTT. PCR was assessed at 8 weeks and repeated at 12 weeks. Finally, PCR was done 12 weeks after the treatment finished. The primary outcome was efficacy, which was defined as the number of patients who achieved a sustained viral response 12 weeks after the medication stopped (SVR12), which was the treatment's end point and defined as a negative PCR or a viral load less Efficacy of Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin in Children Presenting with Hepatitis C at Tertiary Care Hospital, Faisalabad

than the quantitation level. Safety was defined as no or minimal nonspecific side effects during a 12-week treatment period that did not necessitate drug discontinuation.

The data was analysed with SPSS 20.0, and the study's findings were subjected to qualitative and quantitative assessments. A statistically significant P-value was defined as less than 0.05. Demographics, disease presentations, reaction to therapies, changes in lab values, compliance, and complications of disease or treatment failure were all assessed quantitatively and qualitatively.

RESULTS:

In total, 50 children of both genders participated in the study. The group consisted of 38 males (76%) and 12 females (24%). The male-to-female ratio was 3.2:1. The median age was 7.2 years. The most common genotype was type 3, which was found in 80% of patients, followed by type 1, which was found in 6% of patients and type 2 in 4% of patients. In 10% of patients, genotype could not be determined and were labelled untypable (Figure: 1).

At the time of the presentation, all of the children tested positive for PCR. 56 % cases were admitted from Outpatient Department and 44% were referred from Hematology and Oncology ward. Blood transfusion was the most common mode of Hep C transmission, accounting for the vast majority of cases. Children with thalassemia made up 74% of the cases. Bleeding and platelet function disorders accounted for 12% of all cases; 2% had previous abdominal surgery, and 2% had perinatal transmission, 4% of cases were in remission from leukaemia and the aetiology could not be determined in remaining 6% of cases.

A staggering 86% of cases had comorbidities. 80% had chronic blood transfusion requirements, including thalassemia, leukaemia, lymphomas, bleeding disorders and platelet disorders, which still speaks volumes about the importance of routine blood screening before transfusion.

ALT was raised in 97% of cases, and the mean ALT at the beginning of treatment was 67, while post treatment ALT became normal in all the cases. Mean ALT post treatment at 12 weeks was 17.6 and the difference after treatment was significant (p < 0.001). Another significant finding was a drop in haemoglobin from a mean of 11.6 ± 1.42 at the start of treatment to 10.10 ± 1.45 (p < 0.002).

At 4 weeks, 96% of patients were PCR negative, and 100% were negative at 12 weeks of treatment. SVR (Negative PCR at 12 weeks after stopping treatment) was also 100% (Figure: 2). Poor appetite was observed in 76.6 percent of cases, weakness and lethargy in 64% of cases, vomiting in 16% of cases, and headache and abdominal pain in 56% and 66% of cases, respectively.

DISCUSSION:

The success of DAAs in adults with hepatitis C has opened up new possibilities for paediatric hepatitis C treatment. For



Figure:2 Percentage of PCR Negative cases at 4,8 and 12 weeks



children over age six, they are more powerful and safer than conventional therapy methods. In children, Ribavirin and Sofusbuvir have been used in a few trials, and have resulted in high SVR post therapy with minimal adverse effects since the introduction of DAAs. Trials have shown a 98% effectiveness rate as compared to 60 to 70% efficacy with interferons. The traditional interferon treatment regimen has a number of side effects, including effects on children's growth and low success rates in genotypes 1 and 4, which have been successfully treated with DAAs ^{12,13}.

The average age in our sample was 7.2 ± 0.5 years, with a male to female ratio of nearly 3:1. According to a recent assessment of the literature, the average age reported in other studies was 9 and 10 years, respectively.¹³ In our research, type 3b was the most prevalent genotype, but studies show that genotype 3 is more common in Asia and genotype 1 is more common in Europe and America.¹⁴

In our study, blood transfusion was identified as the leading cause of hepatitis C transmission, with perinatal transmission having the lowest frequency. In a study conducted in Lahore, Pakistan, 51% of childhood hepatitis B and Hepatitis C infection was associated with history of past blood transfusion. Underlying pre-existing medical conditions were acute lymphoblastic leukaemia (15%) and thalassemia (9%).¹⁵ These results closely concord with the results of current study and are indicative of use of less effective blood screening methods being used in our country. Contrarily, most of the industrialized countries that employ highly effective screening methods have largely eradicated blood borne transmission of viral hepatitis. As a result, perinatal transmission is the predominant mode of transmission industrialized nations.¹⁴

Based on our study, 96% of cases had a negative PCR test at 4 weeks, and 100% of cases had a negative PCR test at 12 weeks and SVR was maintained at 100% of EVR. On the other hand, sustained viral response (SVR) was achieved in 99% of cases at 4 weeks and 100% of cases at 12 weeks in a similar studies using Ledipasvir-Sofosbuvir without Ribavirin and with it ¹²⁻¹³. In contrast to our findings, the use of interferon resulted in SVR of 79% in type 1 and 88% in genotypes 2 and 3. This demonstrates a significant difference in the outcomes of two different regimes.¹⁶ The results of this study strongly favour use of interferon free regimens because of their high virologic response rate as well as markedly superior side effect profile.

In our study,76% of patients reported poor appetite, followed by fatigue and weakness in 64%, vomiting in 16%, and headaches and abdominal discomfort in 56% and 66%, respectively; all these resolved in a short duration. A similar study in children reported vomiting as the predominant side effect in 46% of cases below 6 years and 32% in children above 6 years, followed by diarrhoea and headache in 39% and 29% cases respectively. Other studies reported fatigue, headache, abdominal pain and nausea as main side effects of the combination therapy.¹⁷⁻²⁰

The results of our study show that hepatitis C can be effectively treated in children between 5 to 18 years of age with a 12 week regimen of Sofosbuvir plus Ribavirin with minimal side effects. The limitation of our study was limited data based on single centre. There is a scarcity of data in the paediatric literature, indicating the need for larger multicentre studies in Pakistan and other countries. More studies should be done with 12 week therapy; these will help improve the quality of care for children infected with hepatitis C while also reducing the financial burden on families.

Another limitation of our study was duration of treatment of 12 weeks instead of the usual 24 weeks; this was due to time constraint and in engaging patients for a longer duration. However this same limitation seems to have emerged as the strong point in that a shorter duration of therapy may be as effective as the longer one. More studies need to be done to strengthen these findings.

CONCLUSION:

Twelve weeks Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin treatment of hepatitis C-infected children was highly effective, resulting in 100% sustained virologic response; and for genotype 3 (which was 80% of our patients), this shorter regimen was as good as 24 weeks regimen.

Authors Contribution:

- Nagina Shahzadi: Acquisition of data, Case Management, Original Draft Preparation, Revising it critically for important intellectual content, Supervising, Final approval of the version to be submitted
- Naureen Kanwal Satti: Conception and design, writing original draft, visualization, revision, final approval of the version to be submitted
- **Huma Arshad:** Revising it critically for important intellectual content, final approval of the version to be submitted
- Nadeem Hashmat: Review and editing, revising it critically for important intellectual content, conception and design, final
- approval of the version to be submitted

REFERENCES:

- Lombardi A, Mondelli MU; ESCMID Study Group for Viral Hepatitis (ESGVH). Hepatitis C: Is eradication possible? Liver Int. 2019;39(3):416-426. Doi; 10.1111/liv. 14011. E pub 2019 Jan 10. PMFD: 30472772.
- Aiman Arshad, Usman Ali Ashfaq. Epidemiology of Hepatitis infection in Pakistan; current estimate and major risk factors. Crit Rev EukaryotGene Exp. 2020; 20: 587.
- 3. World Health Organisation. Global Health Sector Strategy on Viral Hepatitis 2016-2021. Geneva Switzerland : World Health Organisation ; 2016.
- Petruzziello A, Marigliano S, Loquercio G, Cozzolino A, Cacciapuoti C. Global epidemiology of hepatitis C virus infection: An up-date of the distribution and circulation of hepatitis C virus genotypes. World J Gastroenterol. 2016;22(34):7824-40. Doi: 10.3748/wjg.v22. 134.7824.
- Haqqi A, Munir R, Khalid M, Khurram M, Zaid M, Ali M, et. al. Prevalence of Hepatitis C Virus Genotypes in Pakistan: Current Scenario and Review of Literature. Viral Immunol. 2019;32(9):402-413. https://doi.org/10.1089/vim.2019.0058.
- Sohail Akhtar, Jamal Abdul Nasir, Andrew Hinde. The prevalence of Hepatitis C virus infection in Beta thalassemia patients in Pakistan; a systematic review and meta-analysis. BMC Public Health. 2020;20:587. https:// doi.org/10-1186/s12889-020-8414-5.
- Samo AA, Laghari ZA, Baig NM, Khoso GM. Prevalence and Risk Factors Associated with Hepatitis B and C in Nawabshah, Sindh, Pakistan. Am J Trop Med Hyg. 2020;104(3):1101–5. Doi: 10.4269/ajtmh. 20-1228.
- Treatment of adolescents and children with chronic HCV infection. Policy Brief. Geneva. World Health Organisation 2022.
- Hashmi MA, Cheema HA. Effectiveness and Safety of Sofosbuvir in Treatment-Näive Children with Hepatitis C Infection. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak. 2017;27(7):423-426.
- Ghany MG, Morgan TR; AASLD-IDSA Hepatitis C Guidance Panel. Hepatitis C Guidance 2019 Update: American Association for the Study of Liver Diseases-Infectious Diseases Society of America Recommendations for Testing, Managing, and Treating Hepatitis C Virus Infection. Hepatology. 2020;71(2):686-721. https://doi.org/10.1002/hep.31060

I

- Rosenthal, P. Kathleen B Schwartz, Regino P Gonzales-Peralta et al. Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin therapy for children aged 3 to 12 years with hepatitis C virus genotype 2 or 3 infection. Hepatology, 2020;71(1): 31-43
- Rosenthal P, Schwarz KB, Gonzalez-Peralta RP, Lin CH, Kelly DA, Nightingale S, et. al. Sofosbuvir and Ribavirin Therapy for Children Aged 3 to <12 Years With Hepatitis C Virus Genotype 2 or 3 Infection. Hepatology. 2020;71(1):31-43. https://researcherprofiles.org/profile/57844836
- Karnsakul W, Schwarz KB. Management of Hepatitis C Infection in children in the era of Direct-acting Antiviral Agents. J Viral Hepat. 2019;26(9):1034-1039. doi: 10.1111/jvh.13113.
- 14. Squires JE, Balistreri WF. Hepatitis C virus infection in children and adolescents. Hepatology communications. 2017;1(2):87-98. https://doi.org/10.1002/hep4.1028.
- Hashmi, MA and Anwar A. Risk Factors for Viral Hepatitis B and C Infection in Children. PAFMJ, 2018; 68(3): 627-33.
- Huang Y, Li MH, Hou M, Xie Y. Peginterferon alfa-2a for the treatment of chronic hepatitis C in the era of direct-acting antivirals. Hepatobiliary Pancreat Dis Int. 2017;16(5):470-479.

- Murray KF, Balistreri WF, Bansal S, Whitworth S, Evans HM and Gonzalez-Peralta RP et. al. Safety and Efficacy of Ledipasvir–Sofosbuvir With or Without Ribavirin for Chronic Hepatitis C in Children Ages 6-11. Hepatology. 2018;68(6):2158-66. Doi: 10.1002/hep.30123.
- Schwarz KB, Rosenthal P, Murray KF, Honegger JR, Hardikar W, Hague R, Mittal N, Massetto B, Brainard DM, Hsueh CH, Shao J. Ledipasvir-sofosbuvir for 12 weeks in children 3 to< 6 years old with chronic hepatitis C. Hepatology. 2020;71(2):422-30. Doi: 10.1002/hep.30830.
- El-Araby HA, Behairy BE, El-Guindi MA, Adawy NM, Allam AA, Sira AM, et. al. Generic sofosbuvir/ledipasvir for the treatment of genotype 4 chronic hepatitis C in Egyptian children (9-12 years) and adolescents. Hepatol Int. 2019;13(6):706-714. Doi: 10.1007/s12072-019-09985-w.
- Alkaaby BA, Al-Ethawi AE. The effectiveness of oral antiviral (Sofosbuvir/Ledipasvir) in treating children with HCV infection. Pak J Med Sci. 2018;34(6):1353-1356. Doi: 10.12669/pjms.346.15722.

Acanthosis Nigricans in Adolescents versus Adults; Association with Obesity, **Diabetes and Hypertension**

Furquana Niaz, Nadia Shams, Naresh Kumar, Irfan Sheikh, Nayer-ul-Islam, Najia Ahmed

ABSTRACT:

Objectives: Acanthosis nigricans presents as black velvety plaques on flexural surfaces which is associated with obesity, T2DM and HTN. To study sites and types of AN (Acanthosis Nigricans) in adolescents Vs. adults and its associations.

Study design & setting: This cross sectional study was conducted from IstMar-31stAug 2021 at RIHS Islamabad after ethical approval.

Methodology: Adolescents and adult cases of both the genders with AN were *included* by convenience sampling. Critically ill cases, endocrine disorders, pregnancy and malignancy were excluded 57 adolescents and 57 gender matched adults were included. After the detailed clinical evaluation, BMI, waist circumference, sites and types of AN were documented. Blood sugars and workup for PCO's, suggested. Data was analyzed by SPSS 21. Chi-square test and Mann-Whitney-U test applied.

Results: Out of 114 cases, 77(67.5%) were females. The mean age was 17.99+14.18 years and mean BMI was 31.63+6.92 kg/m². Obesity was observed in 75(65.8%); 44(77.2%) adolescents Vs. 31(54.4%) adults (p=0.010). Mean waist circumference was 37.03+3.74 inches.AN at Neck 113(99.1%) and benign AN 111(97.4%) were the most frequent. The types of AN were associated with obesity, DM 31(27.2%) and HTN 27(23.7%) (p<0.05).

Conclusions: Benign and HAIR-AN were most frequent. Adolescents with AN have significantly higher obesity than adults. HTN was significantly higher in adults. DM in AN was observed regardless of age group. It is suggested to screen all AN cases regardless of age or gender for obesity, HTN and DM. Early diagnosis may contribute to improve quality of life, prevent morbidity of systemic diseases and improve outcome in AN cases.

Keywords: Acanthosis nigricans, BMI, HAIR-AN syndrome, Obesity, PCO

How to cite this Article:

Niaz F, Shams N, Kumar N, Sheikh I, Islam NU, Ahmed N. Acanthosis Nigricans in Adolescents versus Adults; Association with Obesity, Diabetes and Hypertension. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):87-92 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022053

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Furquana Niaz (Corresponding Author) Professor & HOD, Department of Dermatology KIMS, Malir Cantt Karachi/ NUMS University, Islamabad Email: furquananiaz@hotmail.com
Nadia Shams Professor & HOD, Department of Medicine Rawal institute of Health sciences, Islamabad Email: nadia_shams@yahoo.com
Naresh Kumar Assistant Professor, Department of Medicine Civil hospital/Dow medical university, Karachi Email: drnaresh2004@yahoo.com
Irfan Sheikh Professor & HOD, Department of Dermatology Chandka Medical College / Shaheed Mohtarma Benazir Bhutto Medical University, Larkana Email: shaikhirfan913@gmail.com
Nayer-ul-Islam Professor & HOD, Department of Medicine KIMS, Malir Cantt Karachi / NUMS University, Islamabad Email: nayyerislam2003@gmail.com
Najia Ahmed Associate Professor, Department of Dermatology Shifa hospital Karachi Email: najiaomer@yahoo.com
Received: 14-04-2022 Accepted: 06-03-2023

INTRODUCTION:

Acanthosis nigricans (AN) is an asymptomatic skin condition which presents as brown/black rough velvet like thickening of skin that involves intertriginous areas and mucosal surfaces including oral mucosa, lips, conjunctiva and vulva.¹⁻³ Dr. Paul & Pollitzer documented the 1st case of AN^{1,4}, while Robinson & Tasker documented its relation with obesity. The prevalence of pediatric obesity from 2-19 years of age is 10.4%-15.5 and in male children is 26.7% and 34.6% in females which increases risk for DM.^{1,5} The prevalence is 62% in children of any race with BMI>98th percentile and in adolescents 66% with gross weight of more than 200%.^{1,4} The American Medical Association (AMA) declared obesity to be "A category disease".5

AN can present from birth to adolescence that impact on health of individuals⁶ and causes psychological disturbance due to unsightly appearances.⁵ Stuart et al proposed Acanthosis score in literature ranging from 0 to 4, based on degree of involvement while Hud et al provides severity of AN on the basis of texture. Burke et al proposed a visual scale for severity of AN on neck and its correlation with BMI. Kobaissi et al criteria was based on severity of AN.⁵

The three classifications of the types of AN include ²Curth

classification (benign, malignant and syndromic AN), Hernandez-Perez (simple and paraneoplastic AN), Schwartz classification (Benign, associated with obesity, unilateral, syndromic, mixed, drug induced, acral and malignant AN).²

Benign AN is associated with IR⁻¹Obesity associated AN is associated with obesity in prepubertal children. Among children and young child at risk for overweight if BMI > 85th percentile but < 95th percentile for that age but if BMI till 95th percentiles are consider as overweight.⁷This can be indicator of obesity, hyperinsulinemia, IR and T2DM and detected by increased WC .⁶AN may appear prior to obesity.⁵ Obesity in adolescence increases the risk of heart diseases ⁸Regarding pathogenesis of AN, hyperinsulinemia leads to activation of IGF that causes proliferation of dermal fibroblast and epidermal keratinocytes. Friction and sweating may also causes AN.⁶Obesity causes negative stereotypes on cognitive functions and intelligence .Weight bias, stigmatization and discrimination which leads to physical and psychological hazards.⁵

The type A insulin resistance syndrome (HAIR-AN syndrome)⁻¹is associated with PCO.^{1,4,9}The type B insulin resistance syndrome presents as periocular AN.^{1,4}Acral AN is associated with NFP and dermato-fibrosarcoma.¹The Unilateral/Neavoid AN has no associations.¹Facial AN could be manifestation of impaired glucose tolerance, increase waist hip ratio and BMI. Mixed type AN, if >1 type of lesions are present in one patient. Drug induced AN is caused by nicotinic acid, OCP, corticosteroids and fucidic acid.^{1,4}The Malignant AN is associated with gastric carcinoma⁴presents with Tripe palms.⁸

Obesity can be associated with AN and MetS like IR, hyperinsulinemia, acne, T2DM, PCOs, HTN and dyslipidemia.^{2,3,5,9,10} AN is a good clinical indicator for impaired glucose tolerance. American Academy of pediatrics suggested AN being the evidence of IR clinically while ADA recommended AN as a risk factor for cardio metabolic problems in asymptomatic overweight children.AN in the neck and axillae is non-invasive, valuable and simple screening tool to determine T2DM and other comorbidities.

Obesity leads to risk of high BP and BMI is a good indicator for obese and overweight.⁷So far, very few local studies are available regarding AN associated with obesity (increased BMI and WC) HTN and T2DM.In our study we determined the frequency of AN in obese adolescents Vs adults in accordance with BMI and WC. This study will help us to identify the cases of AN to be screened for obesity and its associations like T2DM, HTN on the basis of gender, age and types of AN. Also, this study may help us to develop a clinical approach to diagnose and manage obesity, DM and HTN that are the systemic associations via skin presentation.

METHODOLOGY:

This hospital based cross sectional study enrolled AN cases

from outdoor clinic Department of Medicine Rawal institute of Health Sciences Islamabad after institutional review board approval (IRB letter number: RIHS-REC/059/21).Patients were selected by non-probability convenience sampling over five months duration (1st March to 31st Aug 2021).The sample size calculated to be 114 cases by WHO calculator(17.5% prevalence of acanthosis nigricans,5% precision and 95% CI).Cases referred to Medical Department from pediatrics OPD with clinical diagnosis of AN were included after informed consent (from patients and guardian).**Inclusion criteria:** Children & adolescents; both the genders of age group of 10-48 years. **Exclusion criteria:** Critically ill, underlying Addison's disease, pregnancy and malignancy. 57 adolescent AN cases were selected and 57 gender matched adults.

After the detailed history regarding onset, progression and duration of pigmentation and systemic co-morbidities like T2 DM, HTN and PCOS were documented. Dietary habits, drug history, personal, family history inquired. Menstrual and reproductive history were taken in females. General physical, systemic and detailed skin examination (neck, axillae, groin, sub mammary region, palms, soles and all mucous membranes checked) for AN. Weight in kg was measured by platform type digital electronic scale by keeping patients barefoot and height in meters measured by keeping patient upright with united foot. BMI calculated by CDC child and teen BMI calculator in which mentions age in years and months, gender, height in feet and inches/cm, weight in kg/lbs and calculated BMI by formula weigh in Kg/height (m²). Waist circumference was measured by flexible measuring tape from narrowest part of torso, midway between the lowest rib and iliac crest and noted in inches for central obesity after expiration. Blood pressure was measured in the right arm, at the level of heart in a sitting and resting position. The patients were classified on the basis of BMI as overweight or obese according to their age and height via using criteria by CDC child and teen BMI calculator. Relevant investigations were suggested as per indication in individual cases and data recorded in specifically design proforma.

Data were analyzed by SPSS version 21. Frequency and percentages were calculated for qualitative variables (gender, obesity, co-morbid, type of AN); mean with standard deviation for quantitative variables (age, height, weight, BMI, waist circumference). Shapiro-Wilk test was performed to assess the normality of the distribution of the variables, this showed that our data was non-normal. Chi-square test was used to compare qualitative variables between adolescents and adults. Mann-Whitney-U test was used to compare non-normally distributed continuous variables between two groups. The p-value < 0.05 was considered to be significant.

RESULTS:

In our study total number of cases were 114 in which half

57 were adolescents and half (57) were gender matched adults. There were 77(67.5%) females and 37(32.5%) males, both groups were comparable with respect to gender (p=0.841). The mean age was 17.99+4.72 (10–48 years range); 14.44+1.80 years(adolescents) Vs. 21.54+3.9 years adults)(p<0.0001). The mean height was 4.99+0.44 feet; 4.88+0.48 (adolescents) Vs. 5.09+0.39 (adults) (p=0.026). The mean weight was 70.66+14.18kg; 66.39+13.02(adolescents) Vs. 74.93+14.12kg (adults) (p=0.001). Mean waist circumference was 36+3.52(range 14-47 inches); 34.91+4.28 (adolescents) Vs. 37.10+2.07(adults) (p<0.0001). As per WHO criteria for adolescents and adults; obesity was seen in 44(77.2%) adolescents with AN Vs. 31(54.4%) adults

Table 1: The demographic variables, anthropometric measurements, site and types of acanthoses nigricans in adolescents Vs. Adults (n=114)

VARIABLES	n (%) n=114	Adolescents n=57	Adults n=57	P-value
Age(10-48yrs)	17.99+4.72	14.44+1.80	21.54+3.9	<0.0001
Height (3.5-5.9 ft)	4.99+0.44	4.88+0.48	5.09+0.39	0.026
Weight (30-120 kg)	70.66+14.18	66.39+13.02	74.93+14.12	0.001
Waist circumference				.0.0001
(14-47 inches)	36+3.52	34.91+4.28	37.10+2.07	<0.0001
Obesity				
Obese	75(65.8%)	44(77.2%)	31(54.4%)	0.010
Non-obese	39(34.2%)	13(22.8%)	26(45.6%)	
Gender				
Females	77(67.5%)	39(68.4%)	38(66.7%)	0.841
Males	37(32.5%)	18(31.6%)	19(33.3%)	
Site of AN				
Neck	113(99.1%)	57(100%)	56(98.2%)	0.315
Groin	88(77.2%)	43(75.4%)	45(78.9%)	0.655
Knuckles	61(53.5%)	28(49.1%)	33(57.9%)	0.338
Axilla	55(48.2%)	23(40.4%)	32(56.1%)	0.123
Sub-mammary	59(51.8%)	26(45.6%)	33(57.9%)	0.190
Types of AN*				
HAIR AN	61(53.5%)	32(56.1%)	29(50.9%)	0.573
Acral	14(12.3%)	05(8.8%)	09(15.8%)	0.302
Mixed AN	01(0.9%)	0(0%)	1(1.8%)	0.315
Unilateral AN	0(0%)	0(0%)	0(0%)	-
Syndromic	2(1.8%)	0(0%)	02(3.5%)	0.154
Benign AN	111(97.4%)	56(98.2%)	55(96.5%)	0.558
Diabetes mellitus				
Diabetic	31(27.2%)	14(24.6%)	17(29.8%)	0.528
Non-diabetic	83(72.8%)	43(75.4%)	40(70.2%)	
PCO (n=77 females)	62(80.5%)	30(76.9%)	32(84.2%)	0.707
Hypertension	27(23.7%)	6(10.5%)	21(36.8%)	0.001
Autoimmune	36(31.6%)	13(22.8%)	23(40.4%)	0.044
Drug induced	0(0%)	0(0%)	0(0%)	-
Familial	0(0%)	0(0%)	0(0%)	-

with AN (p=0.010). Over all, among the 114 cases of AN, 75(65.8%) were obese and 39(34.2%) were non-obese (*fig* 1)

Regarding site of AN, neck was the most common site 113(99.1%). This was followed by groin 88(77.2%), knuckles 61(53.5%), sub-mammary region 59(51.8%) and axillae 55(48.2%)(fig. 2). and Regarding types of AN, the benign type was most common i.e., found in 111(97.4%) in our study; 56(98.2%) in adolescents and 55 (96.5%) in adults (p=0.558), followed by HAIR-AN syndrome 61(53.5%) and acral AN 14(12.3%). Only 2(1.8%) syndromic types and one case of mixed type were noted in our study. Not a single case reported of unilateral variety in our study. Regarding associated conditions and co-morbid, DM observed in 31(27.2%) AN cases and 83(72.8%) AN cases were nondiabetic. Diabetes was seen in 14(24.6%) adolescents Vs. 17(29.8%) adults (p=0.528). PCOs seen in 62(80.5\%) out of total 77 females with AN with no difference between adolescents and adults (p>0.05). Hypertension were seen in 27(23.7%) cases of AN, hypertension was much more common in adults with AN 21(36.8%)Vs. adolescents 6(10.5%) (p=0.001). Autoimmune conditions were seen in 36(31.6%) AN cases and no case were found of drug induced and familial variety of AN.

Fig 1: Bar graph representing sites of Acanthosis Nigricans in Adolescents Vs. Adult cases (n=114)



Fig 2: Bar graph presentation of various type of acanthosis nigricans in Adolescents Vs. Adults (n=114)



DISCUSSION:

AN is a skin condition that is featured by brown/black velvety plaques in skin folds and associated with syndromes, hereditary disorders, DM, Hypothyroidism, Addison's disease ,Cushing Syndrome and hypogonadal syndromes.^{6,11} Prevalence of AN varies from 74% in Obese persons and 7% involves unselected population.¹² AN acts as skin marker for malignancy, IR and metabolic syndromes(Mets)in overweight/obese children and adolescents.^{13,14} AN secondary to obesity is related to IR, increased insulin level in the blood.^{15,16} The pediatric obesity is related to increased risk of prevalence and incidence of T2DM in childhood which is associated with higher risk of micro(nephropathy, retinopathy and neuropathy)and macrovascular complications (like myocardial infarction and stroke).¹⁷

In our study, we took 114 patients in which 57 were Adolescence and adults in each group. The age range was 10-48 years. Out of 114, 75 (65.8%) were obese in which 44 (77.2%) were adolescent and 31 (54.4%) were adults; obesity was more in adolescents than adults.

Regarding gender in our study, we had 77 (67.5%) females in which 39(68.4%) were adolescent females and 38(66.7%) were adult females. There were 37(32.5%) adolescent males and 18(31.6%) adult males, our study had more females than males presenting with AN. Study by Munise daye showed more obese females as compared to males in their study¹⁵ Study conducted by Wolters Kluwer had same findings, i.e., more females than males. The ratio was 2:1.² In our study, the mean BMI was 31.63 ± 6.92 while more in adolescents 34.4 ± 6.92 than in adults 26.45±2.66 but the difference in BMI was not statistically significant *(p>0.05)*. In study by Ashraf, ¹¹ the mean BMI was same as in our study i.e., 31.8 ± 3.9.

Regarding obesity, among 75(65.8%) obese cases as per criteria of BMI by WHO, we observed obesity in 44(77.2%) in adolescents and 31(54.4%) in adults (p=0.010) that is quite significant. While Prakash found 47% obesity in adults in his study that is slightly higher than our study.²Generally, obesity is a result from imbalance of energy when intake exceeds from requirement of body. However, it is a complex problem that results from genetic predisposition, environmental factors, human behavior and policy interventions but furthermore, gut flora, epigenetic modifications, viral infections and some psychological factors may also be involved in the pathogenesis of obesity in childhood and adolescents. Previous studies suggested that obesity in childhood exerts adverse effects on health throughout life if not tackled in childhood and cardiovascular risk can be minimized if obese adolescent becomes a nonobese adult.⁵

Regarding Waist circumference, we found this to be 37.03 \pm 3 inches in our study. In adults it was 37.7 \pm 4.25 and in adolescents 35.769 \pm 1.93 inches. A study by Shiva Prakash¹⁸

found mean WC 27(50%) in patients with AN. The WC shows the central obesity and cut off for Asian females is 80cm while in males is 85cm. There is an increased prevalence of AN if WC is 90cm or above. Similarly, decreased occurrence of AN if WC = 90 cm. Hence, if patients have BMI 30 kg/m2 or more than that with WC 90 cm or above he may have AN as a marker for IR. Obesity is a known risk factor for the T2DM & IR.^{19,20}Waist circumference is a cost-effective measure, this is not only the good anthropometric measurement to detect abdominal obesity but also an independent guider for insulin resistance.

IDF suggests children of age group of six years, the 90th percentile as a waist circumference but hasn't explained the waist circumference cut off point for less than six years of age in children. Previous studies in the US suggested use of waist circumference for insulin resistance or metabolic syndrome or cardiovascular risk rather than BMI in clinical settings. Studies in the US on children and adolescents suggested cardiovascular risk for waist circumference cut off point at 94th percentile for boys and for girls at 84th percentile. A single measurement of waist circumference cut point in different genders and ethnic groups may be easy to apply but less sensitive to diagnose metabolic syndrome in children.⁷

Regarding the site of AN, out of 114 patients we found the commonest site of AN is neck in 113 (99.1%) cases in which 57(100%) in adolescence & 56(98.2%) in adults (P=0.315). Study by Hasan A Kobaissi found neck involvement in 131(73%) subjects with AN which showed more neck involvement in patients with AN than we found in our study.²⁰Nisha² found more neck involvement which coincides with our results. Neck involvement was followed by groin 88 (77.2%), 43 (75.4%) in adolescence and 56 (98.2%) in adults (P=0.655), knuckles 61 (53.5%) and axilla in 55 (48.2%). Study by Rodriguez found knuckles, the commonest site of AN (21.6%). The results did not match with our study while Rodriguez found knuckles is a positive value for specificity of AN while detecting HOMA-IR levels more than 90th percentiles in their study.²¹

The neck involvement is the most common site in children and maximum involvement of neck and axillae is due to perspiration or friction and these two sites are the indicator of metabolic risk. Mechanical trauma may be important cause for proliferation of epidermal keratinocytes.²² Helaisa Marcelina found neck, the most common site (93-99%) followed by axillae (73%).⁶.

Regarding types of AN, out of 114, Benign AN was found in 111(97.4%), the most common type in our study which is followed by HAIR–AN syndrome (includes high insulin resistance, obesity and hyperinsulinemia).²³ Benign type is the indicator for IR secondary to obesity.²⁴We found HAIR-AN syndrome, the 2nd most common type 61(53.5%) in which 32(56.1%) were adolescents and 29(50.9%) adults

(p=0.573). HAIR-AN syndrome can be caused by adipose cell dysfunction.22

In our study, out of 114, 83(72.8%) were non diabetic and 31 (27.2%) were diabetic, more were non diabetic than diabetic (P=0.523), also more Diabetes in adults than in adolescents in our study. The previous pediatric obesity related studies showed increase incidence and prevalence of childhood T2DM which is not supported to our study. ADA classifies T2DM as a condition caused by progressive loss of beta cells by pancreas that secretes insulin in a person of IR. The ADA recommended for screening of the children and adolescents from 10 years old or above it who are overweight with BMI more than 85th percentiles for that age and sex or obese person with BMI more than 95th percentile for that age and sex. Childhood T2DM is usually developed during puberty and females are more commonly affected than males while age related type T2DM is more common in adult males than females. The cause of this difference is due to increased muscle mass and decreased fat mass in adolescent boys and increased physical exertion and increased sensitivity of insulin in boys than girls.¹¹

Regarding PCO in our study, out of 114, 77 females in which 62(80.5%) had PCOs. Study published by Wolters Kluwer showed 30% AN found in patients with PCO.³

Hypertension was seen in 27(23.7%) patients in our study that was more prevalent in adults (p=0.001) that is quite significant. Munise Daye¹⁵ in his study showed 10.8% had an increase systolic blood pressure and 12.1% with Diastolic blood pressure which is lower blood pressure than we found in our study. Persistent high insulin level leads to developing HTN. Thus, there is an association between AN and HTN which is a clinical sign for suspicion of early cardiovascular alterations.6

Sorof et al found increased prevalence of HTN if BMI percentiles increase from normal weight (2%) to over weight (11%) and Steinberg, Daniels et al found that HTN is a highrisk factor for common conditions so it should be track from childhood to adulthood.⁷

CONCLUSION:

Acanthosis nigricans is a common major cosmetic skin concern and important pathological problem among obese in our population. In our study, benign and HAIR-AN were most frequent types which is associated with obesity, increased BMI, raised waist circumference and increased hypertension in adolescents and adult groups. Hence, it is suggested to screen all adolescents and adults with acanthosis nigricans for obesity, DM, hypertension, PCO's, autoimmune conditions and IR regardless of age or gender. This may lead to identification of systemic disorders in dermatologically presenting acanthosis nigricans. Here, we may conclude that the early diagnosis of acanthosis in obese cases may improve quality of life of patients, prevent systemic complications and improved outcome.

- **Authors Contribution:**
- Furquana Niaz: Contributed to the conception, design, data collection, analysis and interpretation of data, Drafted the
- article and revising it critically for important intellectual content, final approval of the version to be published, submitted in the iournal

L

1

- Nadia Shams: Contributed to the conception, design, data
- collection, analysis and interpretation of data, Drafted the article and revising it critically for important intellectual content,
- I
- final approval of the version to be published
- Naresh Kumar: Contributed to the conception, design, data collection
- Irfan Sheikh: Contributed to the conception, design, data collection
- Naver-ul-Islam: Contributed to the conception, design, data collection
- Najia Ahmed: Contributed to the conception, design, data
- collection

REFERENCES:

- Das A, Misra P, Panda S. Childhood acanthosis nigricans. Indian Journal of Paediatric Dermatology. 2019;20(3):199-204. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.4103/ijpd.IJPD_34_18.
- 2. Prakash N, Kumar YH, Belliappa PR. A descriptive case-Control study of 100 patients of acanthosis nigricans and its utility to detect metabolic syndrome. Clinical Dermatology Review. 2020; 4(1):17-22. DOI: https://www.ijpd.in/text. asp?2019/20/3/199/261877.
- 3. Sayarifard F, Sayarifard A, Allahverdi B, Ipakchi S, Moghtaderi M & Yaghmaei B, et al. Prevalence of acanthosis nigricans and related factors in Iranian obese children. Journal of clinical and diagnostic research:2017: 11(7).DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.7860/JCDR/2017/24902.10203.
- Das A. Datta D. Kassir M. Wollina U. Galadari H. Lotti T. et 4. al. Acanthosis nigricans: A review. Journal of Cosmetic Dermatology. 2020; 19(8):1857-1865. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.1111/jocd.13544.
- 5. Ng HY. Acanthosis nigricans in obese adolescents: prevalence, impact, and management challenges. Adolescent health, medicine and therapeutics. 2017; 8:1-10. DOI: https://doi .org/10.2147/AHMT.S103396.
- Palhares H, Zaidan PC, Dib F, Silva A, Resende D & Borges 6. MF, et al. Association between acanthosis nigricans and other cardiometabolic risk factors in children and adolescents with overweight and obesity. Revista Paulista de Pediatria. 2018;36: 301-308. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1590/1984-0462/;2018; 36; 3:00017.
- 7. Wolff C, Hoang S, Flannery D, Wermuth L .Diet, Overweight, Elevated Blood Pressure, and Acanthosis Nigricans Among K-9th Grade Native American Students. Californian Journal of Health Promotion. 2006; 4(4):77-87. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/1 0.32398/cjhp.v4i4.1989.
- 8 Lopez-Alvarenga JC, Chittoor G, Paul SF, Puppala S, Farook VS, Fowler SP, et al. Acanthosis nigricans as a composite marker of cardiometabolic risk and its complex association with obesity and insulin resistance in Mexican American children. PloS one. 2020;15(10):e0240467. DOI: https://doi. org/10.1371/journal.pone.0240467.
- 9. Feng, JG, Guo Y, Ma LA, Xing J, Sun RF & Zhu W, et al. Prevalence of dermatologic manifestations and metabolic biomarkers in women with polycystic ovary syndrome in north China. Journal of cosmetic dermatology. 2018;17 (3):511-17. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1111/jocd.12387.

- Adibi N, Robati RM. Skin and metabolic syndrome: A review of the possible associations. J Res Med Sci. 2021; 26 :16. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4103/jrms.JRMS_585_20.
- 11. Soliman AT, Al-Suwaid AR, Gamil H, Asfour M. Prevalence and significance of acanthosis nigricans in children and adolescents. Annals of Saudi medicine. 1996;16(4):424-428. DOI: https://doi.org/10.5144/0256-4947.1996.424.
- 12. Jorwal P, Keshwani P, Verma R. Association of acanthosis nigricans with anthropometric and biochemical parameters in young Indian males: Annals of Nigerian Medicine:2014: 8(2):65-68. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4103/0331-3131.153354.
- 13. Maguolo A, Maffeis C. Acanthosis nigricans in childhood: A cutaneous marker that should not be underestimated, especially in obese children. Acta Paediatr. 2020:109(3):481-487. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1111/1346-8138.12052.
- Verma S, Vasani R, Joshi R, Phiske M, Punjabi P, Toprani T, et al. A descriptive study of facial acanthosis nigricans and its association with body mass index, waist circumference and insulin resistance using HOMA2 IR. Indian Dermatol Online J. 2016; 7(6):498-503. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4103/ 2229-5178.193898.
- Daye M, Eklioglu BS, Atabek ME. Relationship of acanthosis nigricans with metabolic syndrome in obese children. Journal of Pediatric Endocrinology and Metabolism. 2020; 33(12):1563-1568. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1515/jpem-2020-0154.
- Zhu C, Cui R, Gao M, Rampersad S, You H, Sheng C, et al. The Associations of Serum Uric Acid with Obesity-Related Acanthosis nigricans and Related Metabolic Indices. Int J Endocrinol. 2017:5438157:1-9. DOI:https://doi.org/10. 1155/2017/5438157.
- Reinehr T. Type 2 diabetes mellitus in children and adolescents. World journal of diabetes. 2013; 4(6):270-281. DOI: https://doi. org/10.4239/wjd.v4.i6.270.

- 18. G S, A B, Kamath A, Shivaprakash P, Adhikari P , Up R, et al . Acanthosis nigricans in PCOS patients and its relation with type 2 diabetes mellitus and body mass at a tertiary care hospital in southern India. Journal of Clinical and Diagnostic Research: JCDR.2013; 7(2): 317–319. DOI: https://doi.org/10.7860/JCDR/2013/4930.2756.
- Xi B, Zong X, Kelishadi R, Litwin M, Hong YM, Poh BK, et al. International Waist Circumference Percentile Cutoffs for Central Obesity in Children and Adolescents Aged 6 to 18 Years. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2020; 105 (4):e1569e1583. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1210/clinem/dgz195.
- 20. Kobaissi HA, Weigensberg MJ, Ball GD, Cruz ML, Shaibi GQ, Goran MI, et al. Relation between acanthosis nigricans and insulin sensitivity in overweight Hispanic children at risk for type 2 diabetes. Diabetes Care.2004; 27(6):1412-6. DOI: https://doi.org/10.2337/diacare.27.6.1412.
- Rodríguez-Gutiérrez R, de la O-Cavazos ME, Salcido-Montenegro A, Sanchez-Garcia A, Gomez-Flores M, Gonzalez-Nava V, et al. Acanthosis Nigricans in the Knuckles of Infants: A Novel Clinical Marker of High Metabolic Risk. Diabetes Therapy. 2019:10(6):2169-81.DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/ s13300-019-00703-1.
- Popa ML, Popa AC, Tanase C, Gheorghisan-Galateanu AA. Acanthosis nigricans: To be or not to be afraid. Oncol Lett. 2019:17(5):4133-4138.DOI: https://doi.org/10.3892/ol.2018 .9736.
- 23. Agrawal K, Mathur R, Purwar N, Mathur SK, Mathur DK. Hyperandrogenism, Insulin Resistance, and Acanthosis Nigricans (HAIR-AN) Syndrome Reflects Adipose Tissue Dysfunction ("Adiposopathy" or "Sick Fat") in Asian Indian Girl. Dermatology 2021;237 :797 -805. DOI: https://doi.org/10. 1159/000512918.
- 24. Fasunla JA, Ijaduola GT. Acanthosis nigricans in the head and neck region. Ann Ib Postgrad Med. 2008;6(1):53-56. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4314/aipm.v6i1.64043.

Evaluation of Hematological, Coagulation and Inflammatory Parameters in COVID-19 in a Tertiary Care Setting of Sindh, Pakistan

Faiz us Saba, Zunera Sajjad, Ayesha Khan, Muhammad Iqbal, Muhammad Faisal Faheem, Nabeela Khan

ABSTRACT

Objective: COVID-19 is caused by SARS-CoV-2. Although pulmonary manifestations have been identified as the major symptoms, several hematological abnormalities play a vital role in disease treatment and monitoring. This study summarizes the hematological abnormalities (platelets, white blood cells, hemoglobin, coagulation alterations) as well as changes in inflammatory markers.

Study Design And Setting: A retrospective cross-sectional study was conducted among PCR positive COVID-19 patients. The study was conducted at pathology department of CMH Malir between Aug 2021 and Jan 2022.

Methodology: All the individuals with positive real-time reverse transcription-polymerase chain reaction (PCR) results were involved in the study. One hundred and twenty six COVID-19 patients were included using convenience sampling. Six ml venous blood was collected and analyzed. The data were entered and analyzed using SPSS version 23.

Results: Among 126 patients different hematological and inflammatory parameters were noted. Significantly raised CRP, ESR in 96.8% and 92.9% were noted respectively. Other parameters like raised D-dimers was found in 60.3%, leukocytosis 65.1%, neutrophilia in 62.7%. Significantly elevated neutrophil lymphocyte ratio was seen in 62% of patients. Parameters like anemia and prolonged PT / APTT were not significant.

Conclusion: The study concluded that CRP, ESR, leukocytosis, neutrophilia, elevated Neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio and D-dimers are significantly raised among serious patients with COVID-19 disease and can be used as monitoring, prognosis and severity index.

Keywords: COVID-19, hematological parameters, neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio.

How to cite this Article:

Saba FU, Sajjad Z, Khan A, Iqbal M, Faheem MF, Khan N. Evaluation of Hematological, Coagulation and Inflammatory Parameters in COVID-19 in a Tertiary Care Setting of Sindh, Pakistan. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):93-6 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10. 51985/JBUMDC2022086

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Faiz us Saba MCPS Trg, Department of Pathology PNS SHIFA Hospital, Karachi Email: sfaizus@yahoo.com
Zunera Sajjad (Corresponding Author) Pathologist, Department of Pathology PNS RAHAT, Karachi Email: zunerasajjad_1@yahoo.com
Ayesha Khan Pathologist, Department of Pathology Combine Military Hospital Malir, Karachi Email: aysharao@yahoo.com
Muhammad Iqbal Pathologist, Department of Pathology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi Email: iqbal2763@gmail.com
Muhammad Faisal Faheem Statistician Bahria University Health Sciences, Karachi Email: faisalfahim88@hotmail.com
Nabeela Khan Pathologist, Department of Pathology Pakistan Ordinance Factories Wah Hospital, Punjab Email: haem14488@gmail.com
Received: 09-06-2022 Accepted: 27-03-2023

INTRODUCTION:

December 2019 was the beginning of a new era in the medical world, when the world was hit by an outbreak of cluster of pneumonia cases. The cause was found out to be a novel corona-virus. It was formally designated as COVID -19 by WHO in Feb 2020, and name of the virus was decided as severe acute respiratory syndrome corona-virus 2 (SARS-COV-2).

It was highly contagious among close contacts and in two months it was spread to the whole world affecting 213 countries. It was declared as the deadliest pandemic in the history affecting more than 253 million and causing 5 million deaths till Nov 2021.³

In Pakistan around 1.53 million confirmed cases of COVID-19 have been reported with 30,379 deaths so far.⁴ COVID-19 is a multiorgan disease affecting pulmonary, cardiovascular, neurological, musculoskeletal, gastrointestinal and hematological system. It is a very diverse disease and shows a magnitude of symptoms of varying severity. Some patients remain asymptomatic while others develop severe life-threatening complications resulting in death.⁵ Good patient management requires early diagnosis, isolation and Evaluation of Hematological, Coagulation and Inflammatory Parameters in COVID-19 in a Tertiary Care Setting of Sindh, Pakistan

risk stratification of patients.6

COVID-19 significantly affects the hemostasis and the hematopoietic system. The PCR is the gold standard investigation for diagnosing covid but it is not widely available specially in villages and far flung areas of developing country like Pakistan. In this setting, one of the commonest and earliest investigation advised for the suspected COVID-19 patients is complete blood count (CBC). It is easiest, quickest, widely available and one of the most reliable tests which helps not only in the diagnosis but also in prognosis of the disease. The virus also causes cytopenia, neutrophilia, thrombocytopenia and coagulopathies.⁷ Commonly affected parameters include platelet count, absolute lymphocyte count, neutrophil count, NLR ratio and D dimers.⁸

We carried out this study to determine hematological, coagulation and inflammatory markers in hospitalized PCR positive covid patients which can be used as a monitoring tool and give an idea about disease severity as well. Furthermore, these parameters can also give us an idea where PCR facility is not available so the suspected patients may be timely isolated, referred and managed at the desired facility.

METHODOLOGY:

This retrospective cross-sectional research was organized and managed at the Department of Pathology, in CMH Malir, a tertiary care hospital in Karachi. The study data was collected from the hospital records from 1st Aug 2021 to 31st Jan 2022. The study was conducted after approval from Hospital Ethical Review Committee (IRB no.70/2021/Trg / ERC). Sample size was calculated using WHO calculator.⁸ Informed consent about the sampling and research was taken from patients or their families.

All cases which were confirmed positive after PCR testing were included in study. PCR positive patients managed outdoors were excluded from the study irrespective of their signs and symptoms.

Nasopharyngeal swabs were collected by using the recommended and standardized technique. The nasal swabs were then tested by PCR for corona virus. Further laboratory tests were performed on only those patients who turned out to be positive. Complete blood picture (Hb, WBC, platelet, neutrophil, lymphocyte), coagulation profile (PT/ APTT), D-dimer, ESR and CRP were performed.

For CBC, 3ml sample was collected in EDTA and run on haematology analyzer celtac-alpha by Nihon Kohden. For coagulation profile 2 ml venous sample was collected in Trisodium citrate bottle. PT/APTT was performed on ACL 7000 analyzer, whereas latex agglutination method detected D-Dimers with cut off value of 200ng/ml. 1 ml venous sample was taken and CRP was performed using a spectrophotometric assay. ESR was performed by westergrens methodology using automated roller 20 LC.

Following definitions were used during CBC interpretation:

Anemia : Hb <13 x g /dl in males and Hb < 11x g /dL in females.

Neutrophilia: Absolute neutrophil count > 8000/ul.

NLR ratio: The calculation of neutrophil-to-lymphocyte ratio was carried out by simple division method. In normal adults its value is 3.5.

Thrombocytopenia; Defined as platelet count of < 150 x 10^{9} /l.

CRP: More than 6ng/l is taken as positive.

ESR : > 15mmHg in males and > 10 mmHg in females is taken as increased.

The information was entered and interpreted using Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS) version 23. Outcomes were framed as frequencies. To calculate P value, Chi square test was applied. A P-value of less than 0.05 was taken as significant.

RESULTS:

In this study, out of 126 admitted patients most of the presenting patients were male. The male comprised of 62 % of total while females were about 38.1 %. The age distribution is as under:

In this research, the extent of high white blood count, neutrophilia and lymphopenia is found to be 65.1%, 62.7% and 64.2% respectively. Anemia was present in 23.8 % cases. Abnormal neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio was relatively more common (62%). On the otherhand CRP and ESR, D-dimers were significantly raised which were 96.8%, 92.95 and 60.3% respectively. Clotting factors PT and APTT were found to be normal in majority of patients, while inflammatory markers D-dimers and CRP were raised with a significant association P-value 0.00 and 0.028 respectively. The magnitude of raise ESR was found to be higher in most of cases i.e (92.9%).

DISCUSSION:

Anemia is one of the important clinical manifestation that has been observed with SARS-CoV-2 infection. Anemia occurs due to the changes in immune mediated system of

Table 1: Gender and age distribution of patients.

GENDER	Frequency (N=126)	Percent
Male	78	61.9
Female	48	38.1
Age	Frequency	Percent
17-35	46	36.5
36-55	41	32.5
>=56	39	31.0
Total	126	100.0

Teat	Nor	mal	Abnormal		
Test	Frequency	Percentage	Frequency Percentag		
D DIMERS	50	39.7	76	60.3	
CRP	4	3.2	122	96.8	
ESR	9	7.1	117	92.9	
РТ	116	92.1	10	7.9	
APTT	120	95.2	06	4.8	
Hb	96	76.2	30	23.8	
WBC	44	35	82	65.1	
NEUTROPHILS	47	37.3	79	62.7	
LYMPHOCYTES	45	35	81	64.2	
PLATELETS	101	80	25	19.8	
NLR	48	38.1	78	62	

Table 2: Significance of haematological and inflammatory parameters in Covid 29 Patients

Neutrophils to lymphocytic ratio was raised (62 %) with significant p value of 0.00

iron metabolism and homeostasis. It is quite commonly seen in elderly suffering from covid. Although it does not directly affect the mortality but it can have negative impact on the life quality of frail and elderly population. The extent of anemia in our study was found to be 23.8 %, which is comparable to a study conducted by Bellmann-Weiler et al where 24.7% of the patients were anemic and anemia was secondary to inflammation in majority of the cases.⁹ However in another study, it was found to be much more common as compared our study. In this research conducted by Tao et al, it was reported to be 35.5%. This research concluded that anemia aggravates the disease and is an independent risk factor for increasing severity of disease.¹⁰

Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) showed cases of leukopenia in (9–25%), leukocytosis in (24–30%), and lymphopenia in (63%) covid patients who reported in hospital with pneumonia.¹¹ In another research article by Guan et al of China which analyzed 1099 patients from 552 different hospitals and verified that 33.7%, 36.2% and 83.2%, of COVID-19 patients had leukopenia, low platelets and lymphopenias respectively. Lymphocytopenia was the most prominent finding in this research.¹² These abnormalities were more evident in severely ill patients as compared to non-severe patients. The parameters like neutrophilia, lymphopenia and raised neutrophil-to-lymphocyte ratio (NLR) have strong association with risk of acute respiratory distress syndrome (ARDS) development requiring ICU (intensive care unit) care. Similarly, some other studies demonstrated that there is association of leukocytosis, thrombocytopenia, lymphopenia and high neutrophil count with poor prognosis and critical care requirement.¹²

In our study neutrophilia and leukocytosis was found significantly increased similarly, in majority of studies conducted among acutely ill patients. However, the commonest finding was found to be neutrophilia and lymphopenia was not a significant finding in our case. One

of the study by Qin et al among 138 indoor patients showed that neutrophilia was significantly higher in critically ill ICU patients (77.6%) which was comparable to our study.¹³ In another research conducted by Gong et al also had similar results with (P<0.001).¹⁴ Neutrophilia was associated with bad outcome which was also shown by Li et al.¹⁵ Another study by Zhang et al among 82 dead COVID-19 patients also revealed that 74.3% of them had neutrophilia on admission and this increased to 100% in 24 hours before death.¹⁶ There could be relationship of neutrophilia with the cytokine storm which is the characteristic of disease severity. One of the possibilities of high neutrophil count could be due to bacterial co-infection. One of study in China revealed that leukocytosis on admission of COVID-19 patients was associated with increased risk of death in hospital. In another research by Zhou et al⁹ it is elaborated that non-survivors had more significant leukocytosis than the survivors (P<0.001).¹⁷

Neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio was high with significant value. Our study showed significant NLR ratio in 62 % of patients. According to a similar study conducted by Yang AP et al, some independent factors to indicate poor prognosis in COVID-19 patients include age and higher neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio.¹⁸

C-reactive protein is an acute phase reactant which rises in response to any inflammatory condition in body. Levels of CRP may increase with inflammation in respiratory diseases.¹⁹ In these studies, critical covid patients in ICU revealed significantly raised CRP levels which is due to the aggressive inflammatory response described in association with severe disease and cytokine storm.²⁰

We found significantly raised D-dimers levels among 60.1% patients. Coagulation parameters like prothrombin time (PT) and activated partial prothrombin time (APTT) do not reveal any significance. However, raised D-dimer levels are reported to be one of the significant prognostic factors in COVID-19 pneumonia.²¹ Another research conducted in 2020 by Guo et al, revealed association of disease severity and poor outcome with raised levels of D-dimer.²²

Most of the patients under study revealed normal platelets. Only mild decrease in platelet counts were noted in around 19.8 % of patients. Same findings were observed in a research by Chen N who reported mild thrombocytopenia in 20% of cases.²³ Similarly according to a French cohort, mild thrombocytopenia was reported in one fourth of COVID-19 admitted patients and it was reported to be an independent predictive risk factor for intensive care monitoring, ventilatory support or even death.²⁴

The population under study was from similar demographic area and were the admitted patients who required monitoring and management therefore further verification is needed in different areas and in outdoor patients with mild symptoms. Outdoor patients were not included in the study. Evaluation of Hematological, Coagulation and Inflammatory Parameters in COVID-19 in a Tertiary Care Setting of Sindh, Pakistan

I

CONCLUSION:

Our study showed that neutrophilia, leucocytosis, raised Neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio, CRP, ESR and D-dimers are important parameters among patients with COVID-19. COVID-19 disease directly affects the hematological, coagulation and inflammatory bio-markers so they should be used not only for prognosis but also to predict and intervene with effective management plan before the disease triggers to severe crisis, end organ failure or inflammatory storm.

Authors Contribution: I

Faiz us Saba: Data analysis

- Zunera Sajjad: Conception and design of article L Ayesha Khan: Data collection and design of article
- Muhammad Iqbal: Design of article
- I
- Muhammad Faisal Faheem: Application of stats and data I analysis
- Nabeela Khan: Proof reading and reference writing

REFERENCE:

- 1. Firas A, Rabi MSAZ, Kasasbeh GA, Salameh DM, Amjad DA-N. SARS-CoV-2 and coronavirus disease 2019: what we know so far. Pathogens.2020 ; 9(3):231.DOI:http:// doi.org/ 10.3390/pathogens9030231.
- Fan BE, Ching VCL, Chan SSW, et al. Hematologic parameters 2. in patients with COVID-19 infection. Am J Hematol.2020; 95(6): E131-E134. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1002/ajh.25774.
- Mathieu E, Ritchie H, Guirao LR, Appel C, Gavrilov D, 3. Giattino C et al. Coronavirus Pandemic (COVID-19). Published online at Our World in Data. Retrieved 2021-11-14.
- Pakistan Cases Details COVID-19 Health Advisory Platform 4.
- Vetter P, Vu DL, L Huillier AG, Schibler M, Kaiser L, 5. Jacquerioz F. Clinical features of covid-19.BMJ. 2020;369:m1470. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1136/ bmj.m1470.
- Hellewell J, Abbott S, Gimma A, et al. Feasibility of controlling 6. COVID-19 outbreaks by isolation of cases and contacts. Lancet Glob Health.2020;8(4):e488-e496. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1016/S2214-109X(20)30074-7.
- Fan BE Chong VCL, Chann SSW ,et al. Hematological parameters in patients with covid 19 infection. Am J Hematol.2020;95(11):1442. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1002/ ajh.25774
- Sharif F, Khan S, Junaid A, Jahangir S, Saeed M, Ijaz M, et 8. al. Early hematological indicators of severe covid 19 disease in hospitalized patients. Data from South Asian population. Int J Lab Hematol.2021;43(5):1237-1242. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1111/ijlh.13533
- 9 Bellmann-Weiler R, Lanser L, Barket R, Rangger L, Schapfl A, Schaber M, et al. Prevalence and Predictive Value of Anemia and Dysregulated Iron Homeostasis in Patients with COVID-19 Infection. J Clin Med. 2020 ;9(8):2429. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.3390/jcm9082429.
- 10. Tao Z, Xu J, Chen W, Yang Z, Xu X, Liu L, et al. Anemia is associated with severe illness in COVID-19: A retrospective cohort study. J Med Virol. 2021;93(3):1478-1488. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1002/jmv.26444.

- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Interim clinical 11. guidance for management of patients with confirmed Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) 2020.
- 12. Guan WJ, Ni ZY, Hu Y, Liang WH, Ou CQ, He JX, et al. Clinical characteristics of coronavirus disease 2019 in China. N Engl J Med. 2020; 382:1708-1720. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1056/NEJMoa2002032.
- 13. Qin C, Zhou L, Hu Z, Zhang S, Yang S, Tao Y, et al. Dysregulation of immune response in patients with COVID-19 in Wuhan, China. Clin Infect Dis. 2020;71 (15):762–768. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1093/cid/ciaa248.
- 14. Gong J, Ou J, Qiu X, Jie Y, Chen Y, Yuan L, et al. A Tool for Early Prediction of Severe Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19): A Multicenter Study Using the Risk Nomogram in Wuhan and Guangdong, China. Clin Infect Dis. 2020;71(15):833-840. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1093/cid/ciaa443.
- 15. Li Q, Cao Y, Chen L, Wu D, Yu J, Wang H, et al. Hematological features of persons with COVID-19. Leukemia. 2020;34(8):2163-2172. DOI:http://doi.org/10.1038/s41375-020-0910-1.
- 16. Zhang B, Zhou X, Qiu Y, Song Y, Feng F, Feng J, Wang J, et al. Clinical characteristics of 82 cases of death from COVID-19. PLoS One. 2020;15(7): e0235458. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0235458.
- 17. Zhou P, Yang XL, Wang XG, Hu B, Zhang L, Zhang W, et al. A pneumonia outbreak associated with a new coronavirus of probable bat origin. Nature. 2020;579(7798):270-273. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1038/s41586-020-2012-7.
- 18. Yang AP, Liu JP, Tao WQ, Li HM. The diagnostic and predictive role of NLR, d-NLR and PLR in COVID-19 patients. Int Immunopharmacol. 2020; 84: 106504. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1016/j.intimp.2020.106504.
- 19. Agustí C, Rañó A, Rovira M, Filella X, Benito N, Moreno A, et al. A. Inflammatory response associated with pulmonary complications in non-HIV immunocompromised patients. Thorax. 2004 ;59(12):1081-8. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1136/ thx.2004.030551.
- 20. Marnell L, Mold C, Du Clos TW. C-reactive protein: ligands, receptors and role in inflammation. Clin Immunol. 2005; 117(2):104-11.DOI:http://doi.org/10.1016/j.clim. 2005.08.004.
- 21. Gavriatopoulou M, Korompoki E, Fotiou D, Ntanasis-Stathopoulos I, Psaltopoulou T, Kastritis E, et al. Organspecific manifestations of COVID-19 infection. Clin Exp Med. 2020 ;20(4):493-506. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1007/ s10238-020-00648-x.
- 22. Guo YR, Cao QD, Hong ZS, Tan YY, Chen SD, Jin HJ, et al. The origin, transmission and clinical therapies on coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak - an update on the status. Mil Med Res. 2020 ;7(1):11. DOI:http:// doi.org/10.1186/ s40779-020-00240-0.
- 23. Chen N, Zhou M, Dong X, et al. Epidemiological and clinical characteristics of 99 cases of 2019 novel coronavirus pneumonia in Wuhan, China: a descriptive study. Lancet. 2020;395:507-513.DOI;http//doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(20)30211-7.
- 24. Maguet J, Lafaurie M, Sommet A et al. Thrombocytopenia is independently associated with poor outcome in patients hospitalized for COVID-19. British Journal of Haematology. 2020; 10. DOI;http//doi.org/1111/bjh.16950

Injection Sclerotherapy vs Rubber Band Ligation in the Management of Patients with 2nd Degree Haemorrhoids

Zahid Raza, Muhammad Jalil, Waseem Ahmad Khan, Jehanzeb Rahman, Shahid Abbas, Shahid Mahmood

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To compare the efficacy of injection sclerotherapy and rubber band ligation in patients with 2^{nd} degree haemorrhoids.

Study design & Setting: Prospective Observational study was conducted in PNS Shifa Karachi from 1st July 2018 to 31st March 2019.

Methodology: A total of 240 patients of both genders, known cases of 2nd degree haemorrhoids were included in the study. Patients with a known history of liver cirrhosis, previous history of haemorrhoidectomy, severe anaemia uncontrolled hypertension and patient requiring additional intervention post-procedure were excluded. Patients were randomized to either the injection sclerotherapy Group A or rubber band ligation Group B by lottery method. Final assessment was done at 6-months post-procedure regarding the effect of treatment on rectal bleeding.

Results: The age range in this study was from 18 to 65 years with a mean of 36.641 ± 7.00 years in Group A while 35.700 ± 5.65 years in Group B. Mean BMI was 26.525 ± 1.54 Kg/m2 in Group A and 26.316 ± 1.48 Kg/m2 in Group B and duration of disease was 7.466 ± 2.15 months in Group A and 7.883 ± 1.78 months in Group B. Efficacy was seen in 87.5% patients in Group A as compared to 98.3% in Group B (p=0.001).

Conclusion: Rubber band ligation is more efficacious in the management of 2nd-degree haemorrhoids in terms of perrectal bleeding from 3rd-week to 6 months post-application.

Keywords: Prolapsed haemorrhoids, Rubber ligation, Injection Sclerotherapy

How to cite this Article:

Raza Z, Jalil M, Khan WA, Rehman J, Abbas S, Mahmood S. Injection Sclerotherapy vs Rubber Band Ligation in the Management of Ratients with 2nd Degree Haemorrhoids. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):97-100 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2021038

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

L

L

INTRODUCTION:

Haemorrhoids are a frequently encountered condition in the

Zahid Raza Registrar, Department of Surgery PNS SHIFA Karachi Email: zrazakhan98@gmail.com
Muhammad Jalil (Corresponding Author) Assistant Professor, Department of Surgery CMH Bhawalpur Email: Jalil.malik@gmail.com
Waseem Ahmad Khan Assistant Professor, Department of Surgery PNS SHIFA Karachi Email: niaziwaseem@yahoo.com
Jehanzeb Rahman Assistant Professor, Department of Pathology CMH Bhawalpur Email: jahanzeb1979@gmail.com
Shahid Abbas Assistant Professor, Department of Cardiology CMH Bhawalpur Email: shahabbas0@gmail.com
Shahid Mahmood Assistant Professor, Department of Surgery PNS SHIFA Karachi Email: tipu1857@gmail.com
Received: 10-06-2021 Accepted: 01-02-2023

surgical outpatient department. As symptomatic haemorrhoids cause a sufficient reduction in quality of life. It is estimated that about 5% of the total population experience haemorrhoids once in their lifetimes and half of the patients in the fifth decade of life receive some haemorrhoid treatment, and nearly 10-20% of the individuals will require surgery¹. A poorly-developed healthcare system coupled with an unhealthy lifestyle and poor dietary habits put our population at an even higher risk for developing haemorrhoids, making it a significant problem². Haemorrhoids are symptomatic enlargement and abnormally downward displacement of anal cushions causing venous dilatation. Other pathologies include degenerative changes in supportive tissue within the anal cushions, vascular hyperplasia, and hyper perfusion of hemorrhoidal plexus³.

Patients present with complaints of itching, burning, protrusion of mass from the anus, bleeding, generalized weakness and constipation. Low-grade haemorrhoids are effectively treated with dietary and lifestyle modification, medical intervention⁴. Surgery is required high-grade or complicated haemorrhoids. Haemorrhoidectomy has been the mainstay of treatment, more recently other approaches have been employed including rubber band ligature (RBL), stapled haemorrhoidopexy, and Doppler-guided hemorrhoidal

artery ligation⁵. Injection Sclerotherapy (IS) and rubber band ligation are the commonly performed procedures for 2nd-degree haemorrhoids.⁶

Jehan S. et.al in their randomized control study on 100 patients with 2nd-degree haemorrhoids concluded that in patients treated with injection sclerotherapy, 56% were symptoms free after 4 weeks, as compared to 88% after 4 weeks undergoing rubber band ligation. Whereas at 12-month follow-up, 92% remained symptom-free in the Injection sclerotherapy group, as compared to 100% in the rubber band ligation group⁷.

In a setup like ours, where people are very apprehensive of surgery, it becomes imperative to adopt non-operative, outpatient and short methods of treatment for haemorrhoids because of cost, hospitalization and morbidity associated with surgery. This brings Injection sclerotherapy and rubber band ligation is the best-suited choice for outpatient treatment of haemorrhoids. The goal of this study was to compare the efficacy of injection sclerotherapy and rubber band ligation.

METHODOLOGY:

A total of 240 patients of both genders, suffering from 2nd degree haemorrhoids with no improvement after dietary and lifestyle modifications were included in the study after obtaining approval from hospital ethical committee. Informed written consent was obtained from all participants. Patients with a known history of liver cirrhosis, previous history of haemorrhoidectomy, severe anaemia and uncontrolled hypertension were excluded. Patients were randomized to either the Injection sclerotherapy group (Group A) or rubber band ligation group (Group B) by lottery method. All procedures were performed by the same surgeon to exclude bias.

Subjects fulfilling the inclusion criteria a detailed clinical history concerning bleeding per rectum, painful defecation and dietary habits was recorded. A focused general physical exam was done in all. Each patient was subjected to local examination, proctoscopy was performed by the same surgeon to exclude observer bias. All the patients were given an enema in the evening and the morning before the procedure. After the procedure, all the patients were advised to report emergency department in case of any complication in the form of bleeding per rectum or prolapse. All patients were advised tab diclofenac 50mg thrice daily for 5 days. Post-operative bleeding up to 3 weeks is usually common and will not render the procedure nonefficacious. A final assessment was done at 6 months postprocedure regarding the effect of treatment on rectal bleeding. Those patients requiring additional treatment due to post-operative pain were excluded from the study. The Performa was filled for record-keeping.

Data Analysis: Data were evaluated and analysed using Statistical Program for Social Sciences (SPSS) version 23. Mean and Standard deviation was reported for quantitative

variables like age, BMI and duration of disease. Qualitative variables like gender and efficacy were measured in terms of frequency percentage. The results were presented using graphs and Pie charts. Categorical data were compared between the study groups using Chi-square and Quantitative data was compared by independent t-test. P < 0.05 was considered statistically significant.

RESULTS:

Out of the total 240 patients the age range in the study was from 18 to 65 years with a mean age of 36.641 ± 7.00 years in Group A while 35.700 ± 5.65 years in Group B. Mean BMI was 26.525 ± 1.54 Kg/m² in Group A and 26.316 ± 1.48 Kg/m² in Group B and duration of disease was 7.466 ± 2.15 months in Group A and 7.883 ± 1.78 months in Group B as shown in Table-I. Male gender was dominant in both groups as shown in Table II. Efficacy was seen in 87.5% of patients in Group A as compared to 98.3% in Group B (p=0.001) as shown in Table III. Stratification of efficacy in both groups concerning gender and duration of disease are shown in Table-IV, and V respectively.

Table 1: Means of patients according to age, BMI and duration of disease n=240

Demographics	Mean ±SD	Mean ±SD	
	Group A (n=120)	Group B (120)	
Age (yrs.)	36.64 ± 7.0	35.7 ± 5.6	
BMI kg/m ²	26.53 ± 1.54	26.3 ± 1.48	
Duration of disease	7.4 ± 2.12	7.88 ± 1.78	

Table 2: Frequency and	l percentage of	genders in both	groups
------------------------	-----------------	-----------------	--------

Gender Group A (n=120)		Group B (120)		
Male	90(75%)	86(71.7%)		
Female	30(25%)	34(28.3%)		
Total	120 (100%)	120(100%)		

Table 3: Comparison of efficacy in both groups

Efficacy	Group A (n=120)	Group B (120)	P value
Yes	105 (87.5%)	118 (98.3%)	
No	15 (12.5%)	2 (1.7%)	0.001
Total	120 (100%)	120(100%)	

Table 4: Stratification of efficacy with respect to gender in both

For male gender					
Efficacy	7				
Group	Yes	No	P value		
Α	79 (87.8%)	11 (12.2%)	0.003		
В	85 (98.8%)	1 (1.2%)	0.005		
For Age	41-65 years				
Group	Yes	No			
Α	26 (86.7%)	5 (15.2%)	0.122		
B	33 (97.1%)	1 (2.9%)			

Zahid Raza, Muhammad Jalil, Waseem Ahmad Khan, Jehanzeb Rahman, Shahid Abbas, Shahid Mahmood

For dur	For duration < 6 months					
Efficacy	Efficacy					
Group	Yes	No	P value			
Α	37 (94.9%)	111 (12.2%)	0.003			
В	27 (100%)	0 (0%)	0.005			
For duration > 6 months						
Group	Yes	No				
Α	68 (84%)	13(16%)	0.122			
В	91 (97.8%)	2 (2.2%)				

Table 5: stratification of efficacy with respect to duration of disease in both groups

DISCUSSION:

The present study aimed to find out the frequency of complications in patients undergoing sclerotherapy or rubber band ligation of first or second-degree haemorrhoids. Patients undergoing rubber band ligation more frequently complained of post-procedure pain and bleeding as compared to patients who underwent injection sclerotherapy. Haemorrhoids can occur in all ages, gender and socioeconomic status. Our study showed a high male proportion. Shamim et al from Karachi also showed a male predominance of 74.88%. Various other authors in our population show male predominance in haemorrhoid patients⁸⁻¹⁰. However, western literature showed an equal or mixed male or female predominance pattern in haemorrhoid disease¹¹⁻¹⁷. This could be due to different hospital setup, social, cultural values and eating habits. Haemorrhoids are a common problem in the general population with an estimated 5-30% of adults suffering from¹⁸. It is imperative that the early side-effect profile of the two most common outpatient procedures for the management of first and second-degree haemorrhoids injection sclerotherapy and rubber band ligation, be evaluated in a local cohort of patients. Studies on a direct quantitative comparison of the frequency of pain between patients undergoing sclerotherapy and band ligation of 2nd-degree haemorrhoids are rare. The present study compared the results of sclerotherapy with band ligation for which direct comparison was possible. The results of this study indicate that pain to some degree is experienced during the first postoperative hour by half of the patients undergoing rubber band ligation. In most of the patients experiencing pain in this group, the degree of discomfort varied from mild to moderate.

This observed frequency of pain is in conformation with the findings of Watson et al who observed that at 4 hours after banding, 55% of patients complained of some degree of pain¹⁹. Although the frequency is significantly higher than that seen in local series of patients undergoing banding which have noted 6–20% of patients complaining of pain, most of these studies, unlike this study, did not include discomfort felt by the patient while noting the frequency of pain²⁰. Early postoperative per-rectal bleeding, within the first 24 hours following the procedure was noted in 56% of

patients in the group which underwent rubber band ligation. This conforms to Watson et al who found that 65% of patients complained of per-rectal bleeding on the day following operation¹⁵. In the case series by Bhutta et al and Dilawaiz et al, only 6-12% of patients complained of per-rectal bleeding immediately following the procedure^{16,17}. Those studies also carried out banding as an outpatient procedure, however, limitations in the follow-up of the patients probably accounted for the fewer patients who came back with complaints of per-rectal bleeding. As compared to the frequency of patients in the rubber band ligation group, significantly fewer patients undergoing sclerotherapy had complaints of early bleeding. Only 26% of patients, almost half of the patients in the RBL group experiencing per-rectal bleeding, complained of such a problem. Lesser instrumentation and damage to the mucosa of the upper anal canal during the submucosal injection of sclerosant¹⁸ probably accounts for the lesser frequency of early bleeding seen in patients undergoing injection sclerotherapy. Efficacy was seen in 87.5% of patients in Group A as compared to 98.3% in Group B (p=0.001). Jehan S et al in their randomized control study on 100 patients with 2nd-degree haemorrhoids concluded that in patients treated with injection sclerotherapy, 56% were symptoms free after 4 weeks, as compared to 88% after 4 weeks undergoing rubber band ligation.

Also, at 12-month follow-up, 92% remained symptom-free in the Injection sclerotherapy group, as compared to 100% in the rubber band ligation group^7 .

According to Chaleoykitti these patients would be better benefited by applications of multiple instead of the single band as this is known to influence the outcome in banding procedures 20. A recent study from Faisalabad 22 showed that 60% of patients developed mild to moderate bleeding in the first postoperative week. Bernal et al showed that 32% of the patients suffered pain after ligation and 13.81% of cases were operated on due to persistent rectal bleeding or hemorrhoidal prolapse¹³. Rubber band ligation procedure is preferred over sclerotherapy because it provides a more definitive and long-lasting treatment of haemorrhoids and without the risks of surgery such as Haemorrhoidectomy or stapled haemorrhoidopexy¹⁴. Greca et al showed that 15% of patients required retreatment following rubber band injection sclerotherapy as compared to only

5% of patients who underwent rubber band ligation²¹. Other authors have also concluded that despite a higher frequency of post-operative complications, but owing to its significantly better long-term results, rubber band ligation is preferred over injection sclerotherapy for outpatient treatment of first-and second-degree haemorrhoids.²²

CONCLUSION:

In conclusion, rubber band ligation of second-degree haemorrhoids is associated with fewer complaints of perrectal bleeding, from 03 weeks to 6 months Injection Sclerotherapy vs Rubber Band Ligation in the Management of Patients with 2nd Degree Haemorrhoids

- | Authors Contribution:
- Zahid Raza Article design, writer, data collection.
- **Muhammad Jalil:** Intellectual supervision, design, proof reading.
- | Waseem Ahmad Khan: Intellectual supervision, design, proof | reading.
- Jehanzeb Rahman: data analysis, interpretation and supervision
- Shahid Abbas: proof reading, data analysis, literature research | Shahid Mahmood: proof reading, data analysis, literature research

REFERENCES:

- Song SG, Kim SH. Optimal treatment of symptomatic haemorrhoids. J Korean Soc Coloproctology. 2011; 27:277 -81.
- Lohsiriwat V. Haemorrhoids: from basic pathophysiology to clinical management. World J Gastroenterol. 2012; 18:2009-17
- 3. Lohsiriwat V. Approach to haemorrhoids, Curr Gastroenterol Rep.2013;15:332
- 4. Awad AE, Soliman HH, Saif SA, Darwish AM, Mosaad S, Elfert AA. A prospective randomised comparative study of endoscopic band ligation versus injection sclerotherapy of bleeding internal haemorrhoids in patients with liver cirrhosis. Arab J Gastroenterol. 2012; 13:77-81.79
- Shaikh AR, Dalwani AG, Soomro N. An evaluation of Milligan -Morgan and Ferguson procedures for haemorrhoidectomy at Liaquat University Hospital Jamshoro, Hyderabad, Pakistan. Pak J Med Sci. 2013; 29:122-7.
- Gagloo MA, Hijaz SW, Nasir SA, Reyaz A, Bakshi IH, Chowdary NA, et al. Comparative study of haemorrhoidectomy and rubber band ligation in treatment of second and third-degree haemorrhoids in Kashmir. Indian J Surg. 2013; 75:356-60.
- Jehan S, Ateeq M, Ali M, Bhopal FG. Sclerotherapy versus rubber band ligation; comparative study of efficacy and compliance in the treatment of uncomplicated seconddegree haemorrhoids. Professional MedJ. 2012; 19:222-7.
- 8. Qureshi S, Aziz T, Afzal A, Maher M. Rubber band ligation of symptomatic internal haemorrhoids; a result of 450 cases. J Surg Pak2009; 14:19–22.
- 9. Mahmood S, Malik AU, Qureshi S, Khan IA. Rubber band ligation vs injection sclerotherapy in early haemorrhoids. Ann King Edward Med Uni 2001; 7:219–23.
- 10. Jehan S, Ateeq M, Ali M, Bhopal FG. Sclerotherapy versus rubber band ligation; comparative study of efficacy and compliance in the treatment of uncomplicated second-degree haemorrhoid s. Professional Med J 2012; 19:222–7.

- 11. Giamundo P, Salfi R, Geraci M, Tibaldi L, Murru L, Valente M. The haemorrhoid laser procedure technique vs rubber band ligation: a randomized trial comparing 2 mini-invasive treatments for second-and third-degree haemorrhoids. Dis Colon Rectum 2011; 54:693–8.
- 12. Cazemier M, Felt-Bersma RJ, Cuesta MA, Mulder CJ. Elastic band ligation of haemorrhoids: Flexible gastroscopy or rigid proctoscopy? World J Gastroenterol 2007; 13:585–7.
- 13. Bernal JC, Enguix M, Lopez Garcia J, Garcia Romero J, Trullenque Peris R. Rubber-band ligation for haemorrhoids in a colorectal unit. A prospective study. Rev Esp Enferm Dig 2005; 97:38–45.
- Nisar PJ, Scholefield JH. Managing haemorrhoids. BMJ 2003; 327:847 –51.87
- 15. Watson NFS, Liptrott S, Maxwell-Armstrong CA. A prospective audit of early pain and patient satisfaction following outpatient band ligation of haemorrhoids. Ann R Coll Surg Engl 2006; 88:275–9.
- Bhutta AR, Shaukat A, Farooqi F. Rubber band ligation of second-degree haemorrhoids (our experience). Pak J Med Health Sci 2007; 1: 96–8.
- Dilawaiz, Murtaza G, Rasheed A, Rehman Q, Hussain R. Rubber band ligation; postoperative complications aftertreatment of internal haemorrhoids. Professional Med J 2007;14(1);104–10.
- Mann CV. Injection of haemorrhoids. In: Dudley H, Pories WJ, Carter DC, (Eds). Rob and Smith's Operative Surgery. 4th ed. London: Butterworths; 1983. pp. 467–9.
- 19. Chaleoykitti B. Comparative study between multiple and single rubber band ligations in one session for bleeding internal haemorrhoids: a prospective study. J Med Assoc Thai 2002; 85:345–50.
- Dilawaiz M, Bashir MA, Rashid A. Haemorrhoidectomy vs rubber band; comparison of postoperative complications. Professional Med J 2011; 18:571–4.
- 21. Greca F, Hares MM, Nevah E, Alexander-Williams J, Keighley MR. A randomized trial to compare rubber band ligation with phenol injection for the treatment of haemorrhoids. Br J Surg 1981; 68:250–2.
- 22. Gartell PC, Sheridan RJ, McGinn FP. Outpatient treatment of haemorrhoids: a randomized clinical trial to compare rubber band ligation with phenol injection. Br J Surg 1985; 72:478–9.

Perception of Telemedicine in Health Care Workers of a Tertiary Care Hospital

Shehnaz khan, Tahseen Haider Kazmi, Noor Shahid, Shamaila Hassnain

ABSTRACT:

Objective: This investigation aimed to determine the feasibility of using telemedicine for screening and to observe healthcare provider's opinion about telemedicine. In addition to that, explore the barriers in use of telemedicine

Study Design and setting: A cross-sectional study was carried out at Central Park Medical College and Teaching Hospital.

Methodology: The study was conducted between November, 2020 to April,2021 from 176 doctors and nurses working at Central Park Teaching Hospital using a convenience sampling technique. Convenience sampling was used because there is always a high probability of non-response or unavailability of clinical doctors and nurses. The minimum sample size was calculated as 88 for the group of doctors. The minimum sample size was doubled to collect the data from two cadres. The questionnaire was based on demographic information, general opinion about telemedicine such as reliability, comparison with standard examination procedure, nature, popularity, knowledge requirement, cost-effectiveness, designed frame and barriers for telemedicine.

Results: Nearly, 80.1% of the participants were doctors with clinical experience while the remaining were nurses. Approximately 72.5% of the doctors and 58.5% of the sampled participants said that telemedicine does not fulfill the need for standard examination procedures.

Conclusion: The findings of our study showed that the general opinion of healthcare professionals about telemedicine was unfavorable. Doctors had negative views but the nursing staff was optimistic. There was a mixed response about convenience. The main barrier to telemedicine was the poor communication skills of patients and availability and knowledge for using infrastructure.

Keywords: challenges, digital health, healthcare, telemedicine.

How to cite this Article:

Khan S, Kazmi TH, Shahid N, Hassnain S. Prospects of Telemedicine in Pakistan: Opportunities and Challenges. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):101-105 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022104

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

INTRODUCTION:

Advancements in communication and information technology have made the world a global village. This reflects as telemedicine in the health care system. Telemedicine is a new approach in technology that facilitates the treatment of patients from a distance and has led countries

Shehnaz Khan Assistant Professor, Department of Community Medicine Public Health Central Park Medical College L Email: shehnaz.atif@gmail.com I Tahseen Haider Kazmi Professor, Department of Community Medicine Public Health I Central Park Medical College I Email: tahseenkazmi@gmail.com Т Noor Shahid (Corresponding Author) I Statistician, Department of Biostatistics I Central Park Medical College L Email: Noor.shahid.aug@gmail.com Shamaila Hassnain Assistant Professor, Department of Community Medicine Public I Health Fatima Memorial Hospital Email: Sash 04@yahoo.com I Received: 30-06-2022 L Accepted: 01-02-2023

to accept the idea of opening their health systems to trade.¹

Novel computer capabilities and improved telecommunication services will make telemedicine possible through laptop computers and multi-media notebooks for health care providers in developed countries in the coming future. However, the developing countries should not be denied this facility and arrangements should be made for its provision to the developing world in the coming decade. This will bring a complete change in health education and healthcare delivery.²

Telemedicine, defined by W.H.O in its 1997 Health Development Strategy Report states it as "the delivery of health care services, where distance is a critical factor, by all health care professionals using information and communication technologies for the exchange of valid information for the diagnosis, treatment, and prevention of disease and injuries, research and evaluation, and for the continuing education of health care providers, all in the interests of advancing the health of individuals and their communities".³

According to W.H.O statistics, more than one-fourth of countries all over the world have an acute paucity of healthcare force. This includes Pakistan as well. The shortage of resources coupled with poor medical services makes telemedicine an affordable and effective solution for providing health care results for populations living in remote areas. Telemedicine by providing reliable diagnosis, consultation, and training can be beneficial for people living in distant geographical areas.⁴

Telemedicine was introduced in Pakistan in 1998 and since then has expedited its activities due to improvement in the telecommunication industry. A high bandwidth favors its usability and productivity. Since Internet has become a popular medium for communication for many users in Pakistan, with more than three million telephone lines spread all over the country the feasibility and potential contribution of telemedicine has become complimentary for the citizens of Pakistan.⁵

Pakistan Space Organization (SUPARCO) established its first satellite-based telemedicine network in conjunction with the Ministry of IT. It intends to establish three satellitebased centers in big cities. The government also plans to build a telemedicine network country-wide.⁶

The Covid-19 pandemic made use of telemedicine as a frontline program for safe healthcare delivery. Being cost-effective, safe, and providing strategic medical care with clear guidelines has led to its promotion by many healthcare institutions. "Sehat Kahani" is a recent communicationtechnology- initiated project where virtual consultations are provided in Pakistan.⁷

A telemedicine survey done by W.H.O in 2016 in Pakistan reveals some of the challenges/ deficiencies faced by the country for the establishment of telemedicine. It highlights the lack of general rules and regulations as well as the absence of a framework for approval of launching programs and what permissions are required from which department.⁸

Lack of standard government regulations, absence of malpractice liability insurance policy, deficiency in medical services licensing, all pose risks for the security and confidentiality of personal data.⁹

Ethical and deontological issues related to confidentiality of data, protection of dignity, and private life of the patient are some other concerns of health care professionals worldwide.¹⁰

Keeping all the above possibilities in mind we plan to interview the healthcare staff to find out their perceptions about the ease of use of telemedicine, how willing they would be to use it, and if they have any reservations about its usage.

METHODOLOGY:

A cross-sectional study was carried out at Central Park Medical College and Teaching Hospital from 01-November 2020 to 30-April 2021. The data was collected from 176 doctors and nurses working at Central Park Teaching Hospital using a non-random convenience sampling technique. As

the data was collected from clinical doctors and nurses, where there is always a high probability of non-response due to unavailability. That is why the convenient sampling technique was used. The minimum sample size was calculated as 88 by using 34.8% as the proportion of doctors' favored practice of telemedicine by introducing national standards,¹¹ 90% power of the test, and 5% level of significance. The sample size 88 was calculated for the group of doctors. The minimum sample size was doubled to collect the data from two cadres. The double sample was taken to ensure that it represents the population well. This can also be justified as when we calculate the sample size for the difference between two population proportions,¹² we get almost double the sample size. The inclusion criteria were doctors and nurses working at Central Park Medical College and Teaching Hospital.

A self-designed questionnaire was used to collect data. The questionnaire addressed demographic information such as gender, educational level, year of experience, profession, and graduating college or university. The questionnaire was also based on statements tailored under general opinion about telemedicine such as reliability, comparison from standard examination procedure, nature, popularity, knowledge requirement, cost-effectiveness, and designed frame for telemedicine. Some information on barriers against telemedicine was also gathered. The first part of the questionnaire addressed the demographic information about the graduating college, years of experience, age, and profession of participants. The second part of the questionnaire was based on general opinion about telemedicine and its reliability and the third part was based on barriers against telemedicine. The questionnaire was designed and administered in British English (BrE) language. The reliability of the questionnaire was observed using Cronbach alpha which came out to be approximately 70%.

Before data collection, written consent was taken from all the participants. Ethical approval of the study was taken from the Institutional Review Board (IRB) of Central Park Medical College and Teaching Hospital (CPMC/IRB-NO/1319). The data was analyzed using SPSS version 26. Chi-square test of association was performed to observe significant association of different variables with the opinion of the participants whether telemedicine meets the needs of standard examination procedure or not. Descriptive statistics were presented as mean and standard deviation. The general opinion about the reliability, adoption, requirements and barriers is given in the form of frequency and percentages.

RESULTS:

A cross-sectional study was carried out to collect data from 176 participants. The mean age of the participants was 33.11 \pm 11.65 SD (in years). About 65.9% of the participants were female while 34.1% of the participants were male. The data were collected both from doctors and nurses. Nearly 80.1%

of the participants were doctors with clinical experience while the remaining were nurses.

Most of the participants whose educational level was postgraduation or above were of the opinion that telemedicine does not meet the need of standard examination procedure. The level of education was significantly associated with the opinion. Approximately 72.5% of the doctors and 58.5% of all the participants said that it does not fulfill the need for standard examination procedures. The opinion of nurses was quite different. Nearly 80.5% of the nurses favored telemedicine. The profession was also found as the significantly associated factor with the opinion. Working experience and graduating college or university were insignificantly related to telemedicine. Most of the participants, regardless of their graduating college or university did not favor telemedicine.

Two-thirds of the respondents found telemedicine expensive. About 33% of the respondents said that the cost of telemedicine is not high. Nearly 83.5% of the participasnts mentioned that knowledge is required for medical practitioners and nurses to be able to use technology. Approximately 80% of the participants mentioned that older people are least likely to use telemedicine. The general opinion of 34.7% of participants on the use of telemedicine was that its application was little likely, 35.8% of the participants found the use of telemedicine somewhat likely. Only 4% of the participants found it very likely to be used.

About half of the participants agreed that telemedicine is

convenient for more patient appointments in a day and more than half agreed that it is reliable for more frequent contact (Table 1). However, approximately 66% of the participants were of the view that it is more reliable compared to physically visiting a doctor. Approximately 79% of the participants said that telemedicine is comparatively less adopted in rural areas and 72.7% mentioned that a full design framework is required for awareness about telemedicine. Major reasons for the lack of awareness about telemedicine in rural areas were lack of a fully designed structure for telemedicine followed by lack of availability and knowledge to use system and unavailability of internet facilities. Most of the participants mentioned that the communication skills of the patients were the biggest barrier followed by fear of incomplete information and infrastructure cost (Table 2). A chi-square test of association was performed to observe the significant association between opinions of the participants about telemedicine that it meets the needs of standard examination procedure with various factors (Table 3).

DISCUSSION:

Searching for prospects of telemedicine we took responses from both doctors and nurses working at a tertiary care hospital in Kahna. We found that 72.5% of doctors disapproved of telemedicine and thought it does not meet the needs of standard examination procedures; however, the response was different from nurses and 80.5% thought telemedicine was useful. In a study conducted in Korea, patient satisfaction with telemedicine was reported as 86%,

Factor	Strongly Agree	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly Disagree
Telemedicine is convenient for more patient appointments in a day.	14 (7.95%)	74 (42.05%)	56 (31.82%)	26 (14.77%)	06 (3.41%)
Do you think that telemedicine is reliable for more frequent contact?	20 (11.36%)	78 (44.32%)	48 (27.27%)	25 (14.20%)	05 (2.84%)
Telemedicine is more reliable as compared to physically visiting a doctor.	09 (5.11%)	21 (11.93%)	30 (17.05%)	70 (39.77%)	46 (26.14%)
Is it difficult at times to diagnose through telemedicine?	36 (20.45%)	86 (48.86%)	25 (14.20%)	22 (12.5%)	07 (3.98%)
Is it user-friendly for patients with less awareness of technology?	11 (6.25%)	43 (24.43%)	43 (24.43%)	58 (32.95%)	21 (11.93%)
Do you think that training is required for doctors, nurses, and physicians for telemedicine?	58 (32.95%)	80 (45.45%)	24 (13.64%)	10 (5.68%)	04 (2.27%)
Do you think that telemedicine is comparatively less adopted in rural areas?	55 (31.25%)	84 (47.73%)	26 (14.77%)	09 (5.11%)	02 (1.14%)
The lack of a fully designed framework is the main reason for low awareness of telemedicine in small towns/villages.	39 (22.16%)	89 (50.57%)	37 (21.02%)	07 (3.98%)	04 (2.27%)
Do you think that the current system promotes telemedicine?	09 (5.11%)	47 (26.70%)	63 (35.80%)	41 (23.30%)	16 (9.09%)

Table 1: Opinion about the reliability and requirements of telemedicine (Frequency (%))

Barriers	Not at all n (%)	Little bit n (%)	Somehow n (%)	Often n (%)	Always n (%)
Unsure about diagnosis	21 (11.93%)	44 (25%)	49 (27.84%)	24 (13.64%)	38 (21.59%)
Fear of incomplete information	09 (5.11%)	23 (13.07%)	57 (32.39%)	59 (33.52%)	28 (15.91%)
Communication skills of patient	12 (6.82%)	16 (9.09%)	65 (36.93%)	46 (26.14%)	37 (21.02%)
Infrastructure	15 (8.52%)	23 (13.07%)	39 (22.16%)	45 (25.57%)	54 (30.68%)
High cost of telemedicine infrastructure	19 (10.80%)	32 (18.18%)	58 (32.95%)	37 (21.02%)	30 (17.05%)

Table 2: Barriers against Telemedicine

Table 3: Crosstab of opinion with various Social and Demographics Factors

Factors	Categories	Telemedicine of standard	Chi-square		
	_	Yes	No	(p-value)	
Gender	Male	17 (28.33%)	43 (71.67%)	4 08 (0 05*)	
Gender	Female	51 (43.97%)	65 (56.03%)	4.08 (0.05)	
Level of Education	Graduation or less	36 (48%)	39 (525)	4 83 (0 03*)	
Level of Education	Post-graduation or above	32 (31.68%)	69 (68.32%)	4.05 (0.05)	
Profession	Doctor	39 (27.46%)	103 (72.44%)	38 69 (0 00*)	
	Nurse	29 (85.29%)	05 (14.71%)	38.07 (0.00)	
	1-5 Years	43 (41.35%)	61 (58.65%)		
Working Experience	5-10 Years	10 (30.30%)	23 (69.70%)	1 29 (0 73)	
working Experience	10-20 Years	07 (38.89%)	11 (61.11%)	1.27 (0.73)	
	Above 20 Years	08 (38.10%)	13 (61.90%)		
Graduating College	Public Sector	23 (32.39%)	48 (67.61%)	1.06 (0.21)	
/ University	Private Sector	45 (42.86%)	60 (57.14%)	1.90 (0.21)	

*Significant at 5% level of significance

but only 52.7% of doctors and 48.0% of nurses were satisfied with it.¹³ A study conducted in Pakistan reported that there was slight disagreement between the practitioners in acceptance of telemedicine and considering it a proper way for medical consultation.¹⁴

In our study, 83.5% of the participants thought that knowledge is necessary to use technology. In another study conducted in India where 86 doctors were interviewed, 50% said that lack of knowledge prevented them from using telemedicine.¹⁵ Among physicians working at Tabriz teaching hospital in Iran, 33.55% knew telemedicine. 45.3% had used telemedicine in the form of telephonic conversations.¹⁶ Another study mentioned that telemedicine is the most effective way however the distance is large, experts are rare and technology is limited.¹⁷

Regarding the convenience of telemedicine for patient appointments, 50% of health staff in our study agreed, another 50% also thought that it is reliable. Nearly, 66% thought that telemedicine is unreliable. A study done in Korea during the Covid epidemic showed 80% patient satisfaction regarding convenience. About 38.2% of doctors and 30.0% of nurses also found it convenient.87.1% of patients found it equally reliable as in-patient visits but only 14.5% of doctors and 14.0% of nurses also found so.¹³

Clinical usefulness of telemedicine was perceived as 34.7%

less likely usefulness, 35.8% as somewhat likely usefulness, and 4.0% very likely usefulness in our study. In a UK study, the usefulness of telemedicine was rated as 76%, 74%, and 74% respectively for clinical usefulness, functioning of equipment, and ease of use of equipment.¹⁸

About 33% of health professionals found telemedicine inexpensive but most thought it was expensive in our study. In contrast, in a study in rural India, 90.0% of the doctors found telemedicine cost-effective and 61.0% of doctors found an increase in patients' inflow apart from regular visits.¹⁹ Telemedicine is not very popular and is now in Pakistan, but it does add benefits to the lives of people living in remote areas.¹⁴

The barriers to telemedicine reported in our study were poor communication skills of patients, fear of giving incomplete information about the disease, and the high infrastructure cost. In a study conducted in N. America and Europe through e-mails about barriers to telemedicine, no technological problems were reported and neither cultural issues were a problem.²⁰ In rural India, 47.0% of problems were related to technology and 39.0% in time scheduling.¹⁹ In a study conducted in Lahore, Pakistan, most of the participants favored telemedicine if the health care provider is far away and they can save more than 60 minutes.²¹ The important barriers in the UK were recorded as 55.0% as lack of suitable
training, 54.0% as high cost of purchasing telemedicine equipment, and 43.0% as an increase in GP and nurse workload.¹⁷ The use of telemedicine is unpopular in Pakistan, however, only a few applications are introduced. A study concluded that active involvement is required to regulate and expand digital health, as it seems to have a future in Pakistan.²²

CONCLUSION:

The findings of our study showed that the general opinion of healthcare professionals about telemedicine was unfavorable. Doctors had negative views but the nursing staff was optimistic. Despite it adds benefits to the healthcare system, it has many barriers. The hindrances were identified as lack of appropriate technological knowledge, high operating cost, and lack of reliability and clinical utility. There was a mixed response about convenience. However, the communication skills of patients and availability and knowledge for using infrastructure were the main obstacles to telemedicine. Clinical staff is not much adaptive to the use of technology. More efforts should be done to create awareness about the uses of telemedicine and to reduce the infrastructure and technology barriers. Workshops much be conducted on basic knowhow of modern IT devices and technology system.

- **Authors Contribution:**
- Shehnaz Khan: Data Collection, Write-up
- Tahseen Haider Kazmi: Study design, Final Proof Reading
- Noor Shahid: Data Collection, Data Analysis, write-up
- Shamaila Hassnain: Drafting, Proof Reading

REFERENCES:

- Álvarez MM, Chanda R, Smith RD. How is Telemedicine perceived? A qualitative study of perspectives from the UK and India. Globalization and health. 2011 Dec;7(1):1-7. DOI: doi: 10.1186/1744-8603-7-17.
- 2. Ferguson EW, Doarn CR, Scott JC. Survey of global telemedicine. Journal of medical systems. 1995 Feb;19(1):35-46. DOI: doi: 10.1007/BF02257189.
- 3. World Health Organization. Telemedicine: opportunities and developments in member states. Report on the second global survey on eHealth. World Health Organization; 2010.
- Kamal SA, Hussain S, Shafiq M, Jahanzaib M. Investigating the adoption of telemedicine services: an empirical study of factors influencing physicians' perspective in Pakistan. The Nucleus. 2018 Nov 30;55(3):153-63. DOI: doi: 10.12669/pjms.37.2.3592.
- Asad M, Sabzwari S. Telemedicine: A new frontier in clinical practice. Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences. 2021;37(2):588. DOI: doi: 10.12669/pjms.37.2.3592.
- Malik AZ. Telemedicine country report-Pakistan. In2007 9th International Conference on e-Health Networking, Application and Services 2007 Jun 19 (pp. 90-94). IEEE.
- Ahmed A, Ahmed M. The Telemedicine Landscape in Pakistan-Why are we falling behind. J Pak Med Assoc. 2018 Dec 1;68(12):1820-2.

- Scott RE, Mars M. Telehealth in the developing world: current status and future prospects. Smart Homecare Technology and TeleHealth. 2015 Feb 2;3:25-37.
- Prilukov MD. Problemy pravovogo regulirovaniya telemeditsiny. Rossiiskii i mezhdunarodnyi opyt. Vestnik Nizhegorodskogo universiteta im. NI Lobachevskogo. 2018(3):21-9.
- Garibyan B, Kohlert V. Obtaining of Tungsten Oxide Nanoparticles in Ultrasonically Assisted Electric Discharge. Revista Inclusiones. 2020 Aug 6:386-92
- Ashfaq A, Memon SF, Zehra A, Barry S, Jawed H, Akhtar M, Kirmani W, Malik F, Khawaja AW, Barry H, Saiyid H. Knowledge and attitude regarding telemedicine among doctors in Karachi. Cureus. 2020;12(2). DOI: doi: 10.7759/ cureus. 6927.
- 12. Wang H, Chow SC. Sample size calculation for comparing proportions. Wiley Encyclopedia of Clinical Trials. 2007 Dec 14;10:9781118445112. https://doi.org/10.1002/9780471462422 .eoct005
- 13. Park HY, Kwon YM, Jun HR, Jung SE, Kwon SY. Satisfaction survey of patients and medical staff for telephone-based telemedicine during hospital closing due to COVID-19 transmission. Telemedicine and e-Health. 2021;27(7):724. DOI: doi: 10.1089/tmj.2020.0369.
- Iqbal S, Khan N. Effectiveness and future prospects of telemedicine/remote health care management applications in Pakistan. Mehran University Research Journal of Engineering & Technology. 2017;36 (4):807-18. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.22581 /muet1982.1704.06
- 15. Meher SK, Tyagi RS, Chaudhry T. Awareness and attitudes to telemedicine among doctors and patients in India. Journal of telemedicine and telecare. 2009 Apr;15(3):139-41. DOI: doi: 10.1258/jtt.2009.003011.
- Rezaei P, Maserrat E, Torab-Miandoab A. Specialist physicians' perspectives about telemedicine and barriers to using it in Tabriz teaching hospitals. ISMJ. 2018 Jan 10;20(6):562-72. DOI: http://ismj.bpums.ac.ir/article-1-907-en.html
- Combi C, Pozzani G, Pozzi G. Telemedicine for developing countries. Applied clinical informatics. 2016;7(04):1025-50. DOI: doi: 10.4338/ACI-2016-06-R-0089.
- Richards H, King G, Reid M, Selvaraj S, McNicol I, Brebner E, Godden D. Remote working: survey of attitudes to eHealth of doctors and nurses in rural general practices in the United Kingdom. Family practice. 2005 Feb 1;22(1):2-7. DOI: doi: 10.1093/fampra/cmh716.
- Acharya RV, Rai JJ. Evaluation of patient and doctor perception toward the use of telemedicine in Apollo Tele Health Services, India. Journal of family medicine and primary care. 2016 Oct;5(4):798. DOI: doi: 10.4103/2249-4863.201174.
- Rogove HJ, McArthur D, Demaerschalk BM, Vespa PM. Barriers to telemedicine: survey of current users in acute care units. Telemedicine and e-Health. 2012 Jan 1;18(1):48-53. DOI: doi: 10.1089/tmj.2011.0071.
- Iftikhar S, Saqib A, Sarwar MR, Sarfraz M, Arafat M, Shoaib QU. Capacity and willingness to use information technology for managing chronic diseases among patients: A crosssectional study in Lahore, Pakistan. PloS one. 2019 Jan 10;14(1):e0209654. DOI: doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0209654.
- 22. Kazi AM, Qazi SA, Ahsan N, Khawaja S, Sameen F, Saqib M, Mughal MA, Wajidali Z, Ali S, Ahmed RM, Kalimuddin H. Current challenges of digital health interventions in Pakistan: mixed methods analysis. Journal of medical Internet research. 2020 Sep 3;22(9):e21691.

Original Article

Effects of Myopia on Visual Evoked Potentials in Patients at Tertiary Care Hospital

Abdul Haleem Mirani, Amjad Ali, Ataullah Bukhari, Tehmina Imdad, Ateeq Ur Rehman Channa, Maqbool Ahmed Jamali

ABSTRACT

Objective: To determine the effects of myopia on Visual Evoked Potentials among the subjects attending the eye OPD.

Study design and setting: This was a cross-sectional study with non-probability convenience sampling technique carried out at Department of Ophthalmology, Peoples Medical College Hospital Nawabshah / GMMMC Sukkur from March 2021 to November 2021.

Methodology: Total sample size was derived to be 180. Diagnosed myopia irrespective of gender and aged 25 to 45 years were included. Optic atrophy, Extensive retinal disease, any neurological disorder like multiple sclerosis, stroke and Visual pathway disorders were excluded. SPSS version 25.0 was used for data analysis.

Results: The mean age of the patients was 39.14 ± 6.73 years. There were n=96 (53%) females and n=84 (47%) males. In myopic samples the mean pattern stimuli latency P100 in right eye was 92.07 ± 5.1 in cases (without correction) and 82.09 ± 5.8 in controls (with correction) with significant P-value 0.023, while in left eye was 93.55 ± 6.7 in cases (without correction) and 83.6 ± 7.0 in controls (with correction) with significant P-value 0.028.

Conclusion: Greater the myopia; greater was the Visual Evoked Potential (VEP) changes with regards to latency and amplitude in pattern stimuli especially P100 being the most affected component in this regard. It is therefore necessary that every patient who goes for VEP test should be corrected for myopic refractive error.

Keywords: Amplitude, Latency, Myopia, Visual Evoked Potentials, Visual acuity

How to cite this Article:

Mirani AH, Ali A, Bukhari A, Imdad T, Channa AUR, Jamali MA. Effects of Myopia on Visual Evoked Potentials in Patients at Tertiary Care Hospital. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):106-9 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022106

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Abdul Haleem Mirani (Corresponding Author) Associate Professor, Department of Vitreo Retina Ghulam Muhammad Mahar Medical College (GMMMC) Sukkur Email: haleem.mirani79@gmail.com
Amjad Ali Professor, Department of Ophthalmology Peoples University of Medical and Health Sciences For Women (PUMHSW) Nawabshah Email: sahto72@gmail.com
Ataullah Bukhari Associate Professor, Department of Ophthalmology Khairpur Medical College Email: drattaullahbukhari@yahoo.com
Tehmina Imdad Assistant Professor, Department of Ophthalmology Ghulam Muhammad Mahar Medical College (GMMMC) Sukkur Email: gr8tehmina@yahoo.com
Ateeq Ur Rehman Channa Ophthalmologist, Department of Ophthalmology Ghulam Muhammad Mahar Medical College (GMMMC) Sukkur Email: rehmanateeq468@gmail.com
Maqbool Ahmed Jamali Assistant Professor, Department of Ophthalmology Peoples University of Medical and Health Sciences, Nawabshah Email: mjamali74@yahoo.com
Received: 17-07-2022 Accepted: 08-02-2023

INTRODUCTION:

Visual Evoked Potential (VEP) is an electrical potential resulting after Visual Stimulus and is recovered from person's scalp.¹ This is a noninvasive test and is used to assess the visual function. VEPs are affected by non-pathological factors such as age, sex, pupil, and diameter, type of stimulus, electrode position and refractive states of these, the refractive error by a blur in the retina. It is a better test to identify the visual pathway than the scanning such as MRI (magnetic resonance imagining).² Visual pathway and visual cortex abnormalities affects the VEP results. For example, cortical blindness, demyelination due to optic neuritis, optic atrophy, hydrocephalus and tumors of the brain which compress the optic pathway. In multiple sclerosis the myelin plaque slows the speed of VEP.³ A study reported that poor dormancy was augmented and amplitude diminished devoid of modification of refractive fault.⁴ There is decreased amplitude by 25% per diopter of defocus.⁵ Refractive errors blur the stimulus causes de focusing of image. That stimulated de focused image show very significant changes in latency and amplitude of VEP. It is estimated globally that one to two billion people have refractive error.⁶ These refractive errors are corrected by spectacles because it is the safest and easiest method of treatment. Visually intensive occupations are also at risk factor for the progress of this refractive erros. The diagnosis of refractive error is based on clinical examination of eye by using a retinoscope and large number of lenses of different powers. Sometimes automated refract meters used to estimate the error.⁷ In our community the prevalence of myopia is greater than hypermetropia. The estimated prevalence of myopia in Pakistan is 36.1%. While that of hypermetropia is 27.1%.⁸

The different components of VEP are disturbed in different disorders for example latency of VEP is prolonged in demyelinating diseases of the visual pathway and the amplitude is reduced in the axonal damage.^{9,10}

The rationale of study is to prevent the misinterpretation of the VEP results for ocular pathologies in the more prevalent myopia individuals. Present study determine effects of myopia on Visual Evoked Potentials in subjects attending tertiary care eye hospital.

METHODOLOGY:

A prior ethical approval was taken from the Institute Review Board (IRB) of the institute protocol number given was RP/03-2021. This was a cross-sectional study with nonprobability convenience sampling technique. It was carried out at Department of Ophthalmology Peoples Medical College Hospital Nawabshah tertiary care hospital of Sindh / GMMMC Sukkur from March 2021 to November 2021. Sample size calculation was calculated using statistical formula, $n=Z^2 \times Px \ q \times N/e^2 (N-1)+Z^2 P \times q$ where, Z =Standardized tabulated value=1.96 at 95% confidence interval, P = Prevalence (36.1%)

 $e=Margin \ of \ error \ 5\%$ and required sample size was found to be n=180

Inclusion criteria were any gender, age 25 to 45 years with diagnosed with myopia. (Below the age of 25-year myopia is progressive and refractive error becomes is not static. Above 45-year myopia is rare, so researcher took the peak age). A written consent were taken from all respondents. Exclusion criteria were optic atrophy, Extensive retinal disease, any neurological disorder like multiple sclerosis and stroke, and those who did not give consent.

Patients diagnosed to have myopia by doing retinoscopy / auto refractometer (objective refraction) and manually corrected with the trial lenses that is subjective refraction were sent to Shanza Neuro Center opposite PMC hospital Nawabshah for VEP test as routine protocol and findings were recorded. The amplitude and latency of VEP waves were recorded with and without correction of visual acuity. Any change in parameters of Amplitude and latency were tabulated in data form. The data statistics was there after analyzed. The trial box were provided to the concerned doctor of the Shanza Neuro Center (where this VEP testing facility is available) who performed the VEP without (Case) and with correcting lenses (Control) already prescribed by optometrist / doctor of eye OPD. Financial expenses were beard by researcher. Statistical Analysis was done using Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) version 25.0. Descriptive variables were used and presented as Mean, Standard deviation and frequency and percentages. Normality of data was checked prior to analysis. Variables were found to have symmetrically distributed. Inferential statistics were explored using one-way ANOVA test and Independent sample t-test. P-value = 0.05 was considered as statistically significant level.

RESULTS:

A total of 180 patients were included in this study. Mean age of the patients was 39.14 ± 6.73 years. There were 108 (60%) patients with =40 years of age and 72 (40%) patients with >40 years of age. Gender distribution showed that 96 (53%) females and 84 (47%) males. Best corrected visual acuity of right eye was found 6 /6 in 147 (81.66%) while left eye 162(90%) patients. Mild degree of myopia of right eye was found in 81 (45%) patients, moderate in 69 (38.33%), severe in 30 (16.67%) patients. Mild degree of myopia of left eye was found in 90 (50%) patients, moderate in 69 (38%), severe in 21 (12%) patients. (Table 1)

The mean pattern stimuli amplitude of right eye was 6.11 \pm 0.7 in cases (without correction) and 6.14 \pm 0.6 in controls (with correction) with not significant P-value 0.855, while in left eye was 6.13 ± 0.2 in cases (without correction) and 6.33 ± 0.8 in controls (with correction) with not significant P-value 0.766. The mean pattern stimuli latency N70 in right eye was 86.5 ± 8.1 in cases (without correction) and 83.62 \pm 7.9 in controls (with correction) with not significant Pvalue 0.081, while in left eye was 88.62 ± 7.9 in cases (without correction) and 85.09 ± 7.0 in controls (with correction) with not significant P-value 0.087. The mean pattern stimuli latency P100 in right eye was 92.07 ± 5.1 in cases (without correction) and 82.09 ± 5.8 in controls (with correction) with significant P-value 0.023, while in left eye was 93.55 ± 6.7 in cases (without correction) and 83.6 ± 7.0 in controls (with correction) with significant P-value 0.028. The mean pattern stimuli latency N155 in right eye was 85.90 ± 5.6 in cases (without correction) and 83.20 ± 6.3 in controls (with correction) with not significant P-value 0.078, while in left eye was 84.55 ± 6.6 in cases (without correction) and 82.05 ± 6.3 in controls (with correction) with not significant P-value 0.056. (Table 2)

In cases of Mild Myopia, mean pattern stimuli latency P100 in right eye was 85.68 ± 7.5 and in left eye was 81.20 ± 7.9 . In moderate myopia mean latency P100 in right eye was 94.21 ± 8.1 and in left eye 93.46 ± 6.4 . Whereas in severe myopia mean latency P100 in right eye was 98.37 ± 6.7 and in left eye was 99.28 ± 7.35 with significant P-value < 0.001. Other parameters like amplitude, latency N 70 and Latency N 155 was found insignificant in different degree of myopia cases. (Table 3)

DISCUSSION

Visual evoked potential (VEP) is a tool to screen out the

Table 1: Demographic Characteristics of respondents

Age (years)	Frequency	Percentage
=40	108	60.00
>40	72	40.00
Gender		
Male	84	46.67
Female	96	53.33
Best corrected Visual Acuity (Right Eye)		
< 6/6	33	18.33
6/6	147	81.67
Best corrected Visual Acuity (Left Eye)		
< 6/6	18	10.00
6/6	162	90.00
Degree of Myopia (Right Eye)		
Mild	81	45.00
Moderate	69	38.33
Severe	30	16.67
Degree of Myopia (Left Eye)		
Mild	90	50.00
Moderate	69	38.33
Severe	21	11.67

Table 2: Mean Visual Evoked Potential (VEP) with and without correction of Lens versus study Parameters

FLASH STIMULI Amplitude	Mean Visual Evoked Potential (VEP) without correction of Lens	Mean Visual Evoked Potential (VEP) with correction of Lens	P-value
Right Eye	6.11±0.7	6.14±0.6	0.855
Left Eye	6.13±0.2	6.33±0.8	0.766
LATENCY N70			
Right Eye	86.5±8.1	83.62±7.9	0.081
Left Eye	88.6±7.9	85.09±7.0	0.087
LATENCY P100			
Right Eye	92.07±5.1	82.09±5.8	0.023
Left Eye	93.55±6.7	83.6±7.0	0.028
LATENCY N155			
Right Eye	85.90±5.6	83.20±6.3	0.078
Left Eye	84.55±9.6	82.05±6.3	0.056

*Independent Sample t test was applied to see the significance *P-value = 0.05 considered to be statistically significant

Table 3: Comparative Analysis of Study Parameters versus Degree of Myopia

Parameters /	Mild N	Iyopia	Moderate	e Myopia	Severe	D	
Visual Status	RIGHT EYE	LEFT EYE	RIGHT EYE	LEFT EYE	RIGHT EYE	LEFT EYE	value
AMPLITUDE	5.62 ± 0.7	5.43 ± 0.5	5.07±0.6	5.21±0.6	4.90±0.8	5.01±0.6	0.124
LATENCYN70	83.80±6.4	85.63±6.7	85.6±7.20	89.06±6.5	91.4±6.2	92.3±5.8	0.07
LATENCY P100	85.68±7.5	81.20 ± 7.9	94.21±8.1	93.64±6.4	98.37±6.7	99.28±7.3	< 0.001
LATENCY N155	82.89±6.3	83.11±5.2	86.51±7.1	86.20±8.9	90.20±6.9	89.95±7.2	0.11

*One Way ANOVA test was applied to see the significance *P-value = 0.05 considered to be statistically significant

visual pathway defects it uses visual stimuli and measures the response in reaction to it. Myopia is a refractive error mostly prevalent in adulthood characterized by focusing of light rays behind the retina.¹¹ In this study we measured the changes in VEP with regard to amplitude and latencies in myopic individuals with and without correction (case/ control) it was found that flash stimuli VEP do not show significant change in myopic with and without correction but N70, P100 and N155 showed noticeable change in the amplitude and latencies. A literature evaluated that the poor latency in myopia and found significant negative correlation between refractive error and poor latency and found that in high myopia the latency of uncorrected eyes was 107.99 mile seconds.¹²

In present study the mean pattern stimuli latency P100 in

right eye was 92.07 ± 5.1 in cases (without correction) and 82.09 ± 5.8 in controls (with correction) with significant P-value 0.023, while in left eye was 93.55 ± 6.7 in cases (without correction) and 83.6 ± 7.0 in controls (with correction) with significant P-value 0.028.

Similar results showed by **Thabit MN** et al¹³ with significant differences in amplitude of P100 latency increases among cases and controls. Mean value in case were presented as 132 ± 2.2 and in control 107.7 ± 1.8 . Another study¹⁴ from Bhopal reported that no significant differences observed in latency P100 in the group without refractive error. However, it was highly significant found with refractive error. This is parallel to the study¹⁵ carried out by **Agrawal A** et al who also deduced that P100 amplitude decreases and P100 latency increases with degree of myopia. The P100 being the most significant element of VEP that is effected by myopic change.

Abdul Haleem Mirani, Amjad Ali, Ataullah Bukhari, Tehmina Imdad, Ateeq Ur Rehman Channa, Maqbool Ahmed Jamali

Evans AB¹⁶ stated that it is of the same idea that P100 amplitude and latency changes are directly proportional to the refractive error.

Myopia effects on parameters like amplitude, latency N 70 and Latency N 155 was found insignificant in different degree of myopia cases. Similar results reported Hamilton R et al¹⁷ blur in stimulus effects VEP. Another author **Zheng X** et al¹⁸ in his study that Reduction of Visual acuity (VA) or of the contrast of the stimulus induces a prolongation of the pattern reversal visual evoked potential (PR-VEP) latencies. Literatures support that these conditions cause deterioration of the visual capacity to recognize objects and may preferentially activate the slower central retina channel.^{19,20}

Present study showed that P100 amplitude decreased significantly and latency increased significantly with degree of refractive error and correction of the refractive error reduces these changes thus flash VEP is not much effected by refractive errors but pattern especially P100 significantly changes with refractive error. Henceforth it is suggested that prescribing investigation of VEP for any neuro-ophthalmic diseases the refractive error be corrected first in order to restrain from false positive results.

CONCLUSION:

Greater the myopia greater were the VEP changes with regards to latency and amplitude in pattern stimuli. P100 being the most affected component in this regard. It is therefore postulated that every patient sent for VEP investigation for any neuro ophthalmic disease should have refractive error myopia corrected first.

- **Authors Contribution:**
- Abdul Haleem Mirani: Conceived the study, Manuscript writing, Design of study, Literature review
- Amjad Ali: Supervised the work and final review
- Ataullah Bukhari: Study design & Methodology writing
- **Tehmina Imdad:** Statistical Analysis and Results
- Ateeq U Rehman Channa: Clinical work and data collection
- | Maqbool Ahmed Jamali: Help in discussion writing and Final |

Review

REFERENCES:

- 1. Creel DJ. Visually evoked potentials. Handbook of clinical neurology. 2019; 160: 501-22.
- 2. Ito Y, Maehara S, Itoh Y, Matsui A, Hayashi M, Kubo A et al. Effect of refractive error on visual evoked potentials with pattern stimulation in dogs. J. Vet. Med. Sci. 2018; 15-0227. https://doi.org/ 10.1292/jvms.15-0227
- 3. Denniston A, Murray P, editors. Oxford handbook of ophthalmology. OUP Oxford; 2017; 15: 826-9.
- 4. Radhika M. Influence of refractive error and ocular dominance on pattern reversal visual evoked potential: A comparative study (Doctoral dissertation, Chengalpattu Medical College, Chengalpattu). 2018.
- Kothari R, Bokariya P, Singh S, Narang P, Singh R. Refractive errors and their effects on visual evoked potentials. Journal of Clinical Ophthalmology and Research. 2014; 2(1): 3. https:// doi.org/ 10.4103/2320-3897.122625

- Lamb TD, Hunt DM. Evolution of the vertebrate phototransduction cascade activation steps. Dev. Biol. 2017;431(1):77-92. https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.ydbio. 2017.03 .018
- Astakhova L, Firsov M, Govardovskii V. Activation and quenching of the phototransduction cascade in retinal cones as inferred from electrophysiology and mathematical modeling. Mol. Vis. 2015;21:244-63. PMC4392649
- Hashemi H, Fotouhi A, Yekta A, Pakzad R, Ostadimoghaddam H, Khabazkhoob M. Global and regional estimates of prevalence of refractive errors: Systematic review and metaanalysis. Journal of current ophthalmology. 2018; 30(1): 3-22. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.joco.2017.08.009
- 9. Barton JL, Garber JY, Klistorner A, Barnett MH. The electrophysiological assessment of visual function in Multiple Sclerosis. Clinical neurophysiology practice. 2019; 4: 90-6. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cnp.2019.03.002
- Jiang TT, Wang L, Chen HL, Deng Y, Peng XL, Hu Y. Developmental characteristics of visual evoked potentials to different stimulation in normal children. International Journal of Neuroscience. 2021; 3: 1-11. https://doi.org/ 10.1080/ 00207454.2021.1912039
- 11. Gupta CK, Ranabhat S, Roy R. Effect of Refractive Error on Visual Evoked Potential in Myopic Males and Females. Acta Scientific Ophthalmology. 2021; 4(1): 22-26.
- 12. Li X, Friedman IB, Medow NB, Zhang C. Update on orthokeratology in managing progressive myopia in children: efficacy, mechanisms, and concerns. Journal of pediatric ophthalmology and strabismus. 2020; 54(3):142-8. https://doi.org/ 10.3928/01913913-20170106-01
- Thabit MN, Farouk MM, Awni M, Mohamed AA. Early disability in ambulatory patients with multiple sclerosis: optical coherence tomography versus visual evoked potentials, a comparative study. The Egyptian Journal of Neurology, Psychiatry and Neurosurgery. 2020; 56(70):1-9. https:// doi. org/10.1186/s41983-020-00204-0
- Jha AT, Yousuf PS, Gupta SB. Effect of Myopia on Visual Evoked Potential. IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences (IOSR-JDMS). 2015; 14 (4): 49-52. https://doi. org/10.9790/0853-14474952
- 15. Agrawal A, Puthalath AS, Mittal SK, Mittal S, Singh Y, Singh A. Alteration in pattern reversal visual evoked potential in pediatric population with amblyopia and spherical refractive errors. Indian Journal of Ophthalmology. 2022; 70(5): 1727-31. https://doi.org/10.4103/ijo.IJO_2692_21.
- Evans AB. (2022) Clinical Utility of Evoked Potentials (Medscape). https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/1137451overview. Accessed date: 29th June, 2022.
- Hamilton R, Bach M, Heinrich SP, Hoffmann MB, Odom JV, McCulloch DL et al. VEP estimation of visual acuity: a systematic review. Documenta Ophthalmologica. 2021; 42(1):25-74. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10633-020-09770-3
- Zheng X, Xu G, Zhang K, Liang R, Yan W, Tian P et al. Assessment of Human Visual Acuity Using Visual Evoked Potential: A Review. Sensors. 2020; 20 (5542): 1-26. https://doi. org/10.3390/s20195542
- Hemptinne C, Liu-Shuang J, Yuksel D, Rossion B. Rapid objective assessment of contrast sensitivity and visual acuity with sweep visual evoked potentials and an extended electrode array. Investigative ophthalmology & visual science. 2018; 59(2): 1144-57. doi:https://doi.org/10.1167/iovs.17-23248
- Misra UK, Kalita J. Clinical neurophysiology: nerve conduction, electromyography, evoked potentials. (4th Edition) Published by Elsevier. https://www.elsevier. com/books/ clinical-neurophysiology/misra/978-81-312-5815-6. Accessed Date: 29-6-2022

Assessment of Family planning services utilization among women of Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir

Mehwish Fayaz, Qandeel Tahir, Tehmina Zafar, Muhammad Usman Tayyab Butt

ABSTRACT

Objectives: To determine the percentage of women in Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir who use family planning services, and to determine the relationship between demographic characteristics and family planning service use (AJ&K).

Study design and setting: A cross-sectional study was conducted in UC Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir over the duration of 6 months, from 5 January to 5 July 2021.

Methodology: A sample of 344 married women with the age range 18 to 45 was obtained. The study's assessment instrument was developed from an existing assessment tool (Reproductive health knowledge and services utilization among rural adolescence in Ethiopia 2014). It included 14 questions on demographics and 13 questions about the use of family planning services.

Results: High utilization was 52% (n=179) while low utilization was 48% (n=165). Most of them had fear of side effects of using contraception (n=170, 48.9%). Chi-square test showed significant association (p-val =0.05) between fear of side effects of using contraception, decision of using contraception, education level, distance from home to hospital, number of children, exposure to mass media and utilization of family planning services.

Conclusion: There was low family planning services utilization in that area. Study showed that there was a strong association between fear of side effects of using contraception, low education and low exposure to mass media with utilization of family planning services in Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir (AJ&K).

Keywords: Contraception, Contraception behavior, Family Planning services, Family planning policy, Sex education.

How to cite this Article:

Fayaz M, Tahir Q, Zafar T, Butt MUT. Assessment of Family planning services utilization among women of Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):110-14 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022112

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

I

I

INTRODUCTION:

To control population and improve mother and child health, family planning is broadly acknowledged. Family planning has the potential to save 30% of maternal fatalities and 10% of infant deaths, making it one of the most health-promoting and cost-effective public health efforts. By decreasing the maternal mortality and morbidity and improving space between pregnancies, family planning assists in achieving

Mehwish Fayaz (Corresponding Author) Lecturer, Department of Eastern Medicine and Surgery University of Poonch Rawalakot AJK Email: mehwishkhan77992@gmail.com I **Qandeel Tahir** Lecturer, Department of Public Health Al-Shifa Trust Eye Hospital Rawalpindi Email: qandeel.tahir89@gmail.com L Tehmina Zafar Phd Scholar, Department of Agricultural & Biological Sciences University of Poonch Rawalakot Email: tehminazaffar27@gmail.com Muhammad Usman Tayyab Butt General Physician, Department of Eastern Medicine Barkat Healthcare Email: mr.usmantayyab@gmail.com Received: 04-08-2022 Accepted: 06-03-2023

the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs).1

The government of Pakistan has been striving to enhance access to family planning services. However, as in many nations across the globe, there is still a need for family planning that has not been fulfilled. In the last 60 years, Pakistan's population has grown. Pakistan has grown from 44 million to 221 million people since 1960, and it is estimated that by 2050, the country would have a population of over 330 million. The country's growth rate of 3.00 percent is quite generous. "Overall, 34% of the married women employed some form of family planning, with 25% using modern methods and 9% using traditional methods. The most common modern techniques are male condoms and female sterilization (each used 9 percent). The contraceptive prevalence rate (CPR) among married women varies by age, rising from 7% among women aged 15-19 to 48% among women aged 40-45 before dropping to 37% among women aged 45-49".2

Women in urban areas are more likely to use a contraceptive method than women in rural areas (43 percent and 29 percent, respectively). With knowledge and money, the use of contraceptive treatments, both contemporary and traditional, rises.³

For example, compared to 30 percent of married women with a secondary or higher level of education, 22 percent of married women with no education used modern contraception. Similarly, 7 percent of married women with no education used conventional practices, compared to 14 percent of married women with a higher level of education who did. The population of Azad Jammu and Kashmir (AJ&K) is growing at a pace of 2.41 percent each year, with an average family size of 6.7 members.4

A total of 57 Family Welfare Centers are currently providing family planning services in ten districts in the state. These include Family Welfare Centers (FWCs) in the districts of Neelum, Bagh, Haveli, Poonch and Muzaffarabad as well as RHSC-A Centers in the districts, RHSC-A Centers in the tehsils, and 120 Social Mobilizers. In AJ&K, the demographic pyramid also shows the usual youthful hump, and rising urbanization trends are providing an even larger difficulty for our policymakers. 5

As a non-industrialized state with a limited private sector, we will have a major challenge in the years to come when it comes to finding jobs for our people. 6

The unmet need for family planning services in AJ&K is reaching 46 percent, which is intolerable. 7

Because of the dispersed population over such a large hilly area, impoverished people's access to services is severely restricted. Women's mobility is restricted outside the home due to poor economic conditions and a lower social status".8

This study was conducted to find out the percentage of women utilizing family planning services, to find out the association between demographic factors and utilization of family planning services in the Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir (AJ&K).

METHODOLOGY:

In Bangoin (Rawalakot), Azad Jammu and Kashmir, a crosssectional research was undertaken (AJ&K), over a period of six months from 5 January to 5 July 2021. It consist of 21 village, having 9456 household with the population of 1509 (census 2017). A sample of 344 married women with the age range 18 to 45 was obtained. Nonprobability convenient sampling was used. Informed Consent was taken from participants taking part in study. Confidentiality of participants was ensured. Data was collected by using questionnaire from door to door 34% prevalence was taken from (PDHS 2017-2018).²⁰ By using formula $n=Z^2(pq)/e^2$

e is the margin of error and Z is the z-score of the number of the standard deviation. At Margin of error of 5%, 95% confidence interval and 34% prevalence the sample size was 344 and after summing up 10% possible non-response final sample size was 390.Data was collected using a semistructured questionnaire derived from a prior research on the usage of family planning services (Reproductive health knowledge and services utilization among rural adolescence in Ethiopia 2014).

It consisted of two section A and B.

Section A (Demographic profile); Age of respondent, Education level of respondent, Respondent Profession, Husband education, Husband Profession, Family type, Total family income, Total family members, Distance from home to hospital, Number of children, Fear of side effects of using contraception, Exposure to mass media, which family member decide to use contraception, Birth interval between last two children.

Section B (Utilization of Family Planning Services); It consists of 13 questions to assess the utilization of family planning services.

Contraception use, use in last 12 months, Contraception method, heath worker service, health facility visit, health center, family planning poster, brochure, Discussion, Consultation, Doctor reviews, comfort, Availability.

Inclusion criteria was married women with one or more children. Women who were resident of Union council Bangoin (Rawalakot) AJ&K.

Exclusion criteria was women who were not willing to participate. Women who were not available at the time of data collection.

Reliability was tested by calculating Cronbach's alpha by using SPSS that was 17.0. Cronbach's alpha was 0.7. Statistical significance was set up to p=0.05.

Questionnaire was translated into Urdu and a pilot study carried out to ensure its validity before the main study could begin.

SPSS version 17.0 was used to conduct the analysis. Through frequency generation and sorting, all the initial data was thoroughly cleaned. For categorical variables, frequency and percentage were used to conduct descriptive analysis. Statistical significance was established using a Chi-square test for independence and a 95% level of confidence was used to find the relationship between independent and dependent variables, respectively.

Research was approved by institutional review board of Al-Shifa School of public health Rawalpindi Pakistan IRB number was MSPH-IRB/10-27.

RESULTS:

Demographic Characteristics of Respondents: Total sample of 344 women of age 18-45 was included in the study. About age of respondent 8.9% were with the age of 18-24, 39.7% were with the age of 25-31, 32.5% were with the age of 32-38, 17.5% were with the age of 39-45.

Concerning respondent profession; 83% were housewife, 10% were teachers, 0.6% were health workers, 2% were Tailor, 3% were with other profession. Out of 344; 16% husbands were illiterate, 41% were with primary education, 17% were with Matric education, 10% were intermediate, and 13% were graduates.11% husbands were unemployed, 8% were government employees, 34% were business man, 5% were private employees, 41% were with other profession. About 18% having 3 family members, 10% having 4 family members, 19% having 5 family members, 21% having 6 family members, 28% having more than 6 family members.

Out of 344; 11% with 10, 000 monthly income, 16% with 20,000 monthly income, 14% with 30,000 monthly income, 15% with 40,000 monthly income and 42% with more than 40,000 monthly income.44% women were living in nuclear family and 54% were from joint family.

10% having 1-2km, 26% having 3-4km, 21% having 5-6km, 31% having 7-8km, and 10% have more than 8km from home to hospital. 51% have no fear, 49% have fear of side effects of contraception. Out of total sample 45% have no exposure, 54% have exposure to mess media.

3% having 1 child, 32% having 2 children, 37% having 3 children, 18% having 4 children, 8% having more than 4 children.

44% had husband wife mutual decision, 43% respondent itself decide,6% only husband involve in decision, 4% mother in law involve,2% having other to decide.

Concerning birth interval between last two children; 23% have 1 year birth interval, 33% have 2 year birth interval, 21% have 3 year birth interval, 10% have 4 year birth interval, 11% have more than 4 year birth interval between last two children.

Utilization of Family Planning Services: Low utilization was 48%(n=165) while high utilization was 52%(n=176). Regarding utilization of family planning services 16% had never used any contraception to avoid pregnancy, 46% had rarely used, 14% occasionally used, 18% frequently used while 6% used very frequently. Concerning use of contraception in last 12 months; 41% had never used, 40% rarely used, 7% occasionally used, 6% used frequently while 5% used very frequently. About contraception methods; 33% had used natural method, 24% used condoms, 18% used oral contraceptive pills, 15% used injections, 8% used other methods. Concerning information and services by health workers; 43% never get any service or information, 39% were rarely served, 12% were occasionally served, 4% were frequently served while 0.6% were served very frequently. Regarding visit to health facility to get family planning information or services; 36% were never visited, 31% were rarely visited16% were occasionally visited, 7% were frequently visited, 9% were very frequently visited. About last visit; 32% were visited to government health centers, 39% had visited to private health center, 12% had visited to trust health centers, 16% had visited to other health centers. About Posters on family planning; 24% had never seen any poster, 41% had rarely seen any poster, 19% had occasionally seen any poster, 4% had frequently seen any poster, and 10% had very frequently seen posters on family

planning. Concerning provision of brochure on family planning; 48% had never got any brochure, 28% had rarely got brochure, 10% occasionally got brochures, 12% frequently got brochures, and 1% very frequently got brochures on family planning. Regarding talk about contraception by doctor during consultation; 41% had never, 31% had rarely, 9% had occasionally, 14% had frequently while 5% had very frequently listen about contraception by doctor. Concerning comfort to ask questions about contraception; 15% were strongly disagreed, 27% were disagreed, 39% were undecided, and 17% were agree while 1% were strongly agreed. Regarding availability of Family planning services; 8% were strongly disagreed, 27% were disagreed, 32% were undecided, and 28% were agreed while 4% were strongly agreed for availability of their required services.

Association of various demographic factors to utilization of family planning services:

The association between demographic factors and the use of family planning services was examined using the Chisquare test. There are two categories of family planning service use: low utilization (18%) and high utilization (72 percent). A strong association between Education level of respondent and utilization of family planning services, 54% of respondents who were graduates had high family planning services utilization as compared to under graduates .898(2) ,p-value 0.001. x^2 (df) 18.898(4),p = 0.001.Cross tabs between income and utilization of family planning services showed a significant association 75% of respondents who had monthly income more than 40,000 had high family planning services utilization as compared to respondents who had monthly income less than 40 thousand x^2 (df) 12.038(4), p 0.017. Detailed results given in table.

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of this research was to determine how often family planning services were used. Contraception is the only tool that can stop this population growth that is



Figure 1: Utilization of Family Planning Services

Variables	High	Low	Df	x ²	P-value
Respondent education Illiterate Primary Matric Intermediate Graduation	31(48.4%) 83(61.0%) 20(29.0%) 20(48.8%) 16(54%)	33(51.6%) 53(39.0%) 49(71.0%) 21(51.2%) 17(51.5%)	18.898	4	0.001*
Income 10000 20000 30000 40000 More	26(63.4%) 35(60.3%) 15(31.9%) 24(46.2%) 70(48.3%)	15(36.6%) 23(39.7%) 32(68.1%) 28(53.8%) 75(51.7%)	12.038	4	0.017
Fear of side effects No Yes	86(49.7%) 84(49.4%)	87(50.3%) 86(50.6%)	0.003	1	0.001*
Number of children 1 2 3 4 More	9(75.0%) 69(62.7%) 59(45.7%) 23(36.5%) 10(34.5%)	3(25.0%) 41(37.3%) 70(54.3%) 40(63.5%) 19(65.5%)	18.421	4	0.001*
Decision Husband wife Mutual Respondent itself Husband Mother in law Other	78(51.3%) 84(56.0%) 3(13.6%) 5(35.7%) 0(0%)	74(48.7%) 66(44.0%) 19(86.4%) 9(64.3%) 5(100.0%)	20.02	4	0.001*

 Table 1: Association of demographic factors to utilization of family planning services

*Significant at 95 CI, alpha, or p-valve < 0.05

exponential. Since it gives parents the freedom and responsibility to decide how many and how far apart to their children, family planning out space has long been seen as an effective tool for enhancing the health of both mother and child. In the district of Poonch in Azad Jammu and Kashmir, this research discovered that education, monthly income, fear of side effects, contraceptive usage, and the number of children are the most significant variables impacting women's use of family planning services (AJ&K).

According to a fertility and family planning study, just 24 percent of Pakistanis use contraception, despite the fact that 94 percent of Pakistanis are aware of at least one kind of family planning. According to this study's findings, 40% of women had never used family planning procedures but had stopped due to fear of adverse effects, and several women had also reported side effects, while the remaining 40% had never used contraception.⁹ Husband dissatisfaction was expressed by about 43% of respondents. When it comes to using family planning services, man permission and decision-making are critical.¹⁰

The majority of decision makers in this study were husbands when it came to the number of children and contraceptive use. Research conducted in Bangladesh found that about 85 percent of women need their husband's permission to use contraception.¹¹ Fear of negative effects was noted by 68 percent of women in a cross-sectional survey in GAZA, with husbands' opposition accounting for 31% of those who didn't use family planning techniques. According to another survey conducted in Turkey, the top reason for married women not using any Family Planning (FP) methods was their husband's disapproval.¹²

In contrast, research conducted at a tertiary care hospital in Lahore indicated that roughly 74% of men had a favorable attitude toward contraception.¹³ Education plays a vital role in the lives of women and helps them make decisions. Pakistan has a low literacy rate, with rural areas having a higher rate. According to the research, 15% of women were illiterate, while 39% had only received primary education.¹⁴

In a cross-sectional research was out in the Khairpur district, oral pills were found to be the most popular option, with 90 percent of respondents knowing about them, followed by female sterilization at 88.3 percent and injectable contraceptives at 87.6 percent.¹⁵ Although it is believed that the media is a significant source of public information^{16,17}, only 6% of women in this study received family planning information from the media, with health care providers

Assessment of Family planning services utilization among women of Union Council Bangoin (Rawalakot) Azad Jammu and Kashmir

remaining the most common source of information. While this is encouraging, the media must demonstrate its role in combating resistance to fertility decline in Pakistan¹⁸. In our country, increasing the use of family planning services is a major challenge.^{19,20} Over half of presently married contraceptive users (53%) acquire their supplies from public hospitals, whereas 45 percent get their supplies from the private sector.

CONCLUSION:

Finding suggested that low utilization was 48% while high utilization was 52%. This study found association between family planning use and education, monthly income, fear of side effects, exposure to mass media, interval between last two children and distance from home to hospital. Fear of side effects for using contraceptives has been identified as the major cause of unmet need for family planning in Pakistan.

Authors Contribution:

- Mehwish Fayaz: Conduct whole research, (including research design, data collection, data analysis), paper writing Qandeel Tahir: Supervisor
- **Tehmina Zafar:** Contribution in data collection

REFERENCES:

- Mesfin Yesgat Y, Gebremeskel F, Estifanous W, Gizachew Y, Jemal S, Atnafu N, et al. Utilization of Family Planning Methods and Associated Factors Among Reproductive-Age Women with Disability in Arba Minch Town, Southern Ethiopia. Open Access J Contracept [Internet]. 2020;11:25–32. https://doi.org/10.2147/OAJC.S240817
- Ali M, Azmat SK, Hamza HB. Assessment of modern contraceptives continuation, switching and discontinuation among clients in Pakistan: study protocol of 24-months post family planning voucher intervention follow up. BMC health services research. 2018;18(1):1-7. https://doi.org/10.1186 /s12913-018-3156-0
- Azmat SK, Ali M, Ishaque M, Mustafa G, Hameed W, Khan OF, Abbas G, Temmerman M, Munroe E. Assessing predictors of contraceptive use and demand for family planning services in underserved areas of Punjab province in Pakistan: results of a cross-sectional baseline survey. Reproductive health. 2015;12(1):1-0. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12978-015-0016-9
- 4. Bhutta ZA, Hafeez A. What can Pakistan do to address maternal and child health over the next decade?. Health research policy and systems. 2015;13(1):13-6. https://doi.org /10.1186/s12961-015-0036-5
- Gebremedhin AY, Kebede Y, Gelagay AA, Habitu YA. Family planning use and its associated factors among women in the extended postpartum period in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. Contraception and reproductive medicine. 2018;3(1):1-8. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40834-017-0054-5
- Khalil SN, Alzahrani MM, Siddiqui AF. Unmet need and demand for family planning among married women of Abha, Aseer Region in Saudi Arabia. Middle East Fertility Society Journal. 2018;23(1):31-6. https://doi.org/10.1186/s13104-019-4180-9
- 7. Mustafa G, Azmat SK, Hameed W, Ali S, Ishaque M, Hussain W, Ahmed A, Munroe E. Family planning knowledge, attitudes, and practices among married men and women in rural areas of Pakistan: Findings from a qualitative need assessment study. International journal of reproductive medicine. 2015 Sep 1;2015. 10.1155/2015/190520

- Noreen K, Khan KA, Khan N, Khan SA, Khalid N. Contraceptive Prevalence Rate, Unmet Need for Family Planning and Its Associated Factors among Women of Reproductive Age Group. Pakistan Journal of Public Health. 2018;8(2):63-9. https://doi.org/10.32413/pjph.v8i2.136
- 9. Gebremedhin AY, Kebede Y, Gelagay AA, Habitu YA. Family planning use and its associated factors among women in the extended postpartum period in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. Contraception and reproductive medicine. 2018;3(1):1-8. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40834-017-0054-5
- Hackett K, Henry E, Hussain I, Khan M, Feroz K, Kaur N, Sato R, Soofi S, Canning D, Shah I. Impact of home-based family planning counselling and referral on modern contraceptive use in Karachi, Pakistan: a retrospective, crosssectional matched control study. BMJ open. 2020 Sep 1;10(9):e039835. http://dx.doi.org/10.1136/bmjopen-2020-039835
- 11. Vora KS, Saiyed S, Natesan S. Impact of COVID-19 on family planning services in India. Sexual and reproductive health matters. 2020;28(1):1785378.10.1080/26410397.2020.1785 378
- Khalil SN, Alzahrani MM, Siddiqui AF. Unmet need and demand for family planning among married women of Abha, Aseer Region in Saudi Arabia. Middle East Fertility Society Journal. 2018;23(1):31-6. https://doi.org/10.29052/2413-4252.v7.i1.2021.37-46
- Dmello JR, Ranjan S. Lock unlock: the impact of COVID-19 on health security in Pakistani and Indian prisons. Victims & Offenders. 2020;15(7-8):970-87. https://doi.org/10.1080/ 15564886.2020.1822973
- Unsafe abortion and post abortion family planning in Africa: the case of Lesotho - PubMed. (n.d.). https://doi.org/10.1186/ s12961-015-0036-5
- Worku SA, Ahmed SM, Mulushewa TF. Unmet need for family planning and its associated factor among women of reproductive age in Debre Berhan Town, Amhara, Ethiopia. BMC research notes. 2019;12(1):1-6. Doi: https://doi.org/ 10.1186/s13104-019-4180-9
- Hackett K, Henry E, Hussain I, Khan M, Feroz K, Kaur N, Sato R, Soofi S, Canning D, Shah I. Impact of home-based family planning counselling and referral on modern contraceptive use in Karachi, Pakistan: a retrospective, crosssectional matched control study. BMJ open. 2020;10(9):e039835. Doi: 10.1136/bmjopen-2020-039835
- 17. Vora KS, Saiyed S, Natesan S. Impact of COVID-19 on family planning services in India. Sexual and reproductive health matters. 2020;28(1):1785378. doi: 10.1080/26410397.2 020.1785378
- Asif MF, Pervaiz Z, Afridi JR, Abid G, Lassi ZS. Role of husband's attitude towards the usage of contraceptives for unmet need of family planning among married women of reproductive age in Pakistan. BMC Womens Health [Internet]. 2021;21(1):1–7. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1186/ s12905-021-01314-4
- Ali M, Azmat SK, Hamza H Bin. Assessment of modern contraceptives continuation, switching and discontinuation among clients in Pakistan: Study protocol of 24-months post family planning voucher intervention follow up. BMC Health Serv Res. 2018 May 11;18(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12913-018-3156-0
- pdhs 2017-18 family planning Google Search [Internet]. [cited 2021 Jun 12]. Available from: https://www. google. com/search?q=pdhs+201718+family+planning&rlz=1C1G CEA_enPK909PK909&oq=&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8

Association Between Stress and Parafunctional Habits Among Undergraduate **Healthcare Students of Pakistan**

Rabia Masood, Afifa Ehsan, Naila Umer, Simra Khan, Mahgul Asif, Sabaiyna Sohail

ABSTRACT:

Objective: Stress is a feeling of mental pressure and tension which leads to parafunctional habits increasing the risk of developing temporomandibular disorders. The purpose of this study was to assess the association between parafunctional habits as well as stress in undergraduate medical and dental students.

Study Design And Setting: This cross-sectional study was carried out from April 01, 2020, to October 31, 2021, amongst the students of different medical and dental colleges, both in the private and public sectors in Punjab, Sindh, and the Federal areas in Pakistan.

Methodology: The study comprised 466 students between 18 to 25 years. A self-compiled and validated questionnaire was shared with students belonging to various years of different medical and dental colleges. Response from all the forms was analyzed using SPSS Version 20 and the relationship between stress and parafunctional habits was assessed.

Results: Results indicated that the stress of studies was the most common stress among students (75.1%, n = 350) while the most common parafunctional habit was lip biting (30%, n = 140). The association between different types of stresses and parafunctional habits was seen to be significantly related to one another.

Conclusion: A significant relationship between parafunctional habits and stress was seen in undergraduate medical and dental students.

Keywords: Bruxism, dental students, habits, medical students, nail-biting, parafunctional habits, stress, temporomandibular joint disorders, thumb sucking.

How to cite this Article:

Masood R, Ehsan A, Umer N, Khan S, Asif M, Sohail S. Association Between Stress And Parafunctional Habits Among Undergraduate Healthcare Students Of Pakistan. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):115-20 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022117

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Rabia Masood

I

I

I

L

I

L

L

Associate Professor, Department of Oral Pathology, Islamic International Dental College, Riphah International L University, Islamabad L Email: drrabiamasood@gmail.com Afifa Ehsan (Corresponding Author) Associate Professor & Head Department of Oral Biology, Faryal Dental College, Lahore Email: afifaehsan@gmail.com Naila Umer L Assistant Professor, Department of Oral Pathology, Faryal Dental College, Lahore, Pakistan. Email: dr.naila.umer@gmail.com Simra Khan Year BDS Student, Islamic International Dental College, Riphah International University, Islamabad Email: simrakhan3217@gmail.com L Mahgul Asif L ^{4th} Year BDS Student, Islamic International Dental College, Riphah International University, Islamabad Email: mahgulasif13@gmail.com Sabaivna Sohail Т 4th Year BDS Student, Islamic International Dental College, Riphah International University, Islamabad Email: sabaiyna1998@gmail.com L Т Received: 17-08-2022 Accepted: 22-02-2023

INTRODUCTION:

The word "stress" was made up by Hans Selve in 1936, who described it as "the non-specific response of the body to any demand for change.". Hans Selye, also known as the father of stress observed that patients with different illnesses were found to be suffering from many similar symptoms that were commonly due to a stressful stimulus.¹ In psychological sciences, it is a feeling of mental pressure and tension. The predictable prevalence of emotional disruption seen in various studies on medical students is greater than that in the overall population.² Stress among healthcare students can be a substantial peril, ensuing corporeal or psychological illness, and can harm students' performance as well as professional practice.³

Stress can also lead to insomnia which causes hyperarousal leading to an imbalance between sleep and wakefulness. Less sleep duration furthermore results in negative neurophysical functioning causing voluntary and involuntary parafunctional habits.⁴ It has also been reported that parafunctional habits such as bruxism are in response to emotional stress and are more commonly encountered in miserable, anxious individuals who are emotionally stressed. Stress has developed into a widespread phenomenon that has advanced extensively in recent years.4

Masticatory muscle movements can be natural or irregular and are characterized as functional (e.g., swallowing, chewing, and speaking) or parafunctional (e.g., tooth clenching, grinding, nail-biting, cheek biting, and various other oral habits).⁵ Parafunctional behaviors are commonly witnessed in the overall population and can bring about impairment of the dentition, masticatory system, and joints when they surpass the individual's physical and structural forbearance of the masticatory system.⁶ Parafunctional habits for instance bruxism and clenching of teeth may likewise intensify the possibility of resulting temporomandibular disorders.

Bruxism and clenching of teeth have occurrence equal to 90% of the overall population and are the most common parafunctional habits. The harmful results of parafunction bring about the collapse of vulnerable structures, which include the teeth, temporomandibular joint, periodontal tissues, and muscles. Whether normal or acute, bruxism and clenching of teeth can cause wear of teeth and can damage oral structures. It can also cause the collapse of periodontal tissues in the existence of muscular dysfunction, inflammation, and internal derangement. Consequently, a patient with such parafunctional habits can have tooth and joint pathology together.⁷

In addition to stress, parafunctional habits are also caused due to anxiety and depend on the personality type of the individual. Personality traits play an important role in an individual's ability to cope with different forms of stress such as those due to emotional reasons and others due as a consequence of depression.⁸ Undergraduate learning is a fragile phase in the life of a learner in which they deal with academic pressure and apprehension. Undergraduate learners need to manage the educational and social difficulties which they encounter during their professional careers.⁴ Therefore, it is imperative for undergraduate institutes to recognize the levels of stress among their students to present a stress-free learning environment to learners.⁴ The current study aims to evaluate the association between these parafunctional habits and stress in undergraduate medical and dental students.

METHODOLOGY:

This cross-sectional study was carried out between April 01, 2020, to October 31, 2021, amongst 466 students of 19 different medical and dental colleges in Punjab, Sindh, and the Federal areas in Pakistan. The sample of the study was calculated through the WHO sample size calculator taking the proportion of stress and depression among medical and dental students equal to 50%, confidence level equal to 95%, and margin of error equal to 5%.⁹⁻¹⁰ A random sampling technique was employed to collect the sample. Informed consent was sought from the research participants beforehand. A self-compiled and validated questionnaire was shared with the students belonging to various years of different medical and dental colleges, both in the private and public

sectors. The value of Cronbach's alpha achieved was 0.76. The questionnaire comprised various questions regarding types of stress encountered along with different parafunctional habits.

Participants were well-versed regarding the purpose of the research and informed consent was sought beforehand. The study was permitted by the Ethical Review Committee of Islamic International Dental College (IIDC), Riphah International University, Islamabad, Pakistan vide letter no IIDC/IRC/2020/003/009.

The inclusion criteria comprised of:

• Subjects from both sexes, male and female were considered.

• Subjects ranging from 18 to 25 years of age were incorporated.

The exclusion criteria comprised of:

• Subjects who previously had orthodontic treatment were excluded.

• Subjects whose age was less than 18 years and more than 25 years were also excluded from the research.

• Subjects who had fresh trauma to the head, neck, or jaw were also excluded.

The data obtained as a result of the questionnaire was statistically evaluated using Statistical Package for Social Sciences SPSS® software for Windows® version 20. Descriptive analysis was generated to calculate frequencies and percentages and the association between the variables of stress and parafunctional habits was studied using the help of the Chi-square test. The significance level was kept at P = 0.05.

RESULTS:

Out of the total 466 respondents from different medical and dental colleges, both in the private and public sectors 65.2% (n = 304) were females and 34.8% (n = 162) were males. The age limit included in the investigation was from 18 years to 25 years. The majority of the respondents (87.1%; n = 406) reported that stressful situations (e.g., during exams, viva, and patient interactions) make them feel anxious while the rest 12.9 % (n = 60) stated that they don't feel nervous in such situations. The prevalence of different types of stress among the students is shown in Figure 1, highlighting stress of studies (n = 350; 75.1%) to be the most common stress among students followed by the stress of unclear concepts of the study material (n = 333; 71.5%), the stress of failing (n = 313; 67.2%) and meeting parents and teacher expectations (n = 267; 57.3%). A total of 385 respondents reported having some sort of parafunctional habits, among them most common was lip biting (30%; n = 140) followed by the clenching of teeth (13.3%; n = 62). Other parafunctional habits among the students were lip licking (11.4%; n = 53), nail biting (9%; n = 42), grinding of teeth (10.1%; n = 47), chewing of food on one side (4.7%; n =

22) and cheek biting (4.1%; n = 19). The association of parafunctional habits with gender was found to be insignificant (Table-1). A significant association was found between a few types of stress and parafunctional habits (Table-II). The stress of failure, future uncertainty, and stress of unemployment was found to be the most common reason resulting in maladaptive habits among the students. Lip biting, clenching, and grinding of teeth was commonly noted concerning this stress.









DISCUSSION:

Medical and dental school is often regarded as a demanding program. Fear and insecurity are rampant among the pupils, making their psychological and bodily health vulnerable. In this research, dental and medical students were recruited as study participants to accentuate the link between stress and parafunctional behaviors in undergraduate medical and dental students.⁴ Bruxism, clenching, grinding of teeth, lip licking, lip biting, nail-biting, thumb sucking, and other oral behaviors not related to mastication, swallowing, or speaking are all examples of oral parafunctional habits. Parafunctional potencies surpass customary masticatory forces, with the subsequent force vector being predominantly horizontal. Keeping in view such circumstances, impairment is prospective to transpire to the teeth and the periodontal tissues.⁴

In the current study, the association between stress and parafunctional habits was assessed and the incidence of parafunctional habits in students was documented. According to the results, 75.1% of the students reported stress from their studies, 71.5% reported stress from unclear concepts of the study material, and 67.2% reported stress from failing. Respondents who reported the previously mentioned stresses also reported parafunctional habits like clenching and grinding of teeth, and lip and cheek biting, thereby showing a positive association between stress and para-functional behaviors.

Studies conducted by Butt et al. found no significant relation between nail-biting, teeth grinding, and clenching while Paulino et al. reported that parafunctional habits, stress, and anxiety had a significant relationship with the development of temporomandibular disorders which are in agreement with the results of the present study.^{8,11} Various studies also reported a close association between females and parafunctional habits. Apprehension and dejection scores were found to be considerably greater in female participants. In the current study, 65.2% of the study participants were females and a majority of the respondents had stress which lead to the development of parafunctional habits progressing to temporomandibular disorders.^{11-14,16-17}

The most widespread parafunctional habit seen in the present

GENDER (%ages within gender)	PARAFUNCTIONAL HABITS									
	Nail Biting	Clenching Of Teeth	Grinding Of Teeth	Lip Biting	Lip Licking	Cheek Biting	Chewing Food On One Side	None Of Above	P-value	
Male	16 (9.9%)	25 15.4%)	18 (11.1%)	36 (22.2%)	22 (13.6%)	9 (5.6%)	8 (4.9%)	28 (17.3%)	0.268	
Female	26 (8.6%)	37 (12.2 %)	29 (9.5%)	104 (34.2%)	31 (10.2%)	10 (3.3%)	14 (4.6%)	53 (17.4%)	0.208	

Table-1: Association Of Gender With Parafunctional Habits

P < 0.05 was considered a significant

*P is significant at the 0.05 level

Statistical analysis was performed by applying Chi-Square Test

TYDES OF STDESS		PARAFUNCTIONAL HABITS									
(%ages within stress)		Nail Biting	Clenching Of Teeth	Grinding Of Teeth	Lip Biting	Lip Licking	Cheek Biting	Chewing Food On One Side	None Of Above	P-Value	
a ola k	Yes	30 (8.6%)	50 (14.3%)	35 (10%)	100 (28.6%)	40 (11.4%)	15 (4.3%)	17 (4.9%)	63 (18%)		
Stress Of Studies	No	12 (10.3%)	12 (10.3%)	12 (10.3%)	40 (34.5%)	13 (11.2%)	4 (3.4%)	5 (4.3%)	18 (15.5%)	0.89	
Stress Of Teacher	Yes	13 (7.2%)	27 (14.9%)	21 (11.6%)	58 (32%)	21 (11.6%)	11 (6.1%)	6 (3.3%)	24 (13.3%)	0.00	
Interaction	No	29 (10.2%)	35 (12.3%)	26 (9.1%)	82 (28.8%)	32 (11.2%)	8 (2.8%)	16 (5.6%)	57 (20%)	57 (20%)	
Stress Of Future Uncertainty	Yes	9 (17.3%)	0 (0%)	7 (13.5%)	19 (36.5%)	6 (11.5%)	1 (1.9%)	3 (5.8%)	7 (13.5%)	0.03*	
	No	33 (8%)	62 (15%)	40 (9.7%)	121 (29.2%)	47 (11.4%)	18 (4.3%)	19 (4.6%)	74 (17.9%)	0.05	
Stress Of Patient	Yes	1 (14.3%)	2 (28.6%)	1 (14.3%)	1 (14.3%)	0 (0%)	$ \begin{array}{c} 0 \\ (0\%) \\ 1 \end{array} $	1 (14.3%)	1 (14.3%)	0.60	
Interaction	No	41 (8.9%)	60 (13.1%)	46 (10%)	139 (30.3%)	53 (11.5%)	9 (4.1%)	21 (4.6%)	80 (17.4%)	0.09	
Stress Of Unclear	Yes	30 (9%)	43 (12.9%)	33 (9.9%)	99 (29.7%)	40 (12%)	13 (3.9%)	17 (5.1%)	58 (17.4%)	0.99	
Concepts	No	12 (9%)	19 (14.3%)	14 (10.5%)	41 (30.8%)	13 (9.8%)	6 (4.5%)	5 (3.8%)	23 (17.3%)		
Stress Of Meeting Parents/	Yes	21 (7.9%)	41 (15.4%)	31 (11.6%)	81 (30.3%)	33 (12.4%)	12 (4.5%)	12 (4.5%)	36 (13.5%)	0.15	
Teacher Expectations	No	21 (10.6%)	21 (10.6%)	16 (8%)	59 (29.6%)	20 (10.1%)	7 (3.5%)	10 (5%)	45 (22.6%)	0.15	
Stracs Of Failura	Yes	24 (7.7%)	51 (16.3%)	34 (10.9%)	93 (29.7%)	39 (12.5%)	12 (3.8%)	10 (3.2%)	50 (16%)	0.02*	
suess Or Fallure	No	18 (11.8%)	11 (7.2%)	13 (8.5%)	47 (30.7%)	14 (9.2%)	7 (4.6%)	12 (7.8%)	31 (20.3%)	0.02	
Stress Of	Yes	12 (5.6%)	36 (16.9%)	27 (12.7%)	69 (32.4%)	25 (11.7%)	8 (3.8%)	8 (3.8%)	28 (13.1%)	0.01*	
Unemployment	No	30 (11.9%)	26 (10.3%)	20 (7.9%)	71 (28.1%)	28 (11.1%)	11 (4.3%)	14 (5.5%)	53 (20.9%)	0.01*	

Table-2: Association Of Stress With Different Parafunctional Habits

P < 0.05 was considered a significant

*P is significant at the 0.05 level

Statistical analysis was performed by applying Chi-Square Test

study was lip biting in 30% of the students which was in agreement with the results of Malik et al. whereas other studies observed chewing gums as the most common one.^{16,18-19} Thumb sucking was found to be least prevalent which was in agreement with Malik et al. findings although the least prevailing parafunctional habit narrated by Butt et al. was chewing gums.^{8,16} Prevalence of temporomandibular disorders as a consequence of oral parafunctional habits was found to be higher in dental students as reported by different studies.¹³⁻¹⁵

The stress experienced by students had a significant association with clenching and grinding of teeth and a close relationship between bruxism and anxiety was also reported by Homeida et al.¹⁴ Bruxism is described as the clenching or grinding of teeth whether awake or sleeping. It's generally done unconsciously, and most individuals aren't aware of it.⁶ In an investigation conducted by Atsü et al. there was a positive association between nail-biting and temporomandibular disorders whereas the present study showed no significant association between stress and nail-biting in medical and dental students.⁶

Within the scope of this study, it was determined that there

is a positive association between stress and parafunctional habits like clenching and grinding of teeth, lip biting, pen/pencil chewing, cheek biting, and chewing of food on one side of the oral cavity as seen in other studies as well.²¹⁻²² Treatment planning should take oral parafunctional habits, and anxiety into account simultaneously, and a multidisciplinary methodology combining dentists and psychologists should be appointed for prosperous treatment. Further studies should be conducted with much larger sample sizes including a larger number and a wider spectrum of participants from different hospitals in various areas of the country.

CONCLUSION:

Based on the current investigation we concluded that stress and parafunctional habits are closely associated with one another. There is an increase in parafunctional habits when students encounter stressful situations. The stress of studies is the most commonly encountered among medical and dental students followed by the stress of future uncertainty. Lip biting, clenching and grinding of teeth, and cheek biting are the most common parafunctional habits reported.

- Authors Contribution:
- Rabia Masood: Contributed to the conceptualization of the study and is responsible for the integrity of the study Afifa Ehsan: Helped in the acquisition, analysis, interpretation of data, and writing of the manuscript
- **Naila Umer:** Contributed to the initial write-up in the introduction and discussion part
- Simra Khan: Contributed to the initial write-up in the introduction and discussion part
- Mahgul Asif: Helped in the acquisition, analysis, interpretation of data, and writing of the manuscript
- Sabaiyna Sohail: Helped in the acquisition, analysis,

interpretation of data, and writing of the manuscrip

REFERENCES:

- 1. Fink G. Stress: definition and history. Stress science: neuroendocrinology. 2010;3(9).
- Abdulghani HM, AlKanhal AA, Mahmoud ES, Ponnamperuma GG, Alfaris EA. Stress and its effects on medical students: a cross-sectional study at a college of medicine in Saudi Arabia. Journal of health, population, and nutrition. 2011;29(5):516. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3329/jhpn.v29i5.8906
- 3. Alzahem AM, Van der Molen HT, De Boer BJ. Effect of year of study on stress levels in male undergraduate dental students. Advances in Medical Education and Practice. 2013;4:217. DOI: https://doi.org/10.2147/AMEP.S46214
- 4. Sardar KP. Association among improper sleep, stress and parafunctional habits in dental students at Dow University of Health Sciences. JPDA. 2015;24(04):194.
- Rao S, Bhat M, David J. Work, stress, and diurnal bruxism: a pilot study among information technology professionals in Bangalore City, India. International Journal of Dentistry. 2011;2011. https://doi.org/10.1155/2011/650489
- Atsü SS, Güner S, Palulu N, Bulut AC, Kürkçüoðlu I. Oral parafunctions, personality traits, anxiety and their association with signs and symptoms of temporomandibular disorders in the adolescents. African health sciences. 2019;19(1):1801-10. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4314/ahs.v19i1.57

- Ferreira FM, Simamoto-Júnior PC, Novais VR, Tavares M, Fernandes-Neto AJ. Correlation between temporomandibular disorders, occlusal factors and oral parafunction in undergraduate students. Brazilian Journal of Oral Sciences. 2014;13:281-7. https://doi.org/10.1590/1677-3225v13n4a08
- Butt H, Khan NR, ur Rehman S, Waheed Z, Babary DF, Shah TH. Association between Oral Parafunctional Habits with Personality Type in Individuals. Pakistan Journal of Medical & Health Sciences. 2022;16(04):561-. DOI: https://doi. org/10.53350/pjmhs22164561
- BABAR A, JAWWAD G, SHUJAAT K, KHURSHID A, NIAZ IA, AHMAD A, LAIQUE T. Assessment of Stress Prevalence among Pakistani Medical Students. Pakistan Journal of Medical and Health Sciences. 2021;14(4):1858-60.
- Rizvi F, Qureshi A, Rajput AM, Afzal M. Prevalence of depression, anxiety and stress (by DASS scoring system) among medical students in Islamabad, Pakistan. Br J Med Med Res. 2015;8(1):69-75. DOI : https://doi.org/ 10.9734 /BJMMR/2015/17193
- Paulino MR, Moreira VG, Lemos GA, Silva PL, Bonan PR, Batista AU. Prevalence of signs and symptoms of temporomandibular disorders in college preparatory students: associations with emotional factors, parafunctional habits, and impact on quality of life. Ciência & Saúde Coletiva. 2018;23:173-86. DOI : https://doi.org/10.1590/1413-81232018231.18952015
- Yadav U, Ahmed J, Ongole R, Shenoy N, Sujir N, Natarajan S. Influence of psychosocial factors and parafunctional habits in temporomandibular disorders: a cross-sectional study. The Permanente Journal. 2020;24. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.7812 /TPP/19.144
- Eraslan R, Ozturk T. Investigation of the presence and relationship between temporomandibular disorder and oral parafunctions in dental assistant students: A cross-sectional study. Oral Science International. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1002 /osi2.1149
- Homeida L, Felemban E, Kassar W, Ameen M, Aldahlawi S. Temporomandibular joints disorders (TMDs) prevalence and their relation to anxiety in dental students. F1000Research. 2022 Apr 27;11:271. DOI: https://doi.org/10.12688/ f1000research.76178.2
- Bal B, Sarak G, Oral K. Oral health-related quality of life and psychological states of dental students with temporomandibular disorders. Journal of Dental Education. 2022 May 19. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1002/jdd.12951
- Malik W, Malik S, Shakir S, Khan A, Qadeer A, Malik W. Sign and Symptom of Temporomandibular Joint Disorders and Associated Parafuncion Habits in Young Adults. Pakistan Journal of Medical & Health Sciences. 2022 Apr 9;16(02):1146-. DOI: https://doi.org/10.53350/ pjmhs2216 21146
- Kim JH, Kim CH. Relationship between stress, oral parafunctional habits, and temporomandibular joint disorders among college students. Journal of Technologic Dentistry. 2020;42(3):254-61. DOI: https://doi.org/10.14347/jtd. 2020.42.3.254
- Acharya S, Pradhan A, Chaulagain R, Shah A. Temporomandibular joint disorders and its relationship with parafunctional habits among undergraduate medical and dental students. Journal of College of Medical Sciences-Nepal. 2018 ;14(3):154-9. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3126/jcmsn.v14i3.20289

- 19. Hashemipour MA, Moslemi F, Mirzadeh A, Mirzadeh A. Parafunctional habits and their relationship with temporomandibular joint disorders in Iranian school students. Meandros Medical and Dental Journal. 2018 Sep 1;19(3):247. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4274/meandros.41636
- Allen JD, Rivera-Morales WC, Zwemer JD. The occurrence of temporomandibular disorder symptoms in healthy young adults with and without evidence of bruxism. CRANIO®. 1990;8(4):312-8. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1080/08869634. 1990.11678331
- 21. Augusto VG, Perina KC, Penha DS, Santos DC, Oliveira VA. Temporomandibular dysfunction, stress and common mental

disorder in university students. Acta ortopedica brasileira. 2016;24:330-3. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1590/1413-785220162406162873

22. Chatzopoulos GS, Sanchez M, Cisneros A, Wolff LF. Prevalence of temporomandibular symptoms and parafunctional habits in a university dental clinic and association with gender, age, and missing teeth. CRANIO®. 2019;37(3):159-67. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1080/08869634. 2017.1399649

Cytogenetic Analysis of Patients with Recurrent Miscarriages

Muhammad Umar, Hamid Saeed Malik, Hira Nadeem, Babar Zaman, Noor ul Huda Alhadi, Fauzia Khan

ABSTRACT

Objective: To evaluate the cytogenetic analysis of patients with recurrent miscarriages.

Study design and setting: Cross-sectional study, Department of Hematology, Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi from February 2022 to August 2022.

Methodology: 196 patients (98 couples) of recurrent miscarriages within the reproductive age group were included. Cases with known anatomical or endocrinal causes of recurrent miscarriages were excluded. Couples with abnormal reproductive tract anatomy or abnormal endocrine functions were excluded. A standardized system for human cytogenetic nomenclature was used for identifying all chromosomal aberrations. Axioscope microscopes (MetaSystems, Germany) were used for visualizing the metaphases, and MetaSystems software (MetaSystems, Germany) was used to determine the karyotype of each metaphase. Data were analyzed using the student t-test and Chi-square test. A p-value =0.05 was considered significant.

Results: Of 98 couples, most of the couples experienced 3 miscarriages. The difference in ages between males and females was significant (p-value <0.001). Chromosomal abnormalities were found in 7 (7.2%) of females and 5 (5.2%) of males. Positive family history of RPL was noted in 27 (13.8%) of the participants. A total of 12/196 (6.1%) males and females experiencing RPL had chromosomal anomalies. Out of these 1 individual (0.5%) had structural aberration, 1(0.5%) numerical abnormality, and 10 (5.1%) were found to have Chromosome Polymorphism.

Conclusions: Translocations, numerical aberrations, and chromosomal polymorphism are common cytogenetic abnormalities noted in cases with RPL. Clinicians should refer such couples for karyotyping to rule out the possible genetic causes of recurrent miscarriages.

Keywords: Chromosomes, Cytogenetics, Recurrent Pregnancy Loss

How to cite this Article:

Umar M, Malik HS, Nadeem H, Zaman B, Alhadi NH, Khan F. Cytogenetic Analysis of Patients with Recurrent Miscarriages. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):121-4 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022148

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Muhammad Umar (Corresponding Author) Registrar, Department of Haematology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi Email: muhammadumar14397@gmail.com
Hamid Saeed Malik Consultant, Head Department of Haematology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi Email: hamidsaeed819@gmail.com
Hira Nadeem Registrar. Department of Medicine Combined Military Hospital, Rawalpindi Email: hiraumar1820@gmail.com
Babar Zaman Registrar, Department of Haematology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi Email: bqueenz03@gmail.com
Noor ul Huda Alhadi Registrar, Department of Haematology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi Email: hudahadi156@gmail.com
Fauzia Khan Registrar, Department of Haematology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi Email: fauzianust15@gmail.com
Received: 02-11-2022 Accepted: 17-03-2023

INTRODUCTION:

One of the most common clinical complications during pregnancy is miscarriage. In nature, miscarriages usually occur at 20–28 weeks of pregnancy as a way to select genetically normal offspring. As nature's quality control, miscarriages occur spontaneously.¹ It is estimated that 15–20% of clinically recognized pregnancies end in early pregnancy loss in the first trimester.²

The term recurrent pregnancy loss (RPL) refers to three or more consecutive losses of pregnancies before 20 to 22 weeks of pregnancy, but in recent years, even two consecutive miscarriages have been considered RPL. In clinically recognized pregnancies, approximately 15% will result in pregnancy failure, with occult abortion being an unrecognized subset of these cases.³

Only 50% of RPL cases have an identifiable etiology, while the rest remain undetermined.⁴ A chromosomal aberration in the embryo is thought to be responsible for 60% of RMs.⁵ Several factors have been proposed as contributing factors to RPL, making it difficult to determine its exact cause. Among these factors are genetics, advanced maternal and paternal ages, luteal phase defects during pregnancy, endocrine dysfunction, autoimmunity, infectious diseases, environmental toxins, congenital anomalies, and uterine anomalies. $^{\rm 6}$

Statistically, 25–50% more chances for miscarriage are present when one parent carries chromosome abnormalities than when the other does.⁷ In fact, 50% of spontaneously aborted infants have abnormal chromosomes.⁸ The abnormalities include structural chromosomal aberrations as well as numerical chromosomal anomalies.⁹ Fetal genetic defects are usually responsible for repeated pregnancy losses during the first trimester.

Chromosome anomalies are also common in late pregnancies. Approximately 30% of pregnancies lost in the second trimester of pregnancy and 5% in the third trimester are affected by chromosomal anomalies.¹⁰

As a result of balanced chromosomal rearrangements, unbalanced gametes can cause RPL, stillbirths, and neonates with multiple congenital anomalies. Recurrent miscarriages can be caused by balanced structural chromosome abnormalities (such as inversions and translocations) in parents.¹⁰ Couples, who are unable to create a viable pregnancy, may feel guilty and physically exhausted because of RPL. Chromosome analysis of both parents is recommended for the management of recurrent miscarriages.¹⁰ Researchers have reported varying frequencies of balanced chromosomal rearrangements between 2% to 8% in couples that experience RPL. The rate is much higher than the 0.2% to 0.5% observed in the general population. Chromosome rearrangements were not accurately estimated in our population of couples with RPL.³

Currently, cytogenetic analysis of miscarriages is an uncommon practice, and couples with RM have been negatively affected by this unfortunate omission. Unfortunately, this omission has negatively impacted the management of couples with RM. The study aims to improve the knowledge of clinicians in the region regarding cytogenetic analysis of repeated miscarriages as well as generate baseline data regarding chromosomal aberrations among RM patients.

METHODOLOGY:

This cross-sectional study was conducted at the Department of Hematology, Armed Forces Institute of Pathology Rawalpindi for a duration of six months (February 2022 to August 2022). Ethical approval was obtained from the institutional review board (IRB) vide reference number (FC-HEM21-13/READ.IRB/22/1293). After a thorough literature search, we calculated the sample size using a WHO calculator, keeping a 5% margin of error,95% confidence level, and prevalence of recurrent pregnancy loss (RPL) of 15%.³ Sample size of 196 was calculated. Sampling was done using the nonprobability convenient sampling technique.

Inclusion criteria: Affected couple (Husband & wife) within the reproductive age group with two or more consecutive pregnancy losses.

Exclusion Criteria: Abnormal reproductive tract anatomy, abnormal endocrine functions, positive TORCH screening, and positive antiphospholipid antibody screen were excluded from the study.

Before enrolling all patients, we obtained their written consent, and the confidentiality of the patients was ensured at all levels. Detailed history and complete physical examination were done. Following standard protocols for preparing metaphase chromosomes, they were G-banded using Trypsin-Giemsa banding preparations. During this process, at least 20 metaphases were studied; however, if abnormal findings were observed, the metaphases were studied by 50. A standardized system for human cytogenetic nomenclature was used for identifying all chromosomal aberrations. Axioscope microscopes (MetaSystems, Germany) were used for visualizing the metaphases, and MetaSystems software (MetaSystems, Germany) was used to determine the karyotype of each metaphase.

Data were entered in Microsoft excel and later analyzed using Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) 21.0. A Chi-square test and a student t-test was used. A p-value =0.05 was considered significant. Calculation of mean and SD was done for quantitative variables while frequency and percentage calculation was done for qualitative variables.

RESULTS:

A total of 98 couples (196 individuals) with a history of recurrent pregnancy loss (RPL) were included in this study. Of these, the number of miscarriages ranged from 2 to 5. Most of the couples experienced 3 miscarriages. The mean age of patients was 30.16±3.23 years. The mean age of females was 27.87±1.85 years with a mean of miscarriage 3.27 ± 0.53 while the mean age of males was 32.45 ± 2.64 years with a mean of miscarriage 3.27±0.53. The difference in ages between males and females was found by using a student t-test which is significant (<0.001). (Table 1) Among all participants, chromosomal abnormalities were found in 7 (7.2%) of females and 5 (5.2%) of males whereas 91 females (92.8%) and 93 males (94.8%) had a normal karyotype. This study also revealed a positive family history of RPL in 27 (13.8%) of all participants. In our study, only 12/196 (6.1%) males and females experiencing RPL had chromosomal anomalies. Out of these 1 individual (0.5%)had structural aberration, 1(0.5%) numerical abnormality, and 10 (5.1%) were found to have Chromosome Polymorphism. Detailed information on the frequency of chromosomal abnormalities is provided in Table 2. The structural Chromosomal Abnormality included Robertsonian translocation detected in 1 female at Chromosome 45XX t(14;21). The only numerical anomaly was 47, XYY. Chromosome Polymorphism comprises about 10/12 (83.3%) of total chromosomal abnormality observed. The most frequent polymorphisms observed was 1qh⁺ (3 male and 4 females), followed by 9qh⁺ (1 female and 1 male) then 16qh⁺ (1 female).

DISCUSSION:

The consequence of RM is both physical and psychological. Physical issues include bleeding and infections whereas psychological consequences increase the risk of anxiety, depression, post-traumatic stress disorders, and suicidal thoughts. A study done in the year 2021 by Prof Sibohan et *al*,¹¹ stated that the risk of miscarriages is 15.3% (95% CI; 12.5%-18.7%) in all pregnancies. They noted a prevalence of 1.9% for two miscarriages (1.8%-2.1%), 0.7%(0.5-0.8%) for three or more miscarriages. We also noted 1% of our cases with two miscarriages but in our study, the highest number of cases were with three miscarriages n=73, 74.5% followed by four miscarriages, n=21 (21.6%). In a local study done in Pakistan, the mean abortions in cases with RPL was 3.40 ± 1.23 which is similar to our mean miscarriage of 3.27±0.53.12 A study done by Santjohanser et al,¹³ documented the mean age of participants as $37.3 \pm$ 4.4 years. The mean age of patients in our study was 30.16 \pm 3.23 years. In another study, the mean maternal age at the time of pregnancy loss was 34.3 years.¹⁴

Our study revealed a positive family history of RPL in 13.8% of n=27 cases. A positive family history was also noted by FABIO *et al*,¹⁵ in a case-control study (13 cases versus 8 controls, RR 3.2%, CI (1.3- 8.1%). In another study done by Silvana *et al*,¹⁶ the family reproductive data showed that there is a two to three times high risk of RPL in couples with positive family history than that in the general population. Similar results were observed by Andrea *et al*,¹⁷ in a meta-analysis, and a systematic review was done in the year 2020. They documented that women who reported recurrent miscarriages were more likely to report a family history of miscarriage (OR 1.90,95% CI 1.37-2.63). They

Parameter	Females (%)	Males (%)	p-value
Mean age	$27.87{\pm}1.848$	32.45 ± 2.640	< 0.001

also documented that all the recurrent miscarriages occurred in the first trimester as noted in our study(100%, 98 couples).

In our study 92.8% females n= 91 and 94.8% males n=93 had normal karyotype. In a study done by Silvana et al,¹⁶ the majority of spouses had normal karyotypes (88.5% females and 91% males). Among the remaining cases, 65% of females and 76% of males expressed constitutional chromosomal variation most frequently pericentric inversion of chromosome 9 was noted. However, in our study, the only structural abnormality noted was Robertsonian translocation in a female 45 XX t (14;21). A study done by SUDHIR *et al*,¹⁸ noted a chromosomal aberration frequency of 3.4%. In our study chromosomal abnormality was noted in 6.1% cases (n=12/196, 5.2% males , 7.2% females). Balanced translocations formed the largest group in the study of SUDHIR et al 19 with 60% anomalies. In our study, only Robertsonian translocation was noted. 45 XX t(14;21) noted in our study are carriers and at risk of having a child with translocation Down Syndrome.¹⁹ In another study by Kochhar et al,²⁰ chromosomal rearrangements were noted in 6.8% (54/788) cases. These chromosomal rearrangements included 5.9% reciprocal translocations, 0.7% Robertsonian translocations and 0.1% inversions.

In our study numerical abnormality in chromosomes found was 47, XYY (1, 0.5%). Chromosomal polymorphism comprised the highest chromosomal abnormality noted in our study (10/12 . 83.3%). Feng, X. *et al*,²¹ in a study on the Chinese population noted that chromosomal polymorphism occurred most frequently in the RPL group as compared to the control group. This finding is similar to that ours. The most statistically significant chromosomal polymorphism they observed was in the acrocentric chromosome (p<0.001). We observed the most frequent polymorphism of 1qh+, followed by 9qh+ and 16qh+. They also observed statistically significant Polymorphism of 9qh+, inv (9) and Yqh+ among both groups(p=0.01).²¹

Parameter		Females (%)	Males (%)	Total (%)	p-value
Normaniaal Charamanal Aba annalita	Yes	0 (0.00)	1 (1.00)	1 (0.5)	0.216
Numerical Chromosomal Abhormality	No	98 (100)	97 (99.0)	195 (99.5)	0.510
Structural Chromosomal Abnormality		1 (1.00)	0 (0.00)	1 (0.5)	0.216
		97 (99.0)	98 (100)	195 (99.5)	0.510
Chromosome Polymorphism		6 (6.1)	4 (4.1)	10 (5.1)	0.516
		92 (93.9)	94 (95.9)	186 (94.9)	0.310
Conconquincous Marriago	Yes	19 (19.4)	18 (18.4)	37 (18.9)	0.855
Consangumeous Marriage	No	79 (80.6)	80 (81.6)	159 (81.1)	0.855
Family History of Congonital Abnormality	Yes	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	
Faimy firstory of Congenital Abior manty	No	98 (100.0)	98 (100.0)	196 (100.0)	
En el Historia (NC) en el tra		16 (16.3)	11 (11.2)	27 (13.8)	0.300
ranny mistory of wiscarriages	No	82 (83.7)	87 (88.8)	169 (86.2)	0.300
Time of Pregnancy Loss (trimester Wise)	First	98 (100.0)	98 (100.0)	196 (100.0)	

Table 2:	Frequency	of	chromosomal	А	bnorm	alitv
14010 2.	riequency	01	emonosonnai		onorm	unity

CONCLUSIONS

RPL is a concerning reproductive health issue that needs further research for correct treatment. Translocations, numerical aberrations, and chromosomal polymorphism are the common cytogenetic abnormalities noted in cases with RPL. Clinicians should understand the significance of cytogenetic analysis in couples with RPL and should refer them for karyotyping at least after two miscarriages to rule out the possible genetic causes of recurrent miscarriages.

_	
ŗ	Authors Contribution:
L	Muhammad Umar: Principal Investigator
L	Hamid Saeed Malik: Supervisor, Study Objective
i.	Hira Nadeem: Proof reading, limitations
!	Babar Zaman: Biostatistics
l	Noor ul Huda Alhadi: Discussion

I

| Fauzia Khan: Compilation of Data

REFERENCES

- Hanif MI, Khan A, Arif A, Shoeb E. Cytogenetic investigation of couples with recurrent spontaneous miscarriages. Pak J Med Sci. 2019;35(5):1422. https://doi.org/10.12669% 2Fpjms.35.5.678
- Kling C, Hedderich J, Kabelitz D. Fertility after recurrent miscarriages: results of an observational cohort study. Arch Obstet Gynaecol. 2018;297(1):205-19. https://doi.org/10.1007 /s00404-017-4532-4
- Alibakhshi R, Nejati P, Hamani S, Mir-Ahadi N, Jalilian N. Cytogenetic analysis of 570 couples with recurrent pregnancy loss: Reporting 11 years of experience. Journal of Human Reproductive Sciences. 2020;13(3):216. https://doi.org/ 10.4103%2Fjhrs.JHRS_138_19
- Robbins SM, Thimm MA, Valle D, Jelin AC. Genetic diagnosis in first or second trimester pregnancy loss using exome sequencing: a systematic review of human essential genes. J Assist Reprod Genet. 2019;36(8):1539-48. https://doi. org/10.1007/s10815-019-01499-6
- Pandith AA, Manzoor U, Amin I, Ahmad A, Rashid M, Zargar MH, Rah S, Dar FA, Qasim I, Sanadhya D. High incidences of chromosomal aberrations and Y chromosome microdeletions as prominent causes for recurrent pregnancy losses in highly ethnic and consanguineous population. Arch Obstet Gynaecol. 2022;305(6):1393-408. https://doi.org/10.1007 /s00404-021-06235-z
- van Dijk MM, Kolte AM, Limpens J, Kirk E, Quenby S, van Wely M, Goddijn M. Recurrent pregnancy loss: diagnostic workup after two or three pregnancy losses? A systematic review of the literature and meta-analysis. Hum Reprod Update. 2020;26(3):356-67. https://doi.org/10.1093 /humupd/dmz048
- Pal AK, Ambulkar PS, Waghmare JE, Wankhede V, Shende MR, Tarnekar AM. Chromosomal aberrations in couples with pregnancy loss: a retrospective study. J Hum Reprod Sci. 2018;11(3):247. https://doi.org/10.4103%2Fjhrs. JHRS_ 124_17
- Houmaid H, El Bekkay C, Nassereddine S, Talbi H, Amehdare L, Hilali A. Chromosomal abnormalities in 238 couples with recurrent miscarriages in Morocco. Open Journal of Genetics. 2018;8(02):15. http://www.scirp.org/journal/ PaperInformation .aspx?PaperID=85089&#abstract

- Zhang T, Sun Y, Chen Z, Li T. Traditional and molecular chromosomal abnormality analysis of products of conception in spontaneous and recurrent miscarriage. BJOG: Int J Obstet Gynecol. 2018;125(4):414-20. https://doi.org/10.1111/1471-0528.15052
- Goud TM, Al Harassi SM, Al Salmani KK, Al Busaidy SM, Rajab A. Cytogenetic studies in couples with recurrent miscarriage in the Sultanate of Oman. Reprod Biomed Soc Online. 2009;18(3):424-9. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1472-6483(10)60104-6
- Quenby S, Gallos ID, Dhillon-Smith RK, Podesek M, Stephenson MD, Fisher J, Brosens JJ, Brewin J, Ramhorst R, Lucas ES, McCoy RC. Miscarriage matters: the epidemiological, physical, psychological, and economic costs of early pregnancy loss. Lancet. 2021;397(10285):1658-67. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(21)00682-6
- Hossain N, Shamsi T, Khan N, Naz A. Thrombophilia investigation in Pakistani women with recurrent pregnancy loss. J Obstet Gynaecol Res. 2013;39(1):121-5. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1447-0756.2012.01925.x
- 13. Santjohanser C, Knieper C, Franz C, Hirv K, Meri O, Schleyer M, Würfel W, Toth B. Granulocyte-colony stimulating factor as treatment option in patients with recurrent miscarriage. Arch Immunol Ther Exp. 2013;61(2):159-64. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00005-012-0212-z
- 14. Stephenson MD, Awartani KA, Robinson WP. Cytogenetic analysis of miscarriages from couples with recurrent miscarriage: a case–control study. Hum Reprod. 2002;17(2): 446-51. https://doi.org/10.1093/humrep/17.2.446
- PARAZZINI F, BOCCIOLONE L, FEDELE L, NEGRI E, LA VECCHIA CA, ACAIA B. Risk factors for spontaneous abortion. Int J Epidemiol. 1991;20(1):157-61. https://doi. org/10.1093/ije/20.1.157
- Miskovic S, Culic V, Konjevoda P, Pavelic J. Positive reproductive family history for spontaneous abortion: predictor for recurrent miscarriage in young couples. ur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol. 2012;161(2):182-6. https://doi.org/10.1016/j. ejogrb.2011.12.027
- 17. Woolner AM, Nagdeve P, Raja EA, Bhattacharya S, Bhattacharya S. Family history and risk of miscarriage: a systematic review and meta-analysis of observational studies. cta Obstet Gynecol Scand. 2020;99(12):1584-94. https://doi.org/10.1111/aogs.13940
- Sudhir N, Kaur T, Beri A, Kaur A. Cytogenetic analysis in couples with recurrent miscarriages: a retrospective study from Punjab, north India. J Genet. 2016;95(4):887-94. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12041-016-0713-3
- Irum S, Robert HM, Mahmood A, Mahmood R, Khurshid A, Khan SA. Frequency of clinical features and cytogenetic defects in down syndrome diagnosed at afip. PAFMJ. 2021 Jan 31:S28.
- 20. Kochhar PK, Ghosh P. Reproductive outcome of couples with recurrent miscarriage and balanced chromosomal abnormalities. J Obstet Gynaecol Res. 2013;39(1):113-20. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1447-0756.2012.01905.x
- 21. Feng X, Liu J, Wang Y, Fu J, Qin Q, Cao Y, Wu Y. Acrocentric chromosome polymorphic variants on chinese female have possible association with unexplained recurrent pregnancy loss. Reprod Sci. 2021;28(2):575-84. https://doi.org/10.1007/s43032-020-00332-1

Original Article

Spectrum of Biochemical Derangements in Patients with Covid-19 Infection

Sajjad Ali Haider, Zujaja Hina Haroon, Athar Iqbal Paracha, Muhammad Aamir, Saima Bashir, Syed Raza Jaffar

ABSTRACT

Objectives: To evaluate the biochemical derangements in COVID-19 patients according to disease severity.

Place and Duration of Study: This Cross-Sectional Study was conducted at Chemical Pathology Department of Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi from March to August 2021.

Methodology: A total of 996 patients of age between 20 to 75 years admitted at Pak Emirates Military Hospital Rawalpindi with COVID-19 were selected and further categorized into mild, moderate, and severe groups. Serum samples were collected and analyzed for various biochemical parameters. A mean comparison of the results of these biochemical markers amongst three groups was carried out by applying a one-way analysis of variance (ANOVA), p value = 0.05 was statistically significant.

Results: The values of total bilirubin, ALT, AST, CK, CK MB, troponin I, LDH, urea, creatinine, CRP, PCT, and ferritin increased with the severity of the disease. Whereas the values of albumin and total protein decreased with the severity of the disease. The difference in these parameters amongst all three groups was found to be statistically significant with p value <0.05. However, the values of GGT, total cholesterol, and TG were found non-significant amongst all three groups (p value>0.05).

Conclusion: Derangement of biochemical parameters increased proportionately with the severity of the disease. Hence these markers can provide significant assistance to categorize patients into different severity groups as well as monitoring and prognosis of the disease. In this way, earlier and more accurate medical interventions can be provided to patients for a better outcome from this pandemic.

Keywords: COVID-19, Biochemical markers, Severity groups

How to cite this Article:

Haider SA, Haroon ZH, Paracha AI, Aamir M, Bashir S, Jaffar SR. Spectrum of Biochemical Derangements in Patients with Covid-19 Infection. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):125-129 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2023176

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

L

L

н

L

н

L

L

L

INTRODUCTION:

Emerging pathogens have always been a threat to the whole world. In December 2019, an outbreak of pneumonia of

- I
- Sajjad Ali Haider (Corresponding Author) Registrar, Department of Chemical Pathology & Endocrinology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) Rawalpindi Email: attia.akram73@yahoo.com

Zujaja Hina Haroon

I

L

I

I

I

I

I

Consultant, Department of Chemical Pathology & Endocrinology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) Rawalpindi Email: zhharoon@gmail.com

Athar Iqbal Paracha

Registrar, Department of Chemical Pathology & Endocrinology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) Rawalpindi Email: athar_paracha@hotmail.com

Muhammad Aamir

Consultant, Department of Chemical Pathology & Endocrinology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) Rawalpindi Email: ashmir83@yahoo.com

Saima Bashir

Consultant, Department of Chemical Pathology & Endocrinology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) Rawalpindi Email: saimabashir@live.com

Sved Raza Jaffar

Consultant, Department of Chemical Pathology & Endocrinology Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) Rawalpindi Email: raza.jaffar@hotmail.com

Received: 02-01-2023 Accepted: 24-03-2023

unknown origin was reported in Wuhan, China. On further workup of pneumonia, it was found that the disease is caused by a new respiratory virus whose genome analysis revealed it to be a novel coronavirus related to SARS-CoV and was named severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2).¹ The outbreak then spreaded to many countries causing thousands of deaths worldwide. World Health Organization (WHO) declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a pandemic on 12 March 2020.² WHO statistical data reveals that 570 Million cases of COVID-19 along with 6.3 Million deaths have been reported worldwide till July 2022. Pakistan is also severely affected by this disease. According to the number of COVID-19 cases worldwide, Pakistan ranks in the 51st position with 1.5 Million confirmed cases and 30 thousand deaths.³ Various treatment modalities and vaccines have been developed to curtail the spread of disease and to minimize the mortality rate from this outbreak.⁴ So far 12.2 billion doses of vaccines have been administered globally.

The virus spreads from one individual to another through respiratory droplets which are produced during sneezing and coughing. The incubation period varies from 2 to 14 days with an average of 5 days. The laboratory plays a significant role in the clinical management of COVID-19, starting from screening to diagnosis, prognosis, and monitoring of the disease. The standard investigation to diagnose COVID-19 is by reverse transcription polymerase chain reaction (rRT-PCR) from a nasopharyngeal or throat swab. However, a combination of the history of disease exposure, clinical symptoms, and a chest CT scan showing features of pneumonia are also used to augment the diagnosis.⁵

COVID-19 patients can be identified and prognosticated by changes in their biochemical and haematological parameters. The liver, lungs, heart, kidneys, brain, striated muscles, and RBCs produce more lactic dehydrogenase (LDH). A variety of pathophysiological processes can be triggered by cytokine-mediated tissue damage. LDH is often used in COVID-19 as a non-specific indicator of cellular death. Inflammatory cytokines produce CRP, which increases in response to tissue destruction and the overproduction of inflammatory cytokines. The level of inflammation influences and correlates with CRP levels. An early marker of pneumonia can be used to diagnose the disease and predict its progression.⁶

COVID-19 has a broad spectrum of clinical manifestations, with various degrees of disease severity ranging from asymptomatic patients to acute respiratory distress syndrome (ARDS), multiple organ failure (MOF), and death.⁷ The disease affects multiple organs of the body including the liver, kidneys, heart, and CNS, hence leading to various biochemical derangements. These biochemical findings may help the clinician to ensure adequate clinical monitoring, administration of supportive interventions, and assessment of disease severity, progression, and outcome.⁸

Despite abundant research regarding the number of patients and the death rates, there is a scarcity of data regarding biochemical derangements in COVID-19 patients. There has been limited data regarding the pattern of the outcome of disease in relation to biochemical derangements. Our study aims on quantifying the levels of biochemical parameter derangements in relation to the severity of disease which will help in distinguishing the survival and mortality rate of individuals.

METHODOLOGY:

A cross-sectional study was conducted at the Chemical Pathology Department of the Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Rawalpindi over a period of six months from March to August 2021 after getting approval from the Institute Ethical Committee (FC-CHP19/17/READ-IRB/570). WHO sample size calculator was used to estimate the sample size with a 95% confidence interval and 5% margin of error taking 17.5% as the prevalence of COVID-19 in the Pakistani population.⁹ A total of 996 patients who were admitted to the COVID ward of the Pak Emirates Military Hospital Rawalpindi (PEMH) were included in the study. Sampling was done using a nonprobability convenient sampling technique. Inclusion criteria for this research were patients of either gender aged between 20-75 years, diagnosed cases of COVID-19 by using rRT-PCR from a nasopharyngeal swab, and hospitalized in the COVID ward of PEMH Rawalpindi. Whereas, patients without proper medical history and incomplete investigations were excluded from the study. According to the severity of symptoms, patients were categorized into three groups i.e. mild (598), moderate (197), and severe (201). Those who had uncomplicated disease with mild clinical symptoms and without radiological evidence of pneumonia were categorized into a mild group, whereas those who had a fever, respiratory distress, and evident pneumonia on chest imaging were categorized into a moderate group. While, patients who had respiratory complications having a respiratory rate of more than 30 breaths per min, a saturation of oxygen less than 93% at rest, and an oxygenation index (PaO2/FiO2) less than 300 mm Hg were categorized into the severe group.¹⁰

The blood sample of the patients was collected in a gel tube. After separation of serum samples were analyzed for serum total bilirubin, alanine aminotransferase (ALT), aspartate aminotransferase (AST), gamma-glutamyltransferase (GGT), albumin, creatinine kinase (CK), CK-MB, troponin I, lactate dehydrogenase (LDH), urea, creatinine, C-reactive protein (CRP), procalcitonin (PCT), ferritin, total protein, total cholesterol and triglycerides (TG). Analysis of all these biochemical markers was performed on an automated chemistry analyzer ADVIA 1800 (Siemens). Controls were run on the instrument and plotted on the LJ chart before analysis and were within normal limits.

Statistical analyses were performed using IBM SPSS 26. On applying the Shapiro-Wilk test of normality the data was found to be normally distributed. Percentage and frequencies were used for qualitative variables whereas quantitative variables were expressed as mean \pm SD. One-way analysis of variance (ANOVA) was applied to compare means of biochemical markers amongst all three patient groups. p-value = 0.05 was considered to be statistically significant.

RESULTS:

A total of 996 patients were included in our study. Amongst those, 598(60%) had mild, 197(19.7%) had moderate and 201(20.3%) had severe disease. Out of total 996 patients, 739(74.2%) were male and 257(25.8%) were female. Amongst 739 male patients, 470(63.6%) had mild, 166(22.4%) had moderate and 103(14%) had severe disease. Whereas out of 257 females 128(49.9%) had mild, 31(12%) had moderate and 98(38.1%) had severe disease. The mean age of patients was 52.6 ± 9.4 years. The patients with mild, moderate, and severe disease had a mean age of 38.79 ± 9.79 , 51.84 ± 13.3 , and 67.17 ± 5.27 years respectively.

There have been asymptomatic patients who did not experience any symptoms during the whole duration of the disease but were Covid-19 positive. Table I shows the frequency and percentage of patients who suffered from the major clinical features of COVID-19 which included fever, cough, shortness of breath, and myalgia/ fatigue according to their disease severity. The recovery and mortality data of the patients were also followed up. Out of 996 patients, 872(87.5%) recovered and were discharged, 93(9.3%) were under treatment and 31(3.2%) patients who were in the severe group died during our study. The patients who recovered and discharged were the highest in the mild group. All the patients who died were in the severe group. On comparing various biochemical markers amongst different severity groups it was found that the values of total bilirubin, ALT, AST, CK, CK MB, troponin I, LDH, urea, creatinine, CRP, PCT, and ferritin increased with the severity of the disease. Whereas, the values of albumin and total protein decreased with the severity of the disease. The difference in these parameters amongst all three groups was statistically significant with a p-value <0.05. However, the values of GGT, total cholesterol, and TG were found insignificant amongst all three groups (p value>0.05) as shown in Table II.

Fever Yes No		Co	ugh	Shortness of BreathMyalgia / Fatigue			lgia / igue	
		No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
Mild	430	168	280	318	25	573	450	148
(n=598)	(72%)	(28%)	(46.8%)	(53.2%)	(4.1%)	(95.9%)	(75.2%)	(24.8%)
Moderate	175	22	154	43	124	73	160	37
(n=197)	(89%)	(11%)	(78%)	(22%)	(63%)	(37%)	(81%)	(19%)
Severe	189	12	193	8	201	0	197	4
(n=201)	(94%)	(6%)	(96%)	(4%)	(100%)	(0%)	(98%)	(2%)

 Table 1: Frequency Table of clinical symptoms according to disease severity

Parameters	$\begin{array}{c} \textbf{Mild} \\ (Mean \pm SD) \end{array}$	Moderate (Mean ± SD)	Severe (Mean ± SD)	p-value*
Total Bilirubin (umol/L)	8.04 ± 1.45	9.40 ±2.20 11.60 ±2.5		.001
ALT (U/L)	38.80 ± 11.5	42 ±26.02	52.21 ± 11.0	.004
AST (U/L)	26.21 ± 5.50	30.25 ± 7.67	49 ± 13.60	<.001
GGT (U/L)	45.2±5.50	41.5±3.93	48.62±4.65	.584
Albumin (g/L)	45.46 ± 3.93	36.82 ± 9.89	29 ±4.24	<.001
CK (U/L)	71.57 ± 17.19	101.08 ± 23.28	149 ± 15.1	<.001
CK.MB (U/L)	15.18 ± 3.03	22.6 ± 8.5	35 ±9.8	.001
Troponin I (ng/mL)	0.02 ± 0.01	0.69 ± 0.52	1.29±0.22	<.001
LDH (U/L)	233.2 ± 28.27	289.38 ± 43.83	338.8 ± 34.6	.001
Urea (mmol/L)	5.33 ± 1.37	6.14 ±2.29	8.5 ±2.19	.001
Creatinine (umol/L)	80.01 ±11.74	109.51 ± 19.26	131.6 ± 23.3	<.001
CRP (mg/L)	6.66 ± 4.75	63.74 ± 3.12	97.2 ± 26.39	<.001
PCT (ug/L)	0.14±0.24	2.65±1.25	3.58 ± 1.89	<.001
Ferritin (ng/mL)	128.2 ± 54.96	384.88 ± 26.36	529.5 ± 201.4	<.001
Total Protein (g/L)	68.1 ±4.2	66.3 ±5.3	61.3 ±3.9	<.001
Total cholesterol (mmol/L)	4.19±1.27	4.26±2.96	4.24±1.90	.432
TG (mmol/L)	1.77±0.65	1.36±1.1	1.74±0.97	.587

Table 2: Comparison of biochemical markers amongst various severity groups

*One-way ANOVA

DISCUSSION:

Coronaviruses comprises of four structural proteins; Spike (S), membrane (M), envelop (E), and (N). The surface of the virus contains Spike which is a major determinant factor for the diversity of coronaviruses. These proteins bind with Angiotensin-converting enzyme 2 (ACE2).¹¹ ACE2 receptors are found on lung epithelial cells, heart, ileum, kidney, and urinary. The presence of ACE2 expression on multiple organs, tissues, and cell types could allow virus entry,

multiplication, spread, and pathogenesis which may lead to clinical symptoms like breathing difficulties, diarrhea, myocardial injury, and renal failure.¹² Effect of COVID-19 on multiple organs leads to the release of a wide spectrum of biochemical markers which can be used as an important predictor of disease progression and outcome.¹³

In our study, we found that levels of total bilirubin, ALT, AST, CK, CK MB, troponin I, LDH, urea, creatinine, CRP, PCT, and ferritin increased with the severity of the disease.

The values of all these biochemical parameters progressively increased with the severity of the disease. However, serum albumin and total protein were found to be lower in patients with severe disease. Whereas, GGT, total cholesterol, and TG had no role as a prognostic markers of disease severity. Similar results were seen in various studies.

Pourbagheri-Sigaroodi., et al¹⁴ in a study concluded that increased levels of LDH, ALT, AST, CK, creatinine, total bilirubin, and hypoalbuminemia are the most common biochemical findings in COVID-19. Chen., et al¹⁵ revealed that LDH, ALT, AST, bilirubin, and CK were found elevated in 76%, 28%, 35%, 18%, and 13% of patients respectively, whereas albumin level was found to decrease in 98% patients. Guan., et al¹⁶ showed that ALT and AST levels were raised by 21.3% and 22.2% respectively in COVID-19 patients representing virus-induced liver injury. Another study carried out on 149 COVID-19 patients revealed that the serum creatinine levels were raised in 28.8% of patients indicating the ability of SARS-CoV-2 to induce kidney injury.¹⁷Li., et al¹⁸ found that raised ferritin levels in 90.7% of COVID-19 patients. As an acute phase reactant, raised serum ferritin during inflammation, also its release from dving cells may indicate the extent of organ damage and can be used as a diagnostic tool in COVID-19.19 Another study revealed that increased levels of PCT and CRP levels could be an important tool for the physician to differentiate between severe and non-severe COVID-19 cases.²⁰ Major limitation of this study was that it was conducted in a single hospital setting on admitted patients only and biochemical findings of patients were not followed up after they were discharged, secondly the data regarding the effect of treatment given during the course of illness on these markers was not obtained which could be added in subsequent studies. Therefore, a multicentric study with a large sample size involving more hospitals may give a good representation of the desired comparison of various biochemical markers amongst different COVID-19 severity groups.

CONCLUSION:

Diverse variation in the clinical symptoms which range from asymptomatic to severe disease necessitates the use of biochemical markers such as total bilirubin, ALT, AST, CK, CK MB, troponin I, LDH, urea, creatinine, CRP, PCT and ferritin for early and economical prediction of prognosis of COVID-19. Although the gold standard diagnostic test for COVID-19 is rRT-PCR however these biochemical parameters can also provide significant assistance to categorize patients into different severity groups. In this way, earlier and more accurate medical intervention can be provided to patients for a better outcome from this pandemic.

Authors Contribution:

- **Sajjad Ali Haider:** Data collection, data analysis, results, discussion, and literature review
- Zujaja Hina Haroon: Data Analysis, results, discussion, and literature review
- Athar Iqbal Paracha: Results, discussion, and literature review **Muhammad Aamir:** Discussion and literature review
- Saima Bashir: Data Analysis and Results Syed Raza Jaffar: Data collection, Discussion, and literature

review

REFERENCES:

- Ciotti M, Ciccozzi M, Terrinoni A, Jiang WC, Wang CB, Bernardini S. The COVID-19 pandemic. Critical reviews in clinical laboratory sciences. 2020;57(6):365-88. https://doi .org/10.1080/10408363.2020.1783198
- Padhan R, Prabheesh KP. The economics of COVID-19 pandemic: A survey. Economic analysis and policy. 2021;70:220-37. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eap.2021.02.012
- 3. Who.int. Retrieved November 27, 2022, from https:// covid19. who.int/table
- Zheng C, Shao W, Chen X, Zhang B, Wang G, Zhang W. Real-world effectiveness of COVID-19 vaccines: a literature review and meta-analysis. International Journal of Infectious Diseases. 2022;114:252-60. https://doi.org/10.1016 /j.ijid .2021.11.009
- Hafeez A, Ahmad S, Siddqui SA, Ahmad M, Mishra S. A review of COVID-19 (Coronavirus Disease-2019) diagnosis, treatments and prevention. Ejmo. 2020;4(2):116-25. DOI: 10.14744/ejmo.2020.90853
- Gajendra S. Spectrum of hematological changes in COVID-19. American Journal of Blood Research. 2022;12(1):43. PMID: 35291254; PMCID: PMC8918700.
- Xu H, Zhong L, Deng J, Peng J, Dan H, Zeng X, Li T, Chen Q. High expression of ACE2 receptor of 2019-nCoV on the epithelial cells of oral mucosa. International journal of oral science. 2020;12(1):1-5. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41368-020-0074-x
- Ciaccio M, Agnello L. Biochemical biomarkers alterations in Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19). Diagnosis. 2020;7(4):365-72. https://doi.org/10.1515/dx-2020-0057
- Javed W, Baqar JB, Abidi SH, Farooq W. Sero-prevalence findings from metropoles in Pakistan: implications for assessing COVID-19 prevalence and case-fatality within a dense, urban working population. medRxiv. 2020:2020-08. https://doi.org /10.1101/2020.08.13.20173914
- Tjendra Y, Al Mana AF, Espejo AP, Akgun Y, Millan NC, Gomez-Fernandez C, Cray C. Predicting disease severity and outcome in COVID-19 patients: a review of multiple biomarkers. Archives of pathology & laboratory medicine. 2020;144(12):1465-74. https://doi.org/10.5858/arpa.2020-0471-SA
- 11. Li W, Moore MJ, Vasilieva N, Sui J, Wong SK, Berne MA, Somasundaran M, Sullivan JL, Luzuriaga K, Greenough TC, Choe H. Angiotensin-converting enzyme 2 is a functional receptor for the SARS coronavirus. Nature. 2003; 426(6965):450-4. https://doi.org/10.1038/nature02145
- Zou X, Chen K, Zou J, Han P, Hao J, Han Z. Single-cell RNA-seq data analysis on the receptor ACE2 expression reveals the potential risk of different human organs vulnerable to 2019-nCoV infection. Frontiers of medicine. 2020;14:185-92. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11684-020-0754-0

- 13. Mutlu P, Mirici A, Gönlügür U, OZTOPRAK B, Þule ÖZ, Reþorlu M, AKÇALI A, ÇAKIR DÜ, Doðan CR. Evaluating the clinical, radiological, microbiological, biochemical parameters and the treatment response in COVID-19 pneumonia. Journal of Health Sciences and Medicine. 2022;5(2):544-51. https://doi.org/10.32322/jhsm.1035790
- Pourbagheri-Sigaroodi A, Bashash D, Fateh F, Abolghasemi H. Laboratory findings in COVID-19 diagnosis and prognosis. Clinica chimica acta. 2020;510:475-82. https://doi.org/10.1016 /j.cca.2020.08.019
- Chen N, Zhou M, Dong X, Qu J, Gong F, Han Y, Qiu Y, Wang J, Liu Y, Wei Y, Yu T. Epidemiological and clinical characteristics of 99 cases of 2019 novel coronavirus pneumonia in Wuhan, China: a descriptive study. The lancet. 2020;395(10223):507-13. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(20)30211-7
- Guan WJ, Ni ZY, Hu Y, Liang WH, Ou CQ, He JX, Liu L, Shan H, Lei CL, Hui DS, Du B. Clinical characteristics of coronavirus disease 2019 in China. New England journal of medicine. 2020;382(18):1708-20. DOI: 10.1056/ NEJMoa 2002032

- 17. Yang W, Cao Q, Qin LE, Wang X, Cheng Z, Pan A, Dai J, Sun Q, Zhao F, Qu J, Yan F. Clinical characteristics and imaging manifestations of the 2019 novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19): a multi-center study in Wenzhou city, Zhejiang, China. Journal of Infection. 2020;80(4):388-93. https://doi. org/10.1016/j.jinf.2020.02.016
- Li Y, Hu Y, Yu J, Ma T. Retrospective analysis of laboratory testing in 54 patients with severe-or critical-type 2019 novel coronavirus pneumonia. Laboratory investigation. 2020;100(6):794-800. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41374-020-0431-6
- Colafrancesco S, Priori R, Alessandri C, Astorri E, Perricone C, Blank M, Agmon-Levin N, Shoenfeld Y, Valesini G. sCD163 in AOSD: a biomarker for macrophage activation related to hyperferritinemia. Immunologic research. 2014;60:177-83. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12026-014-8563-7
- Zhang JJ, Dong X, Cao YY, Yuan YD, Yang YB, Yan YQ, Akdis CA, Gao YD. Clinical characteristics of 140 patients infected with SARS-CoV-2 in Wuhan, China. Allergy. 2020; 75(7):1730-41. https://doi.org/10.1111/all.14238

Effectiveness of Intracervical Foley's Catheter with PGE2 Versus PGE2 Alone for **Induction of Labour at Term Pregnancy**

Fauzia Afridi, Romana Bibi, Maimoona Qadir, Ruqia Wazir

ABSTRACT

Objective: To compare the effectiveness of intracervical foley's catheter with prostaglandin E2(PGE2) and PGE2 alone in achieving vaginal delivery in a patient having full-term pregnancy and its impact on maternal and fetal outcome.

Study design and setting: This Comparative cross sectional study was conducted in the Department of Obs & Gynae, in January-December 2021.

Methodology: A detailed history of the patients was obtained, and a physical examination was performed. Patients were randomly allocated into two groups A (cervical Foleys and PGE2) and group B (PGE2 alone).

Results: In Group A, 176 (90.7%) patients showed effective results in achieving vaginal delivery out of which 68.0% were spontaneous and 22.7% instrumental, while in Group B, 172 (88.7%) patients delivered vaginally out of which 48.5% spontaneous and 40.2% instrumental with P<0.01.

Conclusion: This study demonstrated that intracervical foley's catheter with PGE2 yielded significantly better and more effective results in terms of improved maternal and fetal outcomes as compared to PGE2 alone in terms of achieving vaginal delivery and duration of active phase labour.

Keywords: Term Pregnancy, Induction of Labour, intracervical Foley's Catheter, PGE2

How to cite this Article:

Afridi F, Bibi R, Qadir M, Wazir R. Effectiveness of Intracervical Foley's Catheter with Pge2 Versus Pge2 Alone for Induction of Labour at Term Pregnancy. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):130-4 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022136

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

I

L

L

L

INTRODUCTION:

A frequent obstetric procedure is labour induction. It's an iatrogenic initiation of labour pains. The cervical state at the time of induction determines whether or not labour induction is successful. It is usually expected that patients with low Bishop's scores (B3 or lower) may experience unacceptable greater rates of induction failure. Cervical ripening can be enhanced using prostaglandin E2 and an intracervical balloon catheter.¹ A study demonstrates that the pre-induction cervical ripening effects of the Foley's Catheter and PGE2 gel are comparable.² Cervical ripening

Fauzia Afridi

I

L

L

Assistant Professor, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Khyber Teaching Hospital Peshawar Email: afridifauzia@gmail.com

Romana Bibi (*Corresponding Author*) FCPS-II Resident, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Khyber Teaching Hospital Peshawar Email:romanawazir14@gmail.com

Maimoona Qadir

Assistant Professor, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Khyber Teaching Hospital Peshawar Email: drmaimoonaqadir1983@gmail.com

Ruqia Wazir

BDS Student, Sardar Begum Dental College / Gandahara Medical University Email: aayatwazir246@gmail.com

Received: 30-09-2022 Accepted: 17-03-2023

by whatever means is the solution to reduce induction failure. A low Bishop's score has also been linked to a higher incidence of cesarean sections, maternal fever, and foetal hypoxia, according to research.3 The great effectiveness of a three-component labour induction shows that PG2 has a significant impact on the cervix, even in the presence of resistance to the previously used PGE2 and followed by Foley catheter.⁴ The intracervical Foley catheter balloon was as effective as the dinoprostone on the cesarean delivery rate. In terms of maternal or neonatal safety, there were again no notable differences between the two approaches.⁵ For many years, cervical ripening and labour induction have been commonly treated with dinoprostone and misoprostol, prostaglandins. While the details of their mechanics are still being worked out.6 Combining an intracervical Foley catheter with dinoprostone (PGE2, 0.5 mg) was more effective than using a Foley catheter alone for cervical ripening.⁷ Two studies evaluating the use of Foley alone, PGE2, and combined Foley and PGs found that the combined use was not more effective than the separate approaches.^{8,9} While maintaining maternal and fetal safety, labour induction seeks to reduce the time to vaginal birth. One study showed rate of vaginal delivery in using Foleys catheter and PGE2 gel simultaneously versus PGE2 was 60% nad 50% respectively.¹⁰ It's crucial to explain to the patient why labour induction is necessary, the risks involved, and any potential alternatives. There are numerous techniques for inducing labour, such as mechanical and pharmacological ones that can be combined with one another or used separately. The most appropriate and efficient procedure for cervical ripening and labour induction can be difficult to choose for the proper patient because there is currently insufficient information available.

This study compares the combined mechanical (Foley catheter in combination with PGE2) and pharmacological (PGE2) alone approaches to cervical ripening in unfavourable cervix. Additionally compared between these two groups were the duration of active phase of labour, mother and foetal outcomes.

METHODOLOGY:

This Comparative cross sectional study was conducted in the Department of Obs & Gynae, Khyber Teaching Hospital and CMH, Peshawar from January-December 2021. The sample size for this trial was based on the previously reported outcome rates for Foleys catheter and prostaglandin E2 (PGE2) gel simultaneously versus PGE2, 60% & 50 % respectively¹⁰, taking 95% confidence interval and power of 80% by using WHO sample size calculator. It is a total number of 388 patients, 194 patients in each group. Patients having age 18 Years to 38 Years with 37 weeks pregnant or more and having singleton cephalic fetus with intact membranes were included in this study, while patients who had previous cesarean section or other uterine surgery with fetal malpresentation and multiple gestations having spontaneous labor (3 contractions in 10 min) presented with fever and premature rupture of membranes, PROM and any contraindication for vaginal delivery, Vaginal bleeding, sensitivity to either latex or PGE2 and polyhydramnios were excluded from this study.

DATA COLLECTION PROCEDURE

This study was conducted in the Department of Gynecology, Khyber Teaching Hospital and CMH Peshawar after taking ethical review board with letter no: 173/DME/KMC. Patients fulfilling the study criteria was recruited for the study. Informed Consent was taken from all the included patients. A detailed history of the patients was obtained, and a physical examination performed. Patients were allocated into two

groups A (cervical Foleys and PGE2) and group B (PGE2 alone). In group A the patient lied in a lithotomy position and was covered by sterile sheets. The Foley was inserted through the internal cervical os, filled with 60 ml of normal saline, and taped to the patient's thigh with gentle traction. An hour after placing the Foley bulb, a monitor was performed. If less than 3 contractions per 10 min interval appear in the monitor the patient was transferred to the delivery room and PGE2 was administrated. If 3 contractions or more appear in 10 min intervals, a further intervention was personalized according to a medical decision. The Foley catheter was removed in case of expulsion, each systole, and spontaneous rupture of membranes. In Group B PGE2 alone was given. It was inserted in the posterior fornix using a small amount of water-soluble lubricant. An hour after placing PGE2 fetal monitoring was performed after every 6 hours. If less than 3 contractions per 10 min interval appear in the monitor the patient was transferred for observation and a monitor was performed every 6 hours. If 3 contractions or more appear in 10 min intervals the patient was examined and in dilatation of 3 cm or more was transferred to the delivery room. All the data was documented in proforma.

Data was analyzed in SPSS version 22.0. Mean and standard deviation was computed for numeric variables like age, APGAR score (at 1 minute and 5 minutes), Bishop score and gestational age. Frequencies and percentages were calculated for categorical variable like gravidity, and mode of delivery APGAR score. Chi-square test was used to statistically compare the two groups. Differences with a P-value of <0.05 was considered statistically significant. Effect modifiers like age, bishop score, and gravidity were controlled through stratification to see their effect on the outcome. All results were presented in the form of tables.

RESULTS:

In Group A, the mean age was 25.90+3.55 years. The mean gestational age was 38.51+0.853 weeks. Mean Apgar Score at 1 min was 6.65+1.66 score. Mean Apgar Score at 5 min was 7.65+1.66 score. The mean bishop score was 4.62+1.36 score.

In Group B, the mean age was 25.76+3.55 years. The mean gestational age was 38.50+0.835 years. The Mean Apgar score at 1 min was 6.64+1.67 years. The Mean Apgar score at 5 min was 7.64+1.67 score. Mean bishop score 4.69+1.342 score. In Group A, 110 (56.7%) patients were recorded in 18-25 years age group while 84 (43.3%) patients were recorded in 26-35 years age group. In Group B, 114 (58.8%) patients were recorded in 18-25 years age group while 80 (41.2%) patients were recorded in 26-35 years age group. P Value = 0.681. In Group A, 133 (68.6%) patients were primigravida while 61 (31.4%) patients were multigravida. In Group B, 154 (79.4%) patients were primigravida while 40 (20.6%) patients were multigravida. P Value = 0.015. In Group A, 132 (68.0%) patients had a normal vaginal delivery, 44 (22.7%) patients had instrumental deliveries and 18 (9.3%) patients had C Sections. In Group B, 94 (48.5%) patients had normal vaginal deliveries, 78 (40.2%) had instrumental deliveries, and 22 (11.3%). Patients had C Sections. P Value = 0.0002(Table No. 1). In Group A, 145 (74.7%) neonates had normal Apgar score while in Group B, 143 (73.7%) neonates had normal Apgar score. P Value = 0.816. (Table No. 3). As per frequencies and percentages for effectiveness in both groups, 132 (68.0%) patients showed effective results while 94 (48.5%) patients in Group B showed effective results, p=0.000092.

DISCUSSION:

According to a study done in India there was no statistically

Effectiveness of Intracervical Foley's Catheter with Pge2 Versus Pge2 Alone for Induction of Labour at Term Pregnancy

Tr	eatment Group	Frequency	Percent	P Value
	Normal Vaginal Delivery	132	68.0%	
Group A	Instrumental Delivery	44	22.7%	
(n=194)	C Section	18	9.3%	
	Total	194	100.0%	0.0002
	Normal Vaginal Delivery	94	48.5%	0.0002
Group B	Instrumental Delivery	78	40.2%	1
(n=194)	C Section	22	11.3%	
	Total	194	100.0%	

Table No.1: Mode of Delivery in both groups Frequency

Group A = Cervical Foleys and PGE2 Group B = PGE2 alone

|--|

Croup A	Mean	Standard Deviation	P value
Group A	3.9	1.1	<0.01
Group B	4.9	1.03	<0.01

Group A = Cervical Foleys and PGE2 Group B = PGE2 alone

Treatment Group	Normal Apgar Score	Frequency	Percent	P Value
Group A	Yes	145	74.7%	
(n=194)	No	49	25.3%	
	Total	194	100.0%	0.916
Carry D	Yes	143	73.7%	0.810
(n=194)	No	51	26.3%	
	Total	194	100.0%	
	Total	194	100.0%	

Table.3: Normal Apgar Score in both Groups

a . a . i	F 1 1	DODA O	ъ	
Group $A = Cervical$	Foleys and	PGE2 Group	$\mathbf{P} \mathbf{R} = \mathbf{I}$	GE2 alone

significant difference between the two groups, however, both groups showed a substantial change in the Bishop's score for Foley's catheter (5.54 ± 1.89) and PGE2 gel(5.44 ± 1.82) with P<0.001. Both group's rates of cesarean sections and side effects were comparable. A comparison of the two groups Apgar scores, birth weights, and NICU admissions revealed no differences.²

According to Lixia Zhu's meta-analysis, for this trial, eight trials were used, with 1191 women receiving the dinoprostone insert and 1199 receiving the intracervical Foley catheter balloon. In a random effect model, there was no significant difference between the two groups in terms of the time from induction to delivery (mean difference, 0.71 hours). Regarding the incidence of cesarean deliveries (relative risk, 0.91; 95% CI, 0.78-1.07; P=0.24), the Apgar score, or side effects including the prevalence of maternal infection, postpartum hemorrhage, and hyperstimulation, there was no statistically significant difference between the 2 approaches.⁵

India's study was reported. The change in Bishop Score, the need for a cesarean section, any complications, and the neonatal outcome were the additional outcomes in addition to the Induction Delivery Interval (IDI), which was the primary outcome. Over 80% of the baseline Bishop were nulliparous, with a total of about <4. The combined group had a substantially lower Induction Delivery Interval(IDI) (16 hours and 16 minutes vs. 20 hours 44 minutes, p=0.002) and a significantly higher post-ripening Bishop (6.67 vs. 5.98; p=0.045). (29.1 vs. 25.5%; p=0.669) The CS rate was comparable. The newborn results were similar, and no mother experienced hyperstimulation or chorioamnionitis. As a result, co-administering a single dose of an intracervical PGE2 gel with Foley was more effective for cervical ripening and IOL than using Foley alone.⁷ While in our study 68.0% of Group A patients had a normal delivery with 74.7% of neonates were having a good Apgar Score.

In the study, which was conducted in the USA, 71 patients were induced with Foley catheter and 69 with catheter-andgel in combination. There were no differences between the groups in terms of delivery indications, ultrasound results, labour interventions, intrapartum time interval, mode of delivery, postpartum complications and newborn outcomes.⁸

In a study published in India, 50 women were of Group A received intracervical Foley catheters and PGE2 gel at the same time. Group B had intravaginal insertion of PGE2 gel only. The mean time from induction to the active phase was 5.8 hours for Group A and 6.23 hours for Group B in both groups. Additionally, the mean time from induction to delivery in Group A was 10.085.6 hours, compared to 14.66.9 hours in Group B. This difference is substantial, favoring Group A. Although there was a modest increase in the vaginal delivery rate in Group A, it was not statistically different from Group B (66% vs. 58%, respectively).¹⁰ These results are consistent with our findings, which showed that 94 (48.5%) and 132 (68.0%) patients in Group A and Group B, respectively, had normal vaginal births. P Value = 0.0002.

In terms of better maternal and fetal outcomes, we can confirm that a comparison between the groups showed that one approach offers a statistically significant advantage over the other. However, theoretical concerns about the spread of infection with the use of a Foley's catheter exist, however in this study, 49 (25.3%) and 51 (26.3%) perinatal morbidities were documented in Groups A and B with P=0.816 respectively. These results support what Deshmukh VL and Yelikar KA¹¹ had seen.

In this study, the two group modes of delivery were compared. In Group A, 132 (68.0%) women delivered normally vaginally, 44 (22.7%) patients used instruments, and 18 (9.3%) patients underwent C Sections. For Group B, 94 (48.5%) patients underwent normal vaginal births, 78 (40.2%) underwent instrumental births, and 22 (11.3%) underwent C Sections. The P=0.0002. This indicates that using a foley's catheter in conjunction with PGE2 dramatically improved maternal outcomes, particularly in terms of fewer C sections when compared to PGE2 alone. These results were in line with what Patabendige M. and Jayawardane A¹² had noticed.

There are several ways to induce labour induction, including

mechanical and pharmacological approaches that can be employed separately or in combination. It is vital to inform the patient on the justification for labour induction, including the dangers involved and potential alternatives. There is currently inadequate knowledge regarding the most appropriate and efficient strategy for cervical ripening and labour induction, making it difficult to choose the proper method for the right patient.

Both the prostaglandin E2 gel and the foley catheter have been shown in numerous investigations to be equally efficacious in promoting pre-induction cervical softening.^{8,13} For the mother, fetus, and infant, Foley's Catheter is a safe way to induce labour.¹⁴ This is in contrast to our findings from this study, which showed that the use of an intracervical foley's catheter in combination with PGE2 on a patient's cervix during a full-term pregnancy produced significantly better and more effective results than PGE2 alone in terms of bettering maternal and fetal outcomes.

A total of 153 patients were enrolled in a different study156 (82 Foley; 71 PGE2). With the exception of the PGE2 group's lesser dilatation (16% vs. 38% 1cm dilated; P=0.05), baseline parameters were comparable. When parity, gestational age, initial dilatation, and administration of oxytocin were controlled for in the CPH model, there was no difference in time from insertion to delivery between the PGE2 and Foley catheter groups (median 27 vs. 33 hr; HR 1.13, 95% confidence interval 0.77-1.68). Patients in the PGE2 group had a higher chance of developing uterine tachysystole (9% vs. 0%; P=0.01) and needing an additional form of CR (34% vs. 1%; P=0.001). Negative outcomes for mothers or newborns did not differ between groups. However, in one research, we noted 51 (26.3%) perinatal morbidities in Group B compared to 49 (25.3%) in Group A, p=0.816.¹⁵ While in our study 68.0% of Group A patients had a normal delivery with 74.7% neonates were having good Apgar Score with p=0.0002 and 0.816.

In a study published in India, In one group, intracervical Foleys catheter instillation was followed by a single dose of dinoprostone gel if necessary, and solely dinoprostone gel for ripening in the other group. The length of the induction-delivery interval, birth method, and neonatal and maternal problems were evaluated. In comparison to the other group, which had a vaginal delivery rate of 64%, the first group had an 82% rate. The change was statistically significant (p=0.0426).¹⁶ While in our study, 68.0% of patients in Group A had normal deliveries, and 74.7% of the newborns had good Apgar scores (p=0.0002 and 0.816).

In a research published in India, group A received a Foley's catheter and PGE2, while group B only received a Foley's catheter; all groups had equivalent maternal ages, gestational ages, and reasons for induction. The average pre-induction Bishop score between the two groups did not differ significantly. Following a 6-hour infusion, there was a

noticeable Bishop score improvement in both groups. Though group B made more progress than group A.¹⁷ According to a different study, 153 files were recovered from 168 attempted inductions of labour. Post-date cases made up 69.7% of all cases. The majority of patients (69.3%) were able to deliver naturally via vaginal birth, whereas one patient required assistance. As a result, 30.1% of inductions were unsuccessful and necessitated caesareans.¹⁸ According to another study, the probability of mechanical ventilation was 0.54%, admission to a newborn ICU was 5.4%, and stillbirth was 0.15% among singleton-term deliveries. The rates of induction of labour (minimum 17.5%, maximum 40.7%) and emergency cesarean sections (minimum 5.6%, maximum 17.1%) varied widely between hospitals. Better perinatal outcomes were seen in women who gave birth in hospitals with greater rates of induction of labour. There was a 9% reduction in the likelihood of term stillbirth and a 14% reduction in the need for mechanical ventilation for every 5%-point increase in induction. Neonatal unit admission at term and hospital-level induction of labour rates did not significantly correlate (p>0.05).¹⁹

Foley's dinoprostone (n=75) groups, as demonstrated by another investigation. The intracervical Foley's injection was combined with a single dosage of 0.5 mg intracervical dinoprostone gel. The induction-delivery interval (IDI) was the main endpoint, with changes in Bishop's score, the need for oxytocin, the cesarean section (CS) rate, chorioamnionitis, and newborn outcome serving as secondary outcomes. Indications for IOL and the average parity and gestation were comparable. The neonatal outcome, IDI (19 hours and 20 minutes; p = .683), cervical ripening time, oxytocin demand, CS rate (25.4%; p =.322), and oxytocin requirement were also identical. 1.3% of people who used Foley'sdinoprostone had hyperstimulation (p=0.55). Not a single woman experienced chorioamnionitis.²⁰ There were certain limitations of this study which include its small sample size and being a two-centered study that does not generalize its results to the overall population of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. Therefore, large multicentered randomized control trials shall be carried out across the province of Khyber Pukhtunkhwa for better and robust outcomes.

CONCLUSION:

This study demonstrated that intracervical foley's catheter with PGE2 application on the cervix of a patient with-term pregnancy yielded significantly improved maternal bishop score, mode of delivery, duration of labour and fetal outcomes as compared to PGE2 alone.

- Authors Contribution:
- **Fauzia Afridi:** Manuscript writing, data analysis and critical review
- **Romana Bibi:** Manuscript writing, concept of study and data collection, data analysis
- Maimoona Qadir: Result interpretation and discussion writing
- Ruqia Wazir: Result interpretationand data analysis

REFERENCES

- St Onge RD, Connors GT. Preinduction cervical ripening: a comparison of intracervical prostaglandin E2 gel versus the Foley catheter.1995. 1;172(2):687-90. DOI: 10.1016/0002-9378(95)90594-4
- 2. Laddad MM. A prospective randomized comparative study of intra- cervical Foley's catheter insertion versus PGE2 gel for pre-induction cervical ripening. 2013 May;2(5).
- 3. National Institute for Clinical Excellence. Clinical guidelines for induction of labour, Appendix-E. London: NICE. 2001.
- Modrzyńska A, Radoñ-Pokracka M, P³onka M, Adrianowicz B, Wilczyńska G, Nowak M, Huras H. Labor induction at full-term and post-term pregnancies. Folia Medica Cracoviensia. 2019:79-94. DOI: 10.24425/fmc.2019.131382
- Zhu L, Zhang C, Cao F, Liu Q, Gu X, Xu J, Li J. Intracervical Foley catheter balloon versus dinoprostone insert for induction cervical ripening: A systematic review and meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. Med. 2018 Nov;97(48). doi: 10.1097/MD.00000000013251
- Pierce S, Bakker R, Myers DA, Edwards RK. Clinical insights for cervical ripening and labor induction using prostaglandins. AJP reports. 2018 Oct;8(4):e307. DOI: 10.1055/s-0038-1675351
- Chowdhary A, Bagga R, Kalra J, Jain V, Saha SC, Kumar P. Comparison of intracervical Foley catheter used alone or combined with a single dose of dinoprostone gel for cervical ripening: a randomised study. Obstet. Gynecol. 2019 May 19;39(4):461-7. DOI: 10.1080/01443615.2018.1534090
- Greybush M, Singleton C, Atlas RO, Balducci J, Rust OA. 2001. Preinduction cervical ripening techniques compared. J Reprod Med 46:11–17.
- Kashanian M, Akbarian AR, Fekrat M. 2006. Cervical ripening and induction of labor with intravaginal misoprostol and Foley catheter cervical traction. Int J Gynaecol Obstet 92:79–80. doi: 10.1016/j.ijgo.2005.09.010.
- Garg R, Vardhan S, Singh S, Singh R. Foley catheter with vaginal prostaglandin E2 gel versus vaginal prostaglandin E2 gel alone for induction of labour: a randomized controlled trial. International Journal of Reproduction, Contraception, Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2018; 7(5):1894. doi.org/10.18203/ 2320-1770.ijrcog20181924
- Deshmukh VL, Yelikar KA, Deshmukh AB. Comparative Study of Intra-cervical Foley's Catheter and PGE(2) Gel for Pre- induction Ripening (Cervical). J Obstet Gynaecol India. 2011;61(4):418-421. doi.org/10.1007/s13224-011-0063-2

- Patabendige M, Jayawardane A. Foley catheter for cervical priming in induction of labour at University Obstetrics Unit, Colombo, Sri Lanka: a clinical audit with a patient satisfaction survey. BMC Res Notes. 2017;10(1):155. doi.org/10.1186/ s13104-017-2478-z
- Gelber S, Sciscione A. Mechanical methods of cervical ripening and labor induction. Clin Obstet Gynecol. 2006. 49 (3):642-57.
- Jozwiak M, Bloemenkamp KW, Kelly AJ, Mol BW, Irion O, Boulvain M. Mechanical methods for induction of labour. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2012 Mar 14. CD001233. doi. org/10.1002/14651 858.CD001233.
- Rachel B, Marie AH, Jessica P. Retrospective Comparison of PGE2 Vaginal Insert and Foley Catheter for Outpatient Cervical Ripening. J OBs Gynecol Canada. 2020;42(9):1103-1110. doi.org/10.1016/j.jogc.2020.02.112
- Malakar A, Sahoo PS, Mehrotra M, Barik S. Role of intracervical foley's catheter as pre-induction cervical ripening agent in reducing rate of primary caesarean section. Int J Clini Obstet Gyn 2019; 3(4): 35-39. DOI: https://doi.org/10.33545/ gynae. 2019.v3.i4a.289
- 17. Bembalgi S, Vinutha MB. Comparison of Foley's catheter with PGE2 gel and Foley's catheter with PGE2 gel with extra amniotic saline infusion for labour induction. Int J Reprod, Contra, Obstet Gynecol. 2018 1;7(5):1782-6.
- Benedict MOA, Brits H. Induction of labour practices at Botshabelo District Hospital: Assessing the institutional guidelines. J Public Health Afr. 2022;13(2):2153. doi: 10.4081/jphia.2022.2153.
- Gurol-Urganci I, Jardine J, Carroll F, Frémeaux A, Muller P, Relph S, Waite L, Webster K, Oddie S, Hawdon J, Harris T, Khalil A, van der Meulen J; National Maternity and Perinatal Audit Project Team. Use of induction of labour and emergency caesarean section and perinatal outcomes in English maternity services: a national hospital-level study. BJOG. 2022;129(11): 1899–906. doi: 10.1111/1471-0528.17193.
- Garg R, Bagga R, Kumari A, Kalra J, Jain V, Saha SC, Kumar P. Comparison of intracervical Foley catheter combined with a single dose of vaginal misoprostol tablet or intracervical dinoprostone gel for cervical ripening: a randomised study. J Obstet Gynaecol. 2022;42(2):232-238. doi: 10.1080/ 01443615.2021.1904227.

Age Related Cytoarchitectural Comparison of Histopathological Changes in Thyroid Nodule

Tanweer Fatima, Sanum Ali, Ghansham Rawtani, Surrendar Dawani, Sehrish Hussain, Sarah Zahid, Aillah Baluch,

Shahid Rasul

ABSTRACT

Objective: To compare age related histomorphological changes through cytology (Bethesda category) and histopathology in thyroid nodules.

Study design and setting: This cross sectional study was conducted at the Department of Anatomy, BMSI, JPMC Karachi from 31-March-2021 to 31-August-2021.

Methodology: Total n=120 patients of all ages, genders and ethnicities that underwent surgery for thyroid nodules were included after taking duly signed consent. On the basis of cytological reports (FNAC) patients were grouped according to age and gender. Processed paraffin blocks were sectioned at a thickness of 5μ m and then were stained with Haematoxylin and Eosin (H&E) for histological evaluation. Masson trichrome stain was used to observe fibrosis, that was measured through Image J Fiji software.

Results: We evaluated that out of 120 patients, male to female ratio was 1:5.67. Among various ethnic groups; Urdu speaking (40.8%) with mean age of 40.3% were commonly affected. Histopathological examination revealed that most common benign lesion was colloid nodular hyperplasia and papillary carcinoma was the most common malignant lesion. Highest percentage of fibrosis (36%) was seen in middle aged participants (p-0.045). Basement membrane thickness with lowest percentage (12%) was observed in younger age participants while highest (31%) was measured in older aged participants (p-0.001). Accuracy score of FNAC showed sensitivity 59%, specificity 96.6%, accuracy 86%, positive predictive value (NPV) 87%.

Conclusion: With progression in age thyroid gland undergo histomorphological changes, early diagnosis will help in categorical nomenclature and its implications for subsequent management of patients with thyroid lesions.

Key words: Bethesda category, Cytoarchitecture, Thyroid gland, Thyroid lesion, Thyroid nodule.

How to cite this Article:

Fatima T, Ali S, Rawtani G, Dawani S, Hussain S, Zahid S, Baluch A, Rasul S. Age Related Cytoarchitectural Comparison of Histopathological Changes in Thyroid Nodule. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):135-9 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/ JBUMDC2022107

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

Tanweer Fatima (Corresponding Author) M.Phil. Anatomy Scholar, Department of Anatomy Basic Medical Sciences Institute (BMSI), Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: dr.tanweerfatima@gmail.com	Aillah Baluch Research Associate, Department of Anatomy Basic Medical Sciences Institute (BMSI), Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: aillah357@yahoo.com
Sanum Ali Assistant Professor, Department of Anatomy Basic Medical Sciences Institute (BMSI), Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: drdahri@gmail.com	Shahid Rasul Professor of Surgery, Department of Surgery Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: drrasul@gmail.com
Ghansham Rawtani Assistant Professor, Department of Surgery Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: drsham84@hotmail.com	Received: 17-07-2022 Image: Accepted: 07-03-2023 Image: Accepted: 07-03-2023 Image: Accepted: 07-03-2023 Image: Accepted: 07-03-2023
Surrendar Dawani Assistant Professor, Department of Surgery Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: Surru82@hotmail.com	Thyroid nodules are one of the frequently presented endocrine disorders with prevalence range of 4% to 10%. ¹ It remains a challenging task for clinicians to reach a clear diagnosis
Sehrish Hussain M.Phil. Anatomy Scholar, Department of Anatomy Basic Medical Sciences Institute (BMSI), Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: drsehrishhussain@gmail.com	regarding the nature of the nodule and thereby, advocating precise and passable management. Various studies showed that 8% of population has palpable masses, most of them are benign and less than 5% are malicious. ² Thyroid is a
Sarah Zahid M.Phil. Anatomy Scholar, Department of Anatomy Basic Medical Sciences Institute (BMSI), Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC) Email: drsarahzahid@gmail.com	butterfly shaped bilobular gland joined by isthmus at center. It is situated in the neck anterior and inferior to the larynx at the level of C5-T1 vertebrae, surrounded by a thin capsule and pre-tracheal layer of deep fascia. ³ Microscopically, the

gland consists of thyroid follicles that are lined by follicular cells secreting thyroid hormone and parafollicular cells are interspersed between them producing calcitonin. Lymph from thyroid gland drains into pre-tracheal, para-tracheal, pre-laryngeal, retro-esophageal and retropharyngeal lymph nodes.⁴ With increase in age the thyroid gland undergoes cytoarchitectural as well as functional characteristic changes. These variations vary from mild atrophy, decrease in weight, increase in basement membrane thickness and fibrosis to decreased peripheral formation of thyroid hormones.⁵

In Pakistan, due to different geographical distribution of population, the prevalence of thyroid nodule is quite common, increasing overall economic burden on the healthcare system.²With the introduction of iodine, prevalence of detectable goiter has been dropped in endemic areas of Pakistan¹. Many clinicians and researchers have categorized thyroid nodules as benign and malignant through various clinical, biochemical and imaging techniques, however, minimally invasive fine-needle aspiration cytology (FNAC) is usually used for pre-operative analysis.⁶Yet FNAC is not without limitations; its accuracy is low in doubtful cytology and in specimen adequacy. About 20% of nodules with indeterminate cytological findings are found malignant, when excised surgically, therefore, histopathological assessment of surgically excised nodules has an utmost importance as it is gold standard method for diagnosis.⁷ Studies have shown that FNAC yields both false positive and false negative results. In order to make definite diagnosis of thyroid nodule that whether it is benign or malignant by comparing it with findings of the excisional biopsy.⁸

In our region most of the studies have focused on malignant thyroid lesions.⁹ In our work we tried to include both, benign and malignant thyroid nodules belonging to different age groups and genders to figure out prevalence of thyroid masses in our population. Previous studies have reported differences in incidence of thyroid nodules in relation to age and gender. Age has been said to have a crucial effect on patient's response to treatment. This study is proposed to compare histological differences in thyroid nodule based on FNAC and excisional biopsy in young and old subjects. Knowledge of age-related cytoarchitectural changes will help in categorical nomenclature and its implication on treatment and subsequent management of patients with thyroid lesions.

METHODOLOGY:

This cross sectional study was conducted at the Department of Anatomy in collaboration with Department of Histopathology, Basic Medical Sciences Institute (BMSI) and Surgical Units Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC), Karachi, from 31-March-2021 to 31-August-2021 after getting ethical approval from Institutional Review Board (IRB) of JPMC (NO. F.2-81/2022-GENL/199/JPMC).

During the study period of five months, 120 patients of all

ages, genders and ethnicities undergoing surgery for thyroid nodule were recruited after taking their consent on a duly signed consent form. Demographic and clinical data was also recorded. Patients with history of previous thyroid surgery for thyroid lesions were excluded from the study to avoid bias due to post-surgery structural changes.¹⁰

Sample size was calculated through OpenEpi, based on a prevalence rate of 8% mentioned by a recent study that studied incidence of thyroid lesions among different Asian ethnic populations, with confidence interval of 95%.¹¹ Non probability convenience sampling was used for the study.

On the basis of FNAC findings patients were stratified into different age groups and genders. Thyroidectomy specimen of same patients were collected and fixed in 10% formalin for 24 hours. After gross morphological examination specimens were dissected in midsagittal plane and three specimens from each thyroid gland were collected dehydrated, cleared and embedded in paraffin. The processed blocks sectioned at a thickness of 5µm were stained with Haematoxylin and Eosin (H&E) and masson trichrome stain for histological examination (basement membrane thickness and fibrosis respectively). These parameters were measured using image J Fiji software. Three slides per specimen and three areas per slide were studied thoroughly under light microscope (Nikon Eclipse 50i; Japan) connected to video link digitalizing board system (DS Camera control unit-DS-L2). Results were obtained by comparing microscopic features in different age groups of FNAC findings based on Bethesda scoring with histopathological outcomes of Thyroid lesions. Statistical analysis was carried out through SPSS version 21 by applying chi square test. A p value of < 0.05was considered statistically significant.

RESULTS:

Total one hundred and twenty (120) patients with thyroid nodules were enrolled during study period out of them most of patients (30%) were age ranged between 31 to 40 years. There were 15% males and 85% females representing male to female ratio 1: 5.67. In our study we found 40.83% patients were from Urdu speaking ethnicity. Neck swelling was the major presenting complaint as 85.83% patients were admitted with swelling; most commonly right side of lobe was affected (35.8%). Lobectomy was done in 70% of patients and 63.3% swelling had firm consistency (Table 1).

According to patient's FNAC reports there were 74.17% benign Bethesda category ? patients. Bethesda category ? includes 4.17% patients and 8.3% belonged to category ?. Bethesda category ? had 5.8% patients and 7.5% were included in malignant category ?. On histopathology of surgically removed thyroid gland we found 81.6 % were benign and 18.4% were malignant lesions (Table 2). It was observed that on FNAC out 74.17% benign lesions, there were 36% true positive colloid nodular hyperplasia, 31% were true positive benign lesion with cystic change lesions,

Tanweer Fatima, Sanum Ali, Ghansham Rawtani, Surrendar Dawani, Sehrish Hussain, Sarah Zahid, Aillah Baluch, Shahid Rasul

while 4.2% were false negative for follicular adenoma and 3.33%) were false negative for papillary carcinoma. Out of 10% follicular neoplasm there was 4.2% true positive follicular adenoma while 2.5% Colloid nodular hyperplasia and 3.33% were false negative for follicular carcinoma. The percentage of fibrosis was compared between age groups, lowest percentage of fibrosis (19%) was observed in age group ranged between 41 to 50 years and highest (36%) was seen in age group ranged between 31 to 40 years (p-0.045). out of 98 benign lesions, basement membrane with lowest percentage of thickness (12%) was perceived in age group ranged between 20 to 30 years while highest (31%) was measured in age group ranged between 51 to 60 years (p-0.001) (Table 3). Statistical analysis of thyroid nodules showed sensitivity 59%, specificity 97%, accuracy 86% positive predictive value (PPV) 86% and negative predictive value (NPV) 87%.

DISCUSSION

Thyroid gland is the most important endocrine gland of the body that controls metabolism, serum calcium levels, development and growth in mammals. Thyroid nodules are commonly presented lesions in outpatient departments; palpable lumps are observed in 4-7% of individuals and have chances to remain undetected in about 10 percent of subjects.¹² FNAC is performed to decrease the unnecessary load of surgical interventions for benign thyroid lesions.

In present study, the thyroid lesions were categorized according to Bethesda system and histopathological evaluation was performed to determine the diagnostic accuracy of FNAC with age related histomorphological changes. We found that females are most commonly affected by thyroid nodules with male to female ratio of 1:5.67, which is also reported by various other studies¹³ this could be due to fluctuations in female hormones; like estrogen, that predispose females to develop thyroid diseases.¹⁴

It is believed that with increase in age, accumulated free oxidative radicals can damage thyroid cells and predispose to thyroid diseases, our results showed that most prevalent age group was from years 31-40, followed by 20-30, these findings were in accord to many other studies.¹⁵ In terms of ethnicity majority of participants were from Urdu speaking ethnic population, similar results were observed in Pakistani study, this might be due to fact that the Urdu speaking residents being pioneers of Karachi constitutes main bulk of Urban population.¹⁶ However, another local study found equal incidence of thyroid lesions in various ethnicities.¹⁷ Majority of patient's complaint (85.8%) was neck swelling which is comparable to study done by Rout and coworkers.¹⁸ According to Kumar and associates the consistency is subject dependent, but it doesn't exclude the presence of malignancy, in our study we found majority of nodules had firm consistency which is in accordance with above study.¹⁰ In Rawalpindi a 20 years retrospective study done by Mehmood

Characteristics	Number of patients (n=120)	Percentage (%)
Gender		
Male	18	15
Female	102	85
Age		
20-30	34	28.33
31-40	36	30
41-50	19	15.83
51-60	31	25.83
Ethnicity		
Sindhi	30	25
Pathan	10	8.33
Balochi	2	1.67
Urdu	49	40.83
Punjabi	26	21.67
Bengali	4	3.33
Presenting complain		
Neck Swelling	103	85.83
Neck discomfort	17	14.17
Side		
Left	41	34.17
Bilateral	36	30
Right	43	35.83
Type of surgery		
Lobectomy	84	70
Total thyroidectomy	36	30
Consistency		
Soft	35	29.17
Firm	76	63.33
Hard	9	7.5

Table 1: Clinicopathological characteristics of Patients

and colleagues,¹⁹ showed that rate of total thyroidectomy was 27.37% and lobectomy was performed for 5.04% of all thyroid surgeries, whereas in our study lobectomy was done in 70% of thyroid nodules and total thyroidectomy was done in 30% of nodules these results are relatable to a five years study on thyroid malignancies done by Razzak *et al.*²⁰

In our study FNAC showed 39.17% Colloid nodular hyperplasia and 35% were benign lesion with cystic changes, similar findings were also found by Gupta *et al*, ²¹ but histopathology confirms that 4.17% cases of follicular adenoma and 3.33% cases of papillary carcinoma were misdiagnosed as benign by FNAC. Out of 10% follicular neoplasms diagnosed by FNAC, biopsy confirmed that there were only 4.2% follicular adenoma, 2.5% Colloid nodular hyperplasia and 3.33% were follicular carcinomas. There were 5.8% cases of suspicious for malignancy on FNAC but on histopathology 5% patients had papillary carcinoma and 1% found to have medullary carcinoma, such drawbacks

Bethesda Category N=no (%)	FNAC	No. of Patients (%)	Histopathology	No. of patients (%)	
Non- diagnostic/ inadequate (I)					
	Colloid nodular	47 (20, 170/)	Colloid nodular hyperplasia	43 (36%)	
Benign (II) 89 (74.17%)	hyperplasia	47 (39.17%)	Benign lesion with cystic changes	$\begin{array}{c}$	
	Benign lesion	42 (25%)	Follicular Adenoma 5 (4.2%	5 (4.2%)	
	with cystic changes	42 (33%)	Papillary Ca	4 (3.33%)	
Atypia/ follicular lesion of Undetermined significance (III) 5 (4.17%)	Atypia of undetermined significance	5 (4.17%)	Benign nodular hyperplasia	5(4.1%)	
			Follicular Adenoma	5(4.1%)	
Follicular neoplasm / suspicious for FN (IV) 12 (10%)	Follicular neoplasm	12 (10%)	12 (10%) Colloid nodular hyperplasia	3(2.5%)	
、 <i>/</i>			Follicular Ca	4 (3.33)	
Suspicious for malignancy (V)	Suspicious of malignancy	7 (5 83%)	Papillary Ca	6 (5%)	
7 (5.83%)	Suspicious of manghancy	/ (3.85%)	7 (5.83%) Medullary Ca		
Malignant (VI) 7 (5.8%)	Papillary Ca	7 (5.8%)	Papillary Ca	7 (5.83%)	

Table 2: Comparison of Bethesda categories with histopathology of Thyroid Nodules

Table 3: Histopathological variables

Variables	Age	Distrib	ution (y	ears)	n voluo
variables	20-30	31-40	41-50	51-60	p-value
Fibrosis (%) n= 120	34	36	19	31	0.045
B/M thickness (%) n=98	12	29	26	31	0.001

of FNAC were also observed in earlier studie.22

With the increase in age thyroid gland also undergo structural and functional changes, on microscopy increased basement membrane thickness and fibrosis was observed with increase in age by previous studies ²³ that also effect the treatment of patients, such studies are in covenant to our study results. Literature review of FNAC findings showed that the study conducted by Agrawal and colleagues found sensitivity 88.8%, specificity 100%, PPV 100% and NPV 95.12% ²⁴ while Jesrani *et al*, in their elastographic study of benign and malignant thyroid nodules perceived, sensitivity100%, specificity 80.2%, PPV 61.7%, NPV 100% and accuracy 85%.²⁵ These results are in favour of our study findings for FNAC of thyroid nodules except for the sensitivity which is at a little lower side in our observations.

The main limitation is that it was single centered study conducted on small group of population so results could not be generalized in relation to ethnicity. It is recommended that in future study should be done on different demographic zones involving large scale of population.

CONCLUSION

The current study determines that, age related histomorphological assessment of thyroid nodules in relation to fibrosis and basement membrane thickness might be helpful for clinicians to classify and modulate the treatment plans for patients of different age group with suspected thyroid lesions.

Authors Contribution:

- **Tanweer Fatima:** Conception & design, interpretation of data and analysis
- **Sanum Ali:** Literature search, manuscript drafting, data analysis and interpretation and critical review
- **Ghansham:** Surgical expertise and relevance in write up **Surrendar Dawani:** Surgical expertise and relevance in write
- up up the subscription of the subscription of
- Sehrish Hussain: Data analysis and interpretation, follow-up of patients
- **Sarah Zahid:** Literature review, data acquisition, follow-up of patients
- Aillah Baluch: Data analysis and computational graphics
- Shahid Rasul: Surgical relevance in write up and critical review
- review

REFERENCES:

- 1. Arul P, Masilamani S. A correlative study of solitary thyroid nodules using the Bethesda system for reporting thyroid cytopathology. J Can Res Ther. 2015; 11(3): 617-622. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4103/0973-1482.157302
- Uyar O, Cetin B, Aksel B, Dogan L, Beksac K, Akgul GG, et al. Malignancy in solitary thyroid nodules: evaluation of risk factors. Oncol Res Treat. 2017;40 (6):360-363. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1159/000464409

- 3. Dhingra PL. Diseases of Ear, Nose and Throat & Head and Neck surgery: Thyroid gland and its disorders: 6th Ed, Elsevier; 2014. p. 326.
- 4. Standring S, editor. Gray's Anatomy: the anatomical basis of clinical practice: Head and neck: 41st Ed, Elsevier; 2016. p. 470-471.
- Abdullah SI, Al-Samarrae AJ, Mahood AK. The Effect of Aging on Human Thyroid Gland:(Anatomical and Histological Study). Iraqi J Comm Med. 2010; 23(3), 158-164.
- Zhu Y, Song Y, Xu G, Fan Z, Ren W. Causes of misdiagnoses by thyroid fine-needle aspiration cytology (FNAC): our experience and a systematic review. Diagn Pathol. 2020;15(1): 1-8. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1186/s13000-019-0924-z
- Jayaram J, Sandhya J, Garimella R, Ashfaq B. A clinical study of solitary nodule of thyroid. Indian J Appl Res. 2019; 9(12): 34-36. DOI: https://doi.org/10.36106/ijar
- Karim MI, Nachev R, Fuklev N, Nargis N. A study on evaluation of solitary nodular thyroid lesions by FNAC and its histopathological correlation. BJMS. 2019; 30;18(4): 789-795. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3329/bjms.v18i4.42906
- Jabeen S, Fatima S, Sheikh A, Islam N. Non Invasive Follicular Thyroid Neoplasm with Papillary like nuclear features (NIFTP), A time for change in Pakistan. Pak J Med Sci. 2020;36 (2):151-155. DOI: https:// doi.org/10.12669/ pjms. 36.2.1123
- Kumar RS. Evaluation and Management of Solitary Thyroid Nodules. J Cont Med A Dent. 2021; 9(2): 4-7
- 11. Lee AW, Mendoza RA, Aman S, Hsu R, Liu L. Thyroid cancer incidence disparities among ethnic Asian American populations, 1990–2014. Ann Epidemiol. 2022; 66: 28-36. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annepidem.2021.11.002
- Beynon ME, Pinneri K. An overview of the thyroid gland and thyroid-related deaths for the forensic pathologist. Acad Forensic Pathol. 2016; 6(2):217-236. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.23907/2016.024
- Mishra S, Sathe NU, Chavan K, Misal P. A Prospective Comparative Study Of FineNeedle Aspiration Cytology And Histopathology In Thyroid Disorders. Br J Bio Med Res. 2019; 03(05): 1121-1145. DOI: https://doi.org/10.24942/ bjbmr.2019.581
- Khan F, Hilal K, Ali I, Samad M, Tariq R, Ahmad W, et al. Hospital-based ultra-sonographic prevalence and spectrum of thyroid incidentalomas in Pakistani population. Cureus. 2021; 13(8): e17087. DOI: https://doi.org/10.7759/ cureus. 17087
- Xu L, Zeng F, Wang Y, Bai Y, Shan X, Kong L. Prevalence and associated metabolic factors for thyroid nodules: a crosssectional study in Southwest of China with more than 120 thousand populations. BMC Endocr Disord. 2021; 21(1): 1-11. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1186/s12902-021-00842-2

- Kamran M, Raza I, Mohiuddin M, Adnan N, Shaheen S, Rehan R. Quantitative assessment of thyroid gland volume among the ethnic groups of Karachi population. PJMD. 2019;8(1): 44-48. DOI: http://ojs.zu.edu.pk/ojs/index. php/ pjmd/article/view/123
- Kamran M, Hassan N, Ali M, Ahmad F, Shahzad S, Zehra N. Frequency of thyroid incidentalomas in Karachi population. Pak J Med Sci. 2014; 30(4): 793-797. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.12669/pjms.304.4808
- Rout K, Ray CS, Behera SK, Biswal R. A comparative study of FNAC and histopathology of thyroid swellings. Indian J Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg. 2011; 63(4):370-372. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s12070-011-0280-0
- Mehmood NM, Bhatti LA, Anwar MI, Chaudhry MA, Ahmed MI, Nadir M, et al. Comparing the Outcomes of Thyroid Surgical Procedures for Benign Diseases with Expertise of the Surgeon in a Tertiary Care Hospital in Rawalpindi, Pakistan. J Islamabad Med Dent Colleg. 2021;10(2): 68-75. DOI: https://doi.org/10.35787/jimdc.v10i2.697
- Razzak SA, Baloch MN, Mehmood Z, Shafqatullah S, Shahid H, Khalid F. Thyroid malignancy: 5 years' experience. J Surg Pakistan. 2019; 24(4): 186-190. Doi: https://doi.org/ 10.21699 /jsp.24.4.6
- Gupta M, Gupta S, Gupta VB. Correlation of fine needle aspiration cytology with histopathology in the diagnosis of solitary thyroid nodule. J Thyroid Res. 2010; 2010: 1-5. DOI: https://doi.org/10.4061/2010/379051
- Attia R, Kotb F, Rabie OM. Role of fine-needle aspiration cytology in the diagnosis of thyroid diseases. The Egyptian Journal of Surgery. 2019; 38(3):439-450. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.4103/ejs.ejs_32_19
- 23. Abdullah SI, Al-Samarrae AJ, Mahood AK. The Effect of Aging on Human Thyroid Gland:(Anatomical and Histological Study). Iraqi J Comm Med. 2010;23(3):158-164.
- 24. Agrawal D, Bhake AS, Rastogi N, Laishram S, Wankhade A, Agarwal A. Role of Bethesda system for reporting thyroid lesion and its correlation with histopathological diagnosis. J Datta Meghe Inst Med Sci Univ. 2019; 14(2): 74-81. Doi: https://doi.org/10.4103/jdmimsu.jdmimsu_76_18
- 25. Jesrani A, Hameed M, Ahmed N, Devi P, Baseer A. Diagnostic Accuracy of Elastography in Differentiating Benign from Malignant Thyroid Nodules Taking Fine Needle Aspiration Cytology as Gold Standard. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2021; 11(2): 70-75. DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/OLBL1894

Frequency of Post-Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) Complications

Asma Abdul Razzak, Muhammad Raza

ABSTRACT

Objective: Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) is a highly technical procedure that carries some risks associated with it. It consolidates the utilization of an endoscope with X-ray to look at the biliary and pancreatic channels with the ability to intervene when indicated to address problems identified during surgery. This study aimed to determine the frequency

Study Design & Setting: Cross-sectional study design at Dow Hospital Karachi.

Methodology: The patients with the age ranging from 18 to 60 years who had endoscopies were taken from July 2020 to February 2021. All the pregnant patients and those who were unwilling to participate in the study were excluded from the study. The data were collected from the patients and they were kept under observation for 4 - 6 hours after ERCP to monitor the development of an immediate complication. The findings were recorded only at 48 hours of the procedure.

Results: The age of the participants was 37 ± 12 years on average. The complications were recorded with pancreatitis at 36% followed by 34.5% bleeding and 29% perforation. 92% of the procedures were successful.

Conclusions: In conclusion, while ERCP is generally considered a safe and effective procedure, it is not without risks. The most common complications of ERCP are pancreatitis, bleeding, and perforation.

Keywords: Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography, Pancreatitis, Endoscopy

How to cite this Article:

Razzak AA, Raza M. Frequency of Post-Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) Complications. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):140-3 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022111

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

INTRODUCTION:

Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography or ERCP is a procedure that is commonly used by Gastroenterologists in a number of clinical scenarios to both diagnose and treat issues involving the upper gastrointestinal tract. As more non-invasive diagnostic modalities have emerged over the past few decades, the ERCP has become almost exclusively a therapeutic procedure and a less invasive non-surgical therapeutic procedure. ERCP has become the standard initial management for most pancreaticobiliary diseases. As with all invasive procedures, ERCPs have a number of side effects including bleeding, perforation, acute pancreatitis, and cholangitis.¹ Pancreatitis is the most common complication of ERCP, with an incidence ranging from 1% to 9% depending on the patient population and procedural factors.²

Endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography is a medical procedure that combines endoscopy and fluoroscopy to

Asma Abdul Razzak (Corresponding Author) Consultant, Department of Gastroenterology Liaquat National Hospital Email: dr.asmabofficial1@gmail.com
Muhammad Raza FCPS Trainee, Department of Radiology Dow University Health Sciences Email: raza123@yahoo.com
Received: 05-07-2022 Accepted: 29-03-2023

diagnose and treat conditions of the bile ducts and pancreas. During the procedure, an endoscope (a thin, flexible tube with a camera and light at the end) is inserted through the mouth, down the esophagus, and into the stomach and duodenum. From there, the endoscope is advanced into the bile ducts and pancreatic ducts. A contrast dye is then injected into the ducts, and X-ray images are taken to help diagnose any abnormalities, such as gallstones, blockages, or tumors.³ ERCP can also be used to perform certain treatments, such as removing gallstones or inserting stents to open blocked ducts.⁴

Patients who underwent general anesthesia with intubation had a 1.27 times increased risk of low blood pressure and hypoxia whereas those who underwent sedation without intended intubation had 1.51 times reduced risk. The reported incidence of such complications varies from study to study with Pancreatitis and Cholangitis having an incidence of 1-5% depending on the study, hemorrhage having an incidence of 1-4%, and perforation having an incidence of 1-2%.⁵

Bleeding post ERCP is a major concern for healthcare professionals despite its low incidence as it can lead to major complications in patients who often have prior comorbidities.⁶ A number of risk factors can predispose a patient to bleeding after undergoing an ERCP including use of anticoagulants whether or not the physician performed a sphincterotomy,⁷ presence of liver cirrhosis,⁴ age⁵ and a number of others. As such, it is the goal of all physicians performing the procedure
to minimize the risk of hemorrhage in the often already at risk population undergoing the treatment.

Perforation is another possible complication that can cause major issues post ERCP. Perforations are classified using the Stapfer classification of duodenal perforations.

Stapfer I: Endoscopy related injuries to the wall of the duodenum

Stapfer II: Perforations associated with sphincterotomies

Stapfer III: Perforations of the actual ducts

Stapfer IV: Micro perforations

Perforations may require immediate surgical intervention depending on their size and location.⁸ The physician performing the ERCP must be vigilant in preventing such complications from occurring. Perforation is a rare but serious complication of ERCP, with an incidence ranging from 0.1% to 1%.⁹

During an ERCP, the patient undergoes conscious sedation in which they are given intravenous medication which causes them to become relaxed and allowing them to tolerate the procedure. Occasionally, in more complex cases, the patient may undergo general anaesthesia and be completely sedated during which they require intubation.¹⁰ Difficult intubation is a risk factor for poorer outcomes post ERCP.¹¹ The studies have shown that the use of artificial airways and prolonged intubation can lead to higher risk of post-procedural complications.¹⁰ According to the studies, the ES incision's length is the most crucial element. Therefore, in order to avoid post-ES bleeding, endoscopists who do ERCP should try to keep the ES incision to the shortest possible length. Endoscopic hemostasis should be initially considered if post-ES bleeding develops since it is a sufficient and reliable method.12

METHODOLOGY:

This cross-sectional study was carried out at Dow Hospital Karachi with the agreement of the institute's ethical committee with Reference App # 0488-2020-DUHS-ERC. The participants who had endoscopy were taken from July 2020 to February 2021 by using non-probability consecutive sampling technique. The individuals with age range of 18 to 60 years were included in the study. All patients were kept under observation for 4-6 hours post ERCP to monitor development of immediate complications. Demographic data, lab reports indicating the findings of ERCP was collected. The patients were assessed 48 hours of ERCP to record any further complications. The outcome measures were the success rate of the procedure and the failure rate. The sample size calculated from open EPI version 3 estimated sample size 112 with the 99% confidence level and 5% margin level. Data was entered and analyzed using statistical package of social sciences (SPSS) version 20. Descriptive statistics were employed as mean and standard deviation for the numeric findings whereas frequency with percentages

for the qualitative data.

RESULTS:

Out of 113 patients who went through ERCP 58(51%) were males and 55(49%) were females. The mean age of the participants was 37±12 years. The common bile duct (CBD) cannulation was directly done in all patients. Sphincteroplasty needed for extraction of large stones. CBD stones were found in 17(15%) patients. 22 cases (19.5%) of large stones were observed that were unreachable by endoscopic extraction and as a result, a stent was inserted to ease obstruction in these patients. The details of all endoscopic findings are given in Table 1. The complications were recorded with 41(36%) pancreatitis followed by 39(34.5%) bleeding and 33(29%) perforation (Figure 1). Based on length of hospitalization, post-ERCP acute pancreatitis was rated as mild, moderate, or severe. There were 21 cases of acute pancreatitis (4.4%), 18 people had moderate pancreatitis, while 3 people had severe cases with fluid collections. After a brief hospital stay of a few days, they were discharged. Retroperitoneal perforation occurred in 3 cases (0.6%), of which 2 were treated conservatively and 1 had surgery. A severe post-procedure hemorrhage in 4 patients (0.8%) requiring a re-scope with an adrenal injection on the bleeding side and the hemostasis achieved. Most of the procedures were successful comprised of 104(92%) cases.

Table 1: Frequency of Findings and their percentages.

Endoscopic Findings	Number of cases	Percentages	
Stone	17	15.0	
Structure	22	19.5	
Stone With Structure	13	11.5	
Ampullary Growth	22	19.5	
PD Stones	17	15.0	
Large Stone	22	19.5	

Figure 1: Percentages of complications



DISCUSSION:

After an endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) procedure, patients are usually monitored in a recovery area until the sedative wears off and they are alert enough to be discharged. Depending on the type of sedation used, this can take several hours.² It is common to experience some mild side effects after the procedure, such as a sore throat, bloating, and cramping. These side effects usually resolve within a day or two. Patients may also experience some mild bleeding from the biopsy site or where an instrument was inserted during the procedure. More serious complications after ERCP, such as pancreatitis, bleeding, infection, or perforation of the gastrointestinal tract, can occur but are relatively rare. Patients should be advised of these potential complications before the procedure and instructed to seek medical attention if they experience symptoms such as severe abdominal pain, fever, or vomiting after the procedure.¹¹

Malignancy at an age over 80 years old and sphincterotomy in the pancreatic duct were found to be important risk factors for death following ERCP-related perforations in a population-based investigation.¹³ Since pancreatic duct sphincterotomy has been introduced as a useful adjuvant in challenging biliary cannulation, the high prevalence of sphincterotomy in the pancreatic duct among fatal perforations is a significant observation.¹⁴ Numerous prospective and retrospective studies have presented data on ERCP-related problems in the elderly. These investigations revealed that both old and younger participants had a high success rate for selective biliary cannulation and PEP.¹⁵

According to various prospective studies, the total ERCP or sphincterotomy complication rate is between 5 and 10 percent.¹⁶⁻¹⁸ ERCP-related problems can be divided into two categories: those that are particular to the surgery itself and those that are general, such sedation-related side effects.¹⁹ Post-ERCP pancreatitis is one of the most dangerous ERCPrelated consequences (PEP).¹⁹ This study showed 39 patients with this complication which comprised of 38%.¹⁵ The endoscopist's method affected the risk of pancreatitis and a large portion of the damage to the pancreas appeared to be caused by the procedure of cannulating the bile duct rather than by the sphincterotomy itself.⁹ A score of 2 on the modified Observer's Assessment of Alertness/Sedation (OAA/S) scale was regarded as severe sedation by the researcher who examined how long it took the patient to achieve it following the initial sedative injection.²⁰ Throughout the surgery, they made an effort to keep patients at a modified OAA/S score of 2, and they also checked the total amount of sedatives used and the length of the treatment.²¹

CONCLUSION:

ERCP is generally considered a safe and effective procedure, it is not without risks. The most common complications of ERCP are pancreatitis, bleeding, and perforation. To minimize the risk of complications, careful patient selection, appropriate pre-procedural preparation, and attention to procedural technique are crucial. It is also important to promptly recognize and manage any complications that do occur.

I	Authors Contribution:
I	Asma Abdul Razzak: Data analysis
i	Muhammad Raza: Conception and design of article

- 1. Bor R, Madácsy L, Fábián A, Szepes A, Szepes ZJWJoGE. Endoscopic retrograde pancreatography: When should we do it? 2015;7(11):1023. doi: 10.4253/wjge.v7.i11.1023
- Cohen LB, DeLegge MH, Aisenberg J, Brill JV, Inadomi JM, Kochman ML, et al. AGA Institute review of endoscopic sedation. 2007;133(2):675-701. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1053 /j.gastro.2007.06.002
- 3. Weaver J. The Latest ASA Mandate: CO2 Monitoring For Moderate and Deep Sedation. Anesthesia Progress. 2011;58(3):111-2. doi.org/10.2344/0003-3006-58.3.111
- 4. Kim YS, Kim M-H, Jeong SU, Lee BU, Lee SS, Park DH, et al. Comparison between Midazolam Used Alone and in Combination with Propofol for Sedation during Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography. ce. 2014;47(1):94-100. DOI: https://doi.org/10.5946/ce.2014.47.1.94
- Katsinelos P, Lazaraki G, Chatzimavroudis G, Gkagkalis S, Vasiliadis I, Papaeuthimiou A, et al. Risk factors for therapeutic ERCP-related complications: an analysis of 2,715 cases performed by a single endoscopist. Ann Gastroenterol. 2014;27(1):65-72. PMID: 24714755
- Goudra BG, Singh PM, Sinha ACJSJoA. Outpatient endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography: Safety and efficacy of anesthetic management with a natural airway in 653 consecutive procedures. 2013;7(3):259. DOI: 10.4103/1658-354X.115334
- Castañera EP, López PR, Delgado AÁ, Núñez FM, Martínez FG, Guardado AVJRededoodlSEdPD. Predictive factors for post-ERCP bleeding. Influence of direct oral anticoagulants. 2021;113(8):591-6. DOI: 10.17235/reed.2020.7547/2020
- Singh VK. Managing Perforations Related to Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography. Gastroenterol Hepatol (N Y). 2016;12(4):260-2. PMID: 27231459
- Freeman ML, Nelson DB, Sherman S, Haber GB, Herman ME, Dorsher PJ, et al. Complications of Endoscopic Biliary Sphincterotomy. 1996;335(13):909-19. DOI: 10.1056 /NEJM199609263351301
- Davis J, Sreevastava DK, Dwivedi D, Gadgi S, Sud S, Dudeja P. A Comparison of Stress Response between Insertion of Gastro-laryngeal Tube and Endotracheal Intubation in Patients Undergoing Upper Gastrointestinal Endoscopic Procedures for Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography. Anesth Essays Res. 2019;13(1):13-8. doi: 10.4103/aer.AER_9_19
- Wang J, Shen Y, Zhong Z, Wu S, Zheng L. Risk Factors for Post-Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) Pancreatitis and the Effect of Octreotide Combined with Nonsteroidal Anti-Inflammatory Drugs on Preventing Its Occurrence. Med Sci Monit. 2018;24:8964-9. doi: 10.12659/MSM.911914

- 12. Bae SS, Lee DW, Han J, Kim HG. Risk factor of bleeding after endoscopic sphincterotomy in average risk patients. Surgical Endoscopy. 2019;33(10):3334-40. doi.org/10.1007 /s00464-018-06623-8
- Langerth A, Isaksson B, Karlson B-M, Urdzik J, Linder S. ERCP-related perforations: a population-based study of incidence, mortality, and risk factors. Surgical Endoscopy. 2020;34(5):1939-47. doi.org/10.1007/s00464-019-06966-w
- 14. Zhong H, Wang X, Yang L, Miao L, Ji G, Fan ZJM. Modified transprepancreatic septotomy reduces postoperative complications after intractable biliary access. 2018;97(1). doi: 10.1097/MD.00000000009522
- Ergin E, Oruç N, Ersöz G, Teke°in O, Özütemiz Ö. Prognosis and risk factors of ERCP pancreatitis in elderly. Scientific Reports. 2021;11(1):15930. doi.org/10.1038/s41598-021-95484-8
- Loperfido S, Angelini G, Benedetti G, Chilovi F, Costan F, De Berardinis F, et al. Major early complications from diagnostic and therapeutic ERCP: a prospective multicenter study. 1998;48(1):1-10. doi.org/10.1016/S0016-5107 (98)70121-X

- 17. Masci E, Toti G, Mariani A, Curioni S, Lomazzi A, Dinelli M, et al. Complications of diagnostic and therapeutic ERCP: a prospective multicenter study. 2001;96(2):417-23. doi.org/10.1016/S0002-9270(00)02387-X
- Rabenstein T, Schneider H, Bulling D, Nicklas M, Katalinic A, Hahn E, et al. Analysis of the risk factors associated with endoscopic sphincterotomy techniques: preliminary results of a prospective study, with emphasis on the reduced risk of acute pancreatitis with low-dose anticoagulation treatment. 2000;32(01):10-9. DOI: 10.1055/s-2000-138
- Cotton PBJGe. Outcomes of endoscopy procedures: struggling towards definitions. 1994;40(4):514-8. doi.org/10.1016/S0016-5107(94)70228-4
- Bauerle K, Greim CA, Schroth M, Geisselbrecht M, Köbler A, Roewer NJBjoa. Prediction of depth of sedation and anaesthesia by the NarcotrendTM EEG monitor. 2004;92(6):841-5. doi.org/10.1093/bja/aeh142
- 21. Cheon YK, Cho KB, Watkins JL, McHenry L, Fogel EL, Sherman S, et al. Frequency and severity of post-ERCP pancreatitis correlated with extent of pancreatic ductal opacification. 2007;65(3):385-93. doi.org/10.1016/ j.gie .2006.10.021

Dumanian Technique for Repair of Complex Incisional Hernias

Sadia Lateef, Surrendar Dawani, Salman Jafferi, Nimra Aslam, Shahid Rasul

ABSTRACT:

Incisional hernia is protrusion of tissue at or near the site of an incision from a previous surgery. It is a challenging procedure to repair complex incisional hernias. Most of the numerous reconstructive techniques are unable to achieve goals of hernioplasty owing to various factors being planar mesh impose the risk of pain and infection whereas conventional suture repairs can fail due to suture pull through, rupture or slipping of knot. The open components separation technique (CST) creates large undermining skin flaps especially useful in patients with complex hernias who require judicial approximation of the midline fascia. Another novel technique for repair of such hernias is the Dumanian Technique : using mesh as a suture material and has been shown to improve the ultimate tensile strength (UTS) and thus prevent surgical failure. Both the techniques are implemented in our case to achieve successful abdominal closure.

Keywords: Component separation, Dumanian technique, Incisional hernia, Mesh repair.

How to cite this Article:

Lateef S, Dawani S, Jafferi S, Aslam N, Rasul S. Dumanian Technique for repair of complex incisional hernias. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):144-6 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022080

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

CASE PRESENTATION:

A 27 years old male with history of gunshot and burst abdomen 2 years back. He developed a large left diaphragmatic hernia and a huge incisional hernia. For this he underwent repair of diaphragmatic hernia prior to planning for incisional hernia repair. Then after 8 month of it he was planned for incisional hernia repair by Dumanian Technique for complex hernias with significant loss of domain which may not be treated even with component separation.

He presented to our clinic with huge incisional hernia extending from xiphisternum to pubic symphysis(Fig 1). CT scan revealed a large defect in anterior abdominal wall measuring approximately 20*18 cm with evidence of herniation of omental fat, bowel loops along with mesentery

Sadia Lateef (Corresponding Author) Post Graduate Trainee, Department of General Surgery Jinnah Post Graduate Medical College, Karachi Email: iamsadiahyder@gmail.com
Surrendar Dawani Assisstant Professor, Department of General Surgery Jinnah Post Graduate Medical College, Karachi Email: surru82@hotmail.com
Salman Jafferi Senior Registrar, Department of General Surgery Jinnah Post Graduate Medical College, Karachi Email: salmaajafferi1990@gmail.com
Nimra Aslam Post Graduate Trainee, Department of General Surgery Jinnah Post Graduate Medical College, Karachi Email: nimraaslam51@gmail.com
Shahid Rasul HoD, Department of Surgery Jinnah Post Graduate Medical College, Karachi Email: drrasul@gmail.com
Received: 29-05-2022 Accepted: 03-02-2023

within the hernial sac.

The patient was lying down supine with arms extended on arm rest on the operating table. Preparation and draping of the field was done from the nipple line extending up to the mid-thigh and laterally up to the edge of the table. The advantage of wide prep is to allow for wide mesh fixation points, if needed. We chose open approach considering hernia orifice being large and planned for its repair using Component Separation.

Technique, Transversus Abdominis release (TAR) and Dumanian Technique for complex hernias with significant loss of domain . Successful surgery was done on 22nd June, 2021. The patient developed wound dehiscence due to poor skin condition on follow-up, which was managed conservatively, and wound was healed on this conservative management. About 5 cm from the midline, skin flaps were raised, from one lateral border of rectus muscle, the linea semilunaris, to another. External oblique was divided vertically 2 cm lateral to linea semilunaris, separating it from the Internal Oblique muscle. This was medialization of Rectus. The separation was done till midline could be brought as close as possible. In addition, Transversus Abdominis release was also done to minimize the defect as much as possible. Release of Transverse Abdominis muscle fibers was attained, extending from xiphoid process above up to and along its entire insertion line at linea semilunaris level. Inferiorly separation extended to the point where deficiency of muscles is there and only peritoneum is present, the arcuate semilunaris. Laterally, release was extended up to the bilateral psoas muscles visualization. Superiorly, extension was taken up to the diaphragm central tendon. Though the posterior rectus sheath approximation in the midline was achieved, but there was still a defect of about 7 cm left with no further room for external oblique mobilization or transversus abdominis release.

This 7 cm defect was then repaired using Dumanian Technique. Macroporous, uncoated Polypropylene mesh of size 30*30 cm was used after cutting along blue lines and

Figure 1: Preoperative assessment (Anterior & lateral views)



Figure 2:



Figure 3: Postoperative assessment



converting it into 2 cm wide strips this way it gave the tensile strength equivalent to ultimate tensile strength of a number 1 polypropylene. The abdominal wall already brought close together using CST, was pierced with a sharp hemostat.

These were then tied as simple interrupted sutures after passing the strips of mesh through the abdominal wall. Several strips were placed and tied in interrupted fashion to attain the tensile strength and midline closure was made (Fig 2). A subcutaneous suction drain was placed. Patient was again seen postoperatively after 1 week and followed regularly further. Patient has been well without recurrence for over 6 months since last operation (Fig 3)

DISCUSSION:

Incisional hernia is defined as abdominal wall hernia occurring at the site of a previous surgical incision. More common site for incisional hernias is midline and is a type of ventral hernia.¹ For incisional hernias, it is crucial to avoid their recurrence and minimize the spread of infection which makes their reconstruction a difficult procedure. Therefore, the primary goals of the restoration of the abdominal wall are securing the visceral organs and avoiding the recurrence.

10–25% of patients suffers from incisional hernia undergoing laparotomy and is a very common complication of abdominal surgeries.² The incidence of infection in ventral hernia repair is high being 8% $.^3$

To achieve a reliable high-tension closure, many materials have been tried and implanted including silver wire⁴ dermal autograft strips⁵ and collagen ribbon.⁶ Earlier, closure of large defects was done using procedures like free flaps or myofascial flaps with high recurrences and complications.⁷ But the novel technique of usage of a mesh as a suture material and component separation techniques reduces the above mentioned risks. Furthermore, there is added benefit of reduction in recurrence rates.

Ramirez originally described Component separation technique (CST) in 1990.⁸ Wide undermining of skin flaps causing wound-related complications was a major issue with this technique. Preserving peri-umbilical perforators reduced wound-related morbidity as evident in some recent works.⁹

This new reconstructive technique of TAR was introduced by Novitsky in 2012 and sdurable results were achieved using this technique. Another modification of the Rives-Stoppa technique, where anterior to posterior fascia, mesh is placed retromuscularly. Primary closure of the anterior fascia is then done. This new retro-rectus plane is bounded laterally by Psoas muscle, superolaterally by diaphragm central tendon, inferolaterally by the inguinal ligament and inferiorly by space of Retzius. Mesh reinforcement is aided by this plane as well as tension-free midline rectus closure is achieved.¹⁰

TAR, another new myofascial release technique in

Dumanian Technique for Repair of Complex Incisional Hernias

complicated repair of ventral hernias, is a type of separation of posterior component. It facilitates significant advancement of fascia of Posterior Rectus, wide dissection laterally and neurovascular supply preservation. It also avoids subcutaneous tissue undermining with added advantage of provision of ample space for Sublay mesh. An immense retromuscular plane is created by TAR which also has benefit of bilaminar ingrowth of the mesh. Aiming low perioperative morbidity and a low recurrence rate is achieved by deploying this novel technique of posterior component separation. Overall, TAR seems to be an exquisite addition to the armamentarium of surgeons who wish for major abdominal wall reconstructions, especially those who have previously failed multiple attempts of other types of reconstruction.¹¹

A new closure technique introduced by Dr Dumanian for abdominal defect in which macro porous polypropylene mesh strips were cut from a sheet of mesh and sutured for tissue approximation. Since its introduction, this sutured repairs from mesh strips is deployed successfully in various institutions naming: Northwestern, The Ohio State University, the University of Illinois Chicago and Walter Reed. Their safety can be assessed by comparing with both the abdominal wall sutured closures and planar mesh hernia repairs done in contaminated fields.¹²

We applied these techniques for repair of our patient's incisional hernia and there is no recurrence up to date

c		٦
ı	Authors Contribution:	i
:	Sadia Lateef: Writeup	;
I	Surrendar Dawani: Case Documentation	I
L	Salman Jafferi: Writeup	I
i	Nimra Aslam: Writeup	ì
ļ	Shahid Rasul: Case Documentation	I
I		I

- Kaneko T, Funahashi K, Ushigome M, Kagami S, Goto M, Koda T, Nagashima Y, Shiokawa H, Koike J. Incidence of and risk factors for incisional hernia after closure of temporary ileostomy for colorectal malignancy. Hernia. 2019;23(4):743-748. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1007/s10029-018-1855-4
- Naguib N, Rafique H, Dhruva Rao PK, Longworth T, Soukias JM, Masoud A. A review of the incidence of iatrogenic hernia in both laparoscopic and open colorectal surgery: using CT as the gold standard of detection, cohort study. Int J Surg. 2015;19:87–90. DOI: https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm. nih.gov/ 26021210/#:~:text=10.1016/j.ijsu.2015.05.026.
- Rajvilas Narkhede, N. M. Shah, Chirantan Mangukia, Shreyas Dholaria. Postoperative Mesh Infection—Still a Concern in Laparoscopic Era 2015; 77(4): 322–326.DOI: https://www. ncbi. nlm.nih. gov/pmc/articles/PMC4688277 /#:~:text= %C2 %A010.1007/s12262%2D015%2D1304%2Dx
- Reid MR, Zinninger MM, Merrell P. Closure of the abdomen with through-and-through silver wire sutures in cases of acute abdominal emergencies. Ann Surg. 1933;98:890896. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1097%2F00000658-193311000-00010.

- 5. N D Appleton, K D Anderson, K Hancock, M H Scott, C J Walsh. Initial UK experience with transversus abdominis muscle release for posterior components separation in abdominal wall reconstruction of large or complex ventral hernias: a combined approach by general and plastic surgeons.DOI: https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih. gov/ 27513800/#:~:text=doi%3A-,10.1308/rcsann.2016.0241,-.
- Mesh Sutured Repairs of Abdominal Wall Defects Steven T. Lanier, Gregory A. Dumanian, Sumanas W. Jordan, Kyle R. Miller, Nada A. Ali and Stuart R. Stock. DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.1097%2FGOX.00000000001060
- Application of the novel enhanced transabdominal preperitoneal (ETAP) technique for laparoscopic suprapubic incisional hernia repair .Wei Zheng , Zhonglin Zhu , Chao Zhang, Hui Zhang. DOI: https://pubmed.ncbi. nlm.nih.gov/ 31538257/#:~:text=10.1007/s00595%2D019%2D01879%2 D6.
- Giant lumbar incisional hernia with loss of domain. Mamaniya UB, Dasgupta P, Senthilnathan P, Chinnusamy. DOI: https:// doi.org/10.4103/jmas.jmas_274_21
- 9. Mahmoud Abdebaky Mahmoud, Ibrahim Magid Abdel-Maksoud,Ahmed Gamal Eldin Osman Prospective comparative study between open perforator-preserving anterior component separation and transversus abdominis release operation in patients withlarge midline incisional hernia. DOI: 10.4103 /ejs.ejs_341_21.
- T C Cox 1, J P Pearl, E M Ritter.Rives-Stoppa incisional hernia repair combined with laparoscopic separation of abdominal wall components: a novel approach to complex abdominal wall closure. DOI: https://pubmed.ncbi. nlm.nih. gov/20661611/#:~:text=DOI%3A-,10.1007/s10029%2D010% 2D0704%2Dx,-Abstract
- 11. Hubert Scheuerlein, Andreas Thiessen, Christine Schug-Pass, and Ferdinand Köckerling What Do We Know About Component Separation Techniques for Abdominal Wall Hernia Repair? DOI: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/ PMC5881422/#:~:text=%C2%A010.3389/fsurg.2018.00024
- 12. G A Dumanian, S Moradian. Mesh abdominoplasty for rectus diastasis in women and men. DOI: https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm. nih.gov/34342745/#:~:text=10.1007/s10029%2D021%2D0 2461%2D1.

"Endocrown" A Major Paradigm Shift in Restorative Dentistry: A Case Report

Amir Hamza, Parivash Anwar, Nehal Sher Khan, Rana Saad Bin Sohail

ABSTRACT

Endocrowns are a conservative and aesthetic treatment option for restoration of extensively destructed posterior teeth. The main advantage is the fact that there is no need for imprudent preparation of the access cavity as done for post and core buildups. Moreover, the clinical visits are less time-consuming and less frequent unlike the ones for post and core buildups and subsequent crown preparation. This case report features the case of a coronally damaged maxillary first molar treated by zirconium endocrown following endodontic treatment.

Keywords: Endocrown, Restorative Dentistry, Endodontic Treatment, Zirconia, Resin Cement

How to cite this Article:

Hamza A, Anwar P, Khan NS, Sohail RSB. "Endocrown" A Major Paradigm Shift in Restorative Dentistry: A Case Report. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):147-9 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2022109

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

INTRODUCTION:

The advent of Endocrowns revolutionized restorative dentistry by providing a modernist means to restore an endodontically treated tooth. Theoretically, as a rule of thumb, every tooth with moderate to severe coronal breakdown is prescribed a post and cast core buildup followed by a crown.¹ The main goal of post and core buildup is to replace the missing tooth structure in order to provide stabilization to the tooth and an encirclement for the final restoration.²

The restoration of an endodontically treated tooth poses several concerns and controversies among dentists. An endodontically treated tooth, compared to a vital tooth, tends to lose its integrity and strength because of the extensive cavity preparation owing to caries, trauma etc.³ Due to the loss of structural integrity, the endodontically treated tooth is prone to biomechanical failure.⁴ This imposes a challenge for the dentist which requires them to conservatively prepare the access cavity, preserve as much anatomic form as possible

Amir Hamza Khan Private practitioner, Operative Dentistry & Endodontics CEO The Dental Lounge Ayub Medical College, Islamabad Email: dr.amir.hamzakhan@gmail.com Parivash Anwar (Corresponding Author) Post-Graduate Trainee, Department of Prosthodontics, I Islamic International Dental College Hospital Riphah International University Email: parivash.anwar@gmail.com Nehal Sher Khan M-Phil student, Department of Community Dentistry I Khyber Medical University Email: khannehal.nk@gmail.com L **Rana Saad Bin Sohail** House job officer, Department of General Dentistry, Islamic International Dental College Hospital Riphah International University Email: sohailsaad566@gmail.com Received: 26-07-2022 Accepted: 01-02-2023

and choose the ideal restorative material.

There are certain limitations to use of posts in endodontically treated teeth, including presence of calcified canals, narrow canals, cases with endodontic mishaps including instrument separation.⁵ Such clinical situations lead to the advent of Endocrowns.

Endocrowns are blocks made of porcelain/metal that consist of a post/core component and a crown component. This saves dentist the time and effort of doing post and core buildups and even crown lengthening in many cases.⁶ It also decreases the chances of hybrid layer degeneration by reducing the number of adhering surfaces.⁶ This crown attaches to the inner access cavity margins to provide macro mechanical retention and the adhesive layer provides retention on a micromechanical level.⁷

The aim of this case report is to present a clinical case where a conservative endocrown restoration was cemented on the maxillary molar after endodontic treatment was done. Significant coronal destruction indicated the use of endocrown.

Case Report:

I

L

I

I

I

I

A 27-year-old male was referred to The Dental Lounge with pain on biting and food impaction in the upper right first molar which upon examination was grossly carious. The medical history was clear. Clinically, there was a substantial loss of natural tooth structure due to caries. The occlusocervical height of the remaining crown was approximately 4mm. The radiographic findings reported a radiolucency that involved the pulp chamber and periapical widening. After necessary investigations, the diagnosis was pulp necrosis with symptomatic apical periodontitis.

After explaining the treatment options to the patient and taking his consent, root canal treatment followed by an endocrown prosthesis was decided to be the treatment plan. Root canal treatment was carried out using the V Taper Gold rotary system with 2% NaOCl as an irrigant. (Figure 1) Calcium hydroxide was used as an intracanal medicament in between the visits. On the second visit, obturation was done using ProTaper gutta percha (GapaDent). (Figure 2)

Figure 1: Clinical view of the tooth demonstrating the three orifices of maxillary first molar Figure 2: Radiograph of obturated molar



One week after obturation, the patient was recalled for the preparation of tooth for endocrown. It was aimed to receive butt-joint margins with no undercuts in the walls of the preparation. The internal undercuts were blocked using Flowable composite SDR plus. The cervical margins were prepared using a diamond tapered fissure bur and a taper of around 6 to 10 degrees was given in the tooth. (Figure 4) The interocclusal space was evaluated and clearance of 2mm was ensured An impression was made using dual impression technique. Prior to impression, a retraction cord was used to expose the prepared margins of the tooth. The tooth was air dried and isolated from saliva. Light body silicone was injected along the margins of the prepared tooth, while putty silicone was loaded in a stock tray and impression was made. The impression was then sent to the laboratory along with the shade information. The chosen restorative material was zirconia due to the added strength of the material with minimal preparation as compared to PFM (Porcelain Fused to Metal) crowns.

On the subsequent visit, the tooth was etched with 37% phosphoric acid for 15 seconds, starting from the margins and then moving towards the core of the tooth.

The tooth was washed and air dried. To cement the endocrown, single-step bonding system (Prime&Bond Universal, Dentsply Sirona) was used. The bonding agent was applied on the internal walls of the tooth and cured.

Dual-cure resin (Total C-RAM, ITENA Clinical) was used as an adhesive to cement the endocrown in place. The resin was spread along the walls of the tooth and the crown seated in place, the excess cement was removed using an explorer. The restoration was polymerized and checked for occlusal interferences and finished

DISCUSSION:

Dealing with molars with considerable coronal breakdown,

Figure4: Finished endocrown restoration



it is difficult to decide a treatment option that provides efficient function and clinical durability. The endocrown is an acceptable option for all kinds of molars, especially those with short clinical crowns and narrow canals.⁸

The advantages of endocrown includes preservation of the biologic width, increased surface area providing more bonding surfaces, decreased stress concentration due to less number of restorative interfaces⁶ and ease of bonding due to a single block restoration.⁹

According to the literature, endocrowns should be limited to the monoblock restoration of molars only due to a more durable masticatory and clinical performance. The aim of an endocrown preparation is to achieve a broader and a steady surface that can resist compressive forces and is more easily achievable with molar teeth.¹⁰

Due to the advancement of bonding systems, micromechanical retention is more emphasized than macromechanical for endocrowns.¹¹

According to Belleflamme et al.¹², it has been proven that the in vitro fracture strength of endocrowns are far more optimal than that of conventional treatment for endodontically treated teeth. Hence, they are indicated for all molars and would be more efficient in cases of calcified canals, short clinical crowns and also a good option for patients with unfavorable occlusal relationships and parafunctional habits e.g.: bruxism.¹³

Endocrowns serve to be a promising alternative for the restoration of endodontically treated molars. It is conservative of tooth structure and this type of restoration should be practiced more frequently after careful case selection.

- **Authors Contribution:**
- Amir Hamza: Case Documentation
- Parivash Anwar: Writeup
- Nehal Sher Khan: Case Documentation Rana Saad Bin Sohail: Writeup

- Dogui H, Abdelmalek F, Amor A, Douki N. Endocrown: An alternative approach for restoring endodontically treated molars with large coronal destruction. Case Rep Dent. 2018;1–6.
- Mahesh B, Vandana G, Sanjay P, Jaykumar G, Deepika C, Aatif N. Endocrown: conservative treatment modality for restoration of endodontically treated teeth–a case report. Endodontology. 2015 Dec;27(2):188.
- 3. Sevimli G, Cengiz S, Oruc MS. Endocrowns: review. J. Istanb. Univ. Fac. Dent. 2015 Apr 29;49(2):57-63.
- 4. Sevimli G, Cengiz S, Oruç S. ENDOCROWNS: REVIEW. 2022.

- 5. Göhring, T. N. and Peters, O. A. Restoration of endodontically treated teeth without posts. Am J Dent. 2003;16(5):313–317.
- 6. Biacchi GR, Mello B, Basting RT. The endocrown: an alternative approach for restoring extensively damaged molars. J Esthet Restor Dent. 2013 Dec;25(6):383-90
- 7. Biacchi GR, Basting RT. Comparison of fracture strength of endocrowns and glass fiber post-retained conventional crowns. Oper Dent. 2012 Mar-Apr;37(2):130-6.
- 8. Menezes-Silva R, Espinoza CA, Atta MT, Navarro MF, Ishikiriama SK, Mondelli RF. Endocrown: A Conservative approach. Braz Dent Sci. 2016;19(2):121–31.

Personality Disorders among Medical Professionals

Henna Fatma

ABSTRACT:

There is an increase in the amount of conversation surrounding "toxic" environments within many workplaces today, and efforts to bring about a radical change in workplace policies that have let destructive and egotistic individuals survive and succeed in highly competitive posts. Individuals that are part of an environment contribute to its culture and toxicity is a result of an accumulation of negative behaviors dictated by negative personality traits. It is our observation that such traits are very common amongst our very own medical community. Doctors and nurses bear the same modicum of human folly as the rest of this world, though they are loath to admit their vulnerabilities to anyone, including themselves.

How to cite this Article:

Fatma H. Personality Disorders among Medical Professionals. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):150-1 DOI: https://doi.org/ 10.51985/JBUMDC2022025

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

I

1

Studies done previously on negative behaviors amongst physicians have made use of a broad term i.e. "disruptive behavior". The American Medical Association describes this as "personal conduct, whether verbal or physical, that negatively affects or that potentially may negatively affect patient care,"¹ and the Joint Commission definition includes all "behaviors that undermine a culture of safety."² A study of physicians reported for disruptive behavior within the workplace found that several of these physicians, in fact, met criteria for psychiatric diagnoses, such as mood disorders, adjustment disorders, personality disorders, and anxiety disorders.³

We have worked with plenty of physicians on whom we can juxtapose the textbook traits of narcissistic personality disorder. While this may be a big label to adorn someone with, we do encounter some of our colleagues entertaining discernably arrogant and entitled proclivities. They will always provide to anyone listening, an inflated account of their accomplishments, and carefully curate a selfcongratulatory image of themselves in which they are impeccable and capable of absolutely no mishap or even an occasional misjudgment. If the situation demands it, they will throw a colleague under the bus without much empathy. However, a study done by Bucknall and colleagues shows that there is hope. The study compared 3 dark triad personality traits (narcissism, Machiavellianism, and primary psychopathy) in the general population to those in individuals from the healthcare systems through validated self-reported personality questionnaires. The results showed that the health care group had lower mean scores for dark triad traits than the general population.⁴ However, a lack of insight among narcissistic individuals can undermine the

Henna Fatma (Corresponding Author) Senior Medical Officer, Department of Internal Medicine Agha Khan Hospital Email: henna.fatma@gmail.com	
Received: 16-02-2022 Accepted: 24-01-2023	

validity of a questionnaire-based study.

Another personality trait commonly noticed is obsessivecompulsive personality disorder. The WHO recognizes OCPD as a personality disorder with prominent anankastic features (anakastia) in the ICD, with symptoms reflecting an excessive conscientiousness, scrupulousness, and undue preoccupation with productivity to the exclusion of pleasure and interpersonal relationships.⁵ They strive towards an uncompromising ideal of perfectionism and tend to micromanage the smallest of tasks and have trouble delegating responsibility. They too, like narcissistic individuals, are unable to exercise empathy towards their co-workers and exhibit rigid thought patterns that translate into an inflexible attitude in the workplace. These individuals also may be relentlessly addicted to their work and thus are more prone to burn-out and its adverse consequences.⁶ Similarly, traits indicative of paranoid personality disorder or avoidant personality disorder are also observed among medical professionals, which interfere with their thought patterns, behavior, and daily functioning.

Many models of personality traits exist, including Gordon Allport's list of 4,000 personality traits, Raymond Cattell's 16 personality factors, and Hans Eysenck's three-factor theory.⁷ Psychoticism is a dimension of personality in Eysenck's dimensions characterized by aggression, impulsivity, aloofness, and antisocial behavior. Most contemporary psychology focuses on the five-factor model also known as the Big Five developed in 1949. The five broad personality traits this model is comprised of are extraversion, agreeableness, openness, conscientiousness, and neuroticism.⁸ Neuroticism is characterized by sadness, moodiness, insecurity, anxiety and irritability.

Neuroticism and psychoticism could be associated with lower work performance among medical individuals. In studies on the general population, employees falling in the neuroticism group of the Big 5 personality traits, had lesser interactions in the workplace, compared to emotionally stable employees. They were also less attentive and had lower job satisfaction.⁹ A study observing national differences for thirty-seven nations in extraversion, neuroticism, psychoticism, and their correlation with per capita incomes and other variables (suicide, homicide, and alcoholism) revealed that neuroticism was significantly correlated with Hofstede anxiety scores (r = 0.50, P < 0.05). Hofstede anxiety was also significantly correlated with alcoholism (r = 0.52, P < 0.05). The study further showed that there was a significant negative correlation between psychoticism and work ethic (r = -0.48, P < 0.05). Per capita income was significantly negatively correlated with competitiveness (r = -0.48, P < 0.05).¹⁰

There is no robust data available on the exact prevalence of personality disorders within the medical community, and one may argue whether there is any need for detailed researches regarding the subject. After all personality is mostly shaped during childhood and there is little one can do about it once developed

To answer the above, awareness about maladaptive personality types could be used to help physicians and nurses become more self-aware regarding their personal characteristics. One can also better understand the impact personality traits have on other life indicators, such as success in social

Robinson OC. On the social malleability of traits: Variability and consistency in Big 5 trait expression across three interpersonal contexts. Journal of Individual Differences. 2009 Jan;30(4):201-8., and professional contexts¹². Also while personality traits tend to be fairly consistent over short periods of time, they can be changed through deliberate effort. A study conducted on a personality change coaching program showed that there was a significant positive change in participant selected facets, with gains maintained three months later suggesting that a structured personality change coaching program may facilitate beneficial personality change in motivated individuals.¹³

There is a need for open and evidence-based discourse on the topic of difficult personality traits within our hospital environments as a hospital system thrives on mutual understanding, respect, and cooperation amongst individuals. Instead of expecting employees to adjust themselves around a toxic work culture, there is a greater reward to be reaped by changing the culture altogether and making it better and fairer for all.

Authors Contribution:

Henna Fatma: I state that I have made a (direct, intellectual)
contribution to the conception, design, analysis and/or
interpretation of data

- 1. Davies M, Dinwoodie M. The disruptive doctor. BMJ. 2015;20:351.
- Sanchez LT. Disruptive behaviors among physicians. Jama. 2014;312(21):2209-10.

- 3. Merlo LJ, Sutton JA, Brown ME. Psychiatric conditions affecting physicians with disruptive behavior. Psychiatric Times. 2014;31(11):56-.
- Bucknall V, Burwaiss S, MacDonald D, Charles K, Clement R. Mirror mirror on the ward, who's the most narcissistic of them all? Pathologic personality traits in health care. CMAJ. 2015;187(18):1359-63.
- Atroszko PA, Demetrovics Z, Griffiths MD. Work addiction, obsessive-compulsive personality disorder, burn-out, and global burden of disease: Implications from the ICD-11. International journal of environmental research and public health. 2020;17(2):660.
- Tawfik, D.S.; Profit, J.; Morgenthaler, T.I.; Satele, D.V.; Sinsky, C.A.; Dyrbye, L.N.; Tutty, M.A.; West, C.P.; Shanafelt, T.D. Physician burnout, well-being, and work unit safety grades in relationship to reported medical errors. Mayo Clin. Proc. 2018, 93, 1571–1580.
- 7. Gogic S. The Big 5 Model of Personality.
- 8. McCrae RR, Costa PT. Personality in adulthood: A five-factor theory perspective. Guilford Press; 2003.
- 9. JALAL RN, ZEB N, FAYYAZ UE. The effect of personality traits on employee job satisfaction with moderating role of Islamic work ethics. The Journal of Asian Finance, Economics, and Business. 2019;6(2):161-71.
- Lynn R, Martin T. National differences for thirty-seven nations in extraversion, neuroticism, psychoticism, and economic, demographic and other correlates. Personality and Individual Differences. 1995;19(3):403-6.

Artificial Intelligence and Telehealth as Diagnostic Approach to Middle Ear Disease- Advances in Otology

Soubia Akhtar, Yumna Afzal

How to cite this Article:

Akhtar S, Afzal Y. Artificial Intelligence and Telehealth as Diagnostic Approach to Middle Ear Disease-Advances in Otology. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):152 DOI: https://doi.org/10.51985/JBUMDC2023168

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

As with other subspecialities, remote otoscopy commonly regarded as telehealth is being studied as a new approach for diagnosis of middle ear diseases. As in covid-19 pandemic, otolaryngologists were the most affected health care professionals as aerolized particles were a hurdle to conduct routine upper airway and ear canal examination, telehealth gain popularity, also to justify shortage of PPE. Beside this, reduction in post operative follow up visits, and cost savings in terms of greater access for rural populations were the major attractions to adopt remote otoscopy in ENT.¹

In recent literature, telehealth in accordance with artificial intelligence has proven to have diagnostic accuracy of 78.7% of middle ear pathologies. The video otoscope tympanic membrane image is uploaded in android application, that process the image on smartphone. Connected server perform the task of feature extraction and ultimately, diagnosis of the disease. Broadly the disease is classified into four categories, namely, normal, abnormal, obstructed wax and chronic perforation. The abnormal division is actually the group of pathologies such as acute otitis media. Therefore, this system also, triage patients appropriately.² Two specialist comparative diagnosis by Livingstone et al, and cross checking of images by primary author from medical records was done in a study by cha et al. this learning via machine had high precision of images for otitis media.³ Chen et al., formulated a smartphone-based edge artificial intelligence application that divided common middle ear diseases into ten known ear pathologies through transfer learning. This model was meticulously superior to previous experiments, as those used cloud computing techniques requiring access to internet and latency connections.⁴

Thirty-nine studies were systematically evaluated for artificial intelligence-based otoscopy processes. With the accuracy of 90.7%, AI was successful in discriminating between

Soubia Akhtar (Corresponding Author) Resident, Department of ENT Dr. Ziauddin Hospital, Karachi Email: soubiaakhter@gmail.com
Yumna Afzal Resident, Department of ENT Dr. Ziauddin Hospital, Karachi Email: yumnaafzal96@gmail.com
Received: 24-01-2023 Accepted: 06-03-2023

normal and abnormal images. Overall precision of 97.6% was reported. Equated against manual classification, human evaluators are outpaced by artificial intelligence in classifying otoscopy images (93.4% versus 73.2% accuracy respectively).⁵

In conclusion, the lack of Ent specialists in underdeveloped countries, general practitioners are forefront to treat medical issues related to ear, despite of the fact that they may not have enough training to make correct diagnoses in this field. Therefore, to discourse this issue, a computer-aided system based on machine models and image processing techniques, also known as artificial intelligence, or telemedicine acts as a support for a more exact diagnosis of ear disorders at primary care before specialist referral.

Authors Contribution:

Soubia Akhtar: Conception, writeup and literature search

Yumna Afzal: Editing and literature search

REFERENCE:

I

I

- Ezzibdeh R, Munjal T, Ahmad I, Valdez TA. Artificial intelligence and tele-otoscopy: A window into the future of paediatric otology. Int J Pediatr Otorhinolaryngol. 2022 Sep;160:111229. DOI: 10.1016/j.ijporl.2022.111229
- Pedersen, J. E. N. (2020). Digital otoscopy with AI diagnostic support: making diagnosis of ear disease more accessible. ENT & Audiology News.
- Sandström J, Myburgh H, Laurent C, Swanepoel DW, Lundberg T. A Machine Learning Approach to Screen for Otitis Media Using Digital Otoscope Images Labelled by an Expert Panel. Diagnostics. 2022; 12(6):1318 DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/diagnostics12061318
- Chen YC, Chu YC, Huang CY, Lee YT, Lee WY, Hsu CY, Yang AC, Liao WH, Cheng YF. Smartphone-based artificial intelligence using a transfer learning algorithm for the detection and diagnosis of middle ear diseases: A retrospective deep learning study. EClinicalMedicine. 2022 Sep 1;51:101543. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eclinm.2022.101543
- Habib, A-R, Kajbafzadeh, M, Hasan, Z, et al. Artificial intelligence to classify ear disease from otoscopy: A systematic review and meta-analysis. Clin Otolaryngol. 2022; 47: 401– 413 DOI: DOI: 10.1111/coa.13925

Narcissism in Medical Students - A Matter of Concern

Shazia Fakhir Durrani

How to cite this Article:

Durrani SF. Narcissism in Medical Students - A Matter of Concern. J Bahria Uni Med Dental Coll. 2023;13(2):153-4 DOI: https://doi.org/10. 51985/JBUMDC2022162

This is an Open Access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution Non Commercial License (http:// creativecommons/org/licences/by-nc/4.0) which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

T

1

The term, Narcissism derives from the tragic story of the Greek Folklore, about a young man, named, Narcissus. He fell in love with his own appearance, which he saw in a pool of water and started getting infatuated by it to the point that he eventually died, looking at it continuously for weeks and months. Presently, Narcissism is a terminology used in Personality Psychology.¹Narcissism, is defined as a grand view of self and feeling of superiority of one's own talents and a desire for admiration, an extreme sense of entitlement, lack of empathy, and selfishness and egoism. The culture in our society of considering getting admission in medical college as one of the highest academic achievements, has somewhat made students feel superior in academic as well as their professional abilities. Hence, Narcissm is being observed as a prominent abnormality in personality among a lot of medical students.²

It has been quite concerning news that medical professionals display narcissistic personality characters which may harm their future patient dealing and further damage the already spoilt reputation of doctors in our society. This trait starts showing at student level. Students showing narcissistic traits are in lead among the medical students. Psycho-social methods should be implemented to help students overcome these insufficiencies.

Medical studies are physically and mentally demanding. The arduous workload and the exhaustive program as well as the pressure to do well on the assessments contributes to the stressful environment. Lack of moderation activities also contribute and plays a leading role in the development of the stress. So, undeniably, stress is a normal part of a medical student's routine.

The number of people having narcissistic personality traits has reached a 30% increase has been seen over the last four decades. In America, every 1 in 200 persons, have this disorder. There are major gender differences, almost of people with narcissistic personality disorder are male.³

According to a study in USA, narcissism occurs in 17% of first-year medical students.⁴ However, data on narcissism

Sha	azia Fakhir Durrani (<i>Corresponding Author</i>)
Ser	nior Registrar, Department of Paediatrics
Bal	nria University Health Sciences
Em	ail: shaziafakhir@hotmail.com
Red	ceived: 04-01-2023
Acc	cepted: 06-03-2023

in medical students are limited, more so in the local context. A study done in 2019 in Karachi University among 1145 students of the age group 18 to 25, showed high scores of narcissistic personality Inventory (NPI), male (47.44%) and females (43.63%) showed overt narcissism signs.⁵

It used to be a misconception, especially in the UK, that health professionals are more narcissistic than common people as they feel they are superior in their profession and abilities, especially Surgeons⁻⁶ One study done among health care professional in UK, claims to refute the assumption that Medical professional are more Narcissistic than common public.⁷

People with narcissistic personality disorder often seen to be selfish, however this is because they're usually making up for a fragile sense of their weak self-esteem. Personalities high in narcissistic traits have an embellished feeling of selfimportance which impedes their decisions. This usually makes them think grand about themselves and they overestimate their abilities. However, sub-clinical narcissism is considered to possess a positive competitive side to it and not always considered as a negative trait. Some studies claim that it is related with academic success, possibly because of competitive desire in narcissistic students.

There are two sides of a narcissist. He/ She is someone who defends his/her ego and to control people and the environment. Also, who wishes to enhance ego, pursues achievement, acts independently and selects short-term goals that might lead to approval and validation from others This might help them achieve their goals of the highly demanding medical profession if they use their good side of this personality trait in a controlled manner.

Medical institutes need to encourage student counselling and students should be taught to overcome such negative personality characteristics. Psychological interventions made for solving these problems should be incorporated into the framework of medical teaching. There is also urgent need to probe further into the matter and to study and document the overall mental health of medical students.

Authors Contribution: Shazia Fakhir Durrani: Conception, writeup and literature search

- Balaji V, Balasundaram I. (2015) A study on sub-clinical narcissistic personality score and its relationship with academic performance-An Indian experience. Asian social science. 2015;11(2):96.
- 2. Pitt, M. C. (2021). What Factors Influence Drinking, Drug Use, and Sexual Behaviors among College Students? An Exploration of Narcissism and Mortality Salience (Doctoral dissertation, University of Louisiana at Lafayette).
- Bacsi, K. (2022, September 13). Narcissistic Personality Disorder Statistics & Prevalence Rates. The Recovery Village Drug and Alcohol Rehab.
- Qadir, A., Naz, L., Mushtaq, S., & Zehra, N. (2019). Prevalence Of Narcissism In Adolescents Of Karachi. Advances in Social Sciences Research Journal, 6(3) 19-28.
- Bucknall V, Burwaiss S, MacDonald D, Charles K, Clement R. (2015). Mirror mirror on the ward, who's the most narcissistic of them all? Pathologic personality traits in health care. CMAJ. 2015;187(18):1359-1363.
- Myers C G, Lu-Myers Y, Ghaferi A A. (2018). Excising the "surgeonego" to accelerate progress in the culture of surgery BMJ 2018; 363 :k4537 doi:10.1136/bmj.k4537
- 7. Ambardar, S., MD. (2021, July 19). Narcissistic Personality Disorder: Practice Essentials, Background, Pathophysiology and Etiology.

Instructions to Author

The Journal of Bahria University Medical and Dental College abbreviated as JBUMDC is a peer reviewed quarterly multidisciplinary biomedical journal of basic and clinical health sciences. It accepts manuscripts prepared in accordance with the "Uniform Requirements for Submission of Manuscripts for Biomedical Journals, updated December 2015", adopted by International Committee of Medical Journal Editors (ICMJE) & PMDC guidelines for Medical & Dental journals. The Journal will encompass manuscripts from all fields of biomedical sciences in the form of Editorial (Invited/Editor), Original Article, Review Article (narrative reviews and systematic reviews), short communication, Commentary, case study, and letter to editor.

Peer Review Policy:

Every paper will be read by the editor and then will be sent to two reviewers, one internal and one external reviewer. If statistical analysis is included assessment by statistician will be carried out.

Plagiarism:

JBUMDC follows the ICMJE, PMDC and HEC guidelines. Each manuscript will be scrutinized. Plagiarism of the manuscript should be less than 18%.

Preparation of Manuscript:

Type the manuscript on ISO A4 (212×297 mm), with margins of at least 25 mm (1 inch). Type or print on only one side of the paper. Use double spacing throughout the manuscript. Number pages consecutively, beginning with the title page. Put the page number in the lower right-hand corner of each page.

Contents of Manuscript for submission:

Submission items include a Covering letter, letter of undertaking duly signed by all authors, Ethical Review Committee (ERC) Letter, Author's declaration on JBUMDC template stating authors contribution, Title page and the Manuscript [Abstract, Key words, Introduction, Methodology, Results, Discussion, Conclusion, Acknowledgement, Authorship, Conflict of interest, References, Tables , Figures]. Title page should have complete title of the manuscript, along with the short running title, the names of all authors with qualifications, their department, affiliation, telephone number, e-mail, corresponding author, address for correspondence, short running title, source of funding (grant/equipment/drugs), number of figures and tables, total word count, total number of pages. Original manuscript should be of 2500 words excluding abstract and references and the references should be at least 20-25 for original study.

1. Abstract

It should have no more than 150 words for unstructured abstracts or 250 words for structured abstracts. The structured

abstract should include:

Objective, 2) Study design and setting, 3) Methodology,
Result and 5) Conclusion.

[state the purpose of the study (objective), basic procedures (methodology with study design, subjects/animals, place & duration of study, drug/chemical/equipment, procedure or protocol), main findings (results) and conclusion (It should emphasize new and important aspects of the study.)]

Below the abstract provide, 3-10 key words that will assist indexers in cross-indexing the article. The key words should be in alphabetical order.

2. Introduction

State the purpose of the article and summarize the rationale for the study. Give only strictly pertinent references and do not include data or conclusions from the work being reported. At least 10 to 12 references should be included in the introduction. International and national literature review indicating the rational and objective of the study.

3. Methodology:

This section should include a statement indicating that the research was approved by independent local or regional or national review body(eg. Ethics committee, institutional review board) with ERC number. Clearly describe the type of study, selection of observational or experimental participants, including eligibility and exclusion criteria and a description of source population. Identify the age, gender and other characteristics of subjects. Mention the sample size and how it is calculated and the sample technique. Identify the methods, apparatus (give the manufacturer's name and address in parentheses), and procedures in sufficient detail to allow other workers to reproduce the results. Identify precisely all drugs and chemicals used, including generic name(s), dose(s), and route(s) of administration. For randomized clinical trials provide information on all major study elements, including the protocol (study population, interventions or exposures, outcomes, and the rationale for statistical analysis), assignment of interventions (methods of randomization, concealment of allocation to treatment groups), and the method of masking (blinding). Authors submitting review manuscripts should include a section describing the methods used for locating, selecting, extracting, and synthesizing data. These methods should also be summarized in the abstract. Describe statistical methods with enough detail to enable a knowledgeable person with access to the original data to judge its appropriateness for the study and to verify the reported results. When possible, quantify findings and present them with appropriate indicators of measurement error or uncertainty (such as confidence intervals). Define statistical terms, abbreviations, and most symbols. Specify the statistical software package(s) and versions used. Distinguish prespecified from exploratory analyses, including subgroup analyses.

4. Results

Present your results in logical sequence in the text, tables, and illustrations according to the objective of the study. Do not repeat in the text all the data in the tables or illustrations; emphasize or summarize only important observations. Describe appropriate indicators of measurement error or uncertainty such as confidence intervals, P values. Report complications of treatment and dropouts from a clinical trial. Specify any general-use computer programs employed for analysis.

5. Discussion and Conclusion

Emphasize the new and important aspects of the study and the conclusions that follow from them. Do not repeat in detail data or other material given in the Introduction or the Results section. Include in the Discussion section the implications of the findings and their limitations, including implications for future research. Relate the observations to other relevant studies. Link the conclusions with the goals of the study.

6. Acknowledgment

List all contributors who do not meet the criteria for authorship, such as a person who provided purely technical help, writing assistance, or a department chair who provided only general support. Financial and material support should also be acknowledged.

7. Authorship

Authorship credit is based only on the criteria laid down by International committee of Medical Journal Editors (http://www.icmje.org/recommendations/browse/roles-andresponsibilibies/defining-the-role-of-authore-andcontributors. html).1) substantial contributions to conception and design, or acquisition of data, or analysis and interpretation of data; 2) drafting the article or revising it critically for important intellectual content; and 3) final approval of the version to be published. 4) Agreement to be Accountable for all aspects of the work in ensuring that questions related to the accuracy or integrity of any part of the work are appropriately investigated and resolved. All Conditions must be met. Authors should provide a description of what each contributed.

8. Conflict of interest

All authors have to disclose and submit any financial /personnel relationship that might bias and inappropriately influence their work.

9. References

Minimum 50% of the references must be from last five years. Local references must also be included. Vancouver style should be followed. Examples are:

a) Standard journal article

List the first six authors followed by et al. I) Less than 6 authors:

Vega KJ, Pina I, Krevsky B. Heart transplantation is associated with an increased risk for pancreato-biliary disease. Ann Intern Med 1996; 1;124 (11):980-3

II) More than six authors:

Parkin DM, Clayton D, Black RJ, Masuyer E, Friedl HP, Ivanov E, et al. Childhood leukaemia in Europe after Chernobyl: 5 year follow-up. Br J Cancer 1996;73:1006-12

b) Organization as author

The Cardiac Society of Australia and New Zealand. Clinical exercise stress testing. Safety and performance guidelines. Med J Aust 1996; 164: 282-4

c) No author given

Cancer in South Africa [editorial]. S Afr Med J 1994;84:15

d) Chapter in a book

Phillips SJ, Whisnant JP. Hypertension and stroke. In: Laragh

JH, Brenner BM, editors. Hypertension: pathophysiology, diagnosis, and management. 2nd ed. New York: Raven Press; 1995. p. 465-78

e) Newspaper

Hasan Mansoor. Excessive use of drugs creating resistance to antibiotics. The Dawn 2013, 24 June; sect. Metropolitan (col.1-4)

10. Tables

Type or print out each table with double spacing on a separate sheet of paper. Number tables consecutively in the order of their first citation in the text and supply a brief title for each. Give each column a short or abbreviated heading. Place explanatory matter in footnotes. Explain in footnotes all nonstandard abbreviations that are used in each table. Identify statistical measures of variations, such as standard deviation and standard error of the mean. Do not use internal horizontal and vertical rules.

11. Illustrations (Figures)

Figures should be professionally drawn and photographed. Photographic prints 127×173 mm (5 \times 7 inches). Photomicro-graphs should have internal scale markers. Symbols, arrows, or letters used in photomicro graphs should contrast with the background. If photographs of people are used, either the subjects must not be identifiable or their pictures must be accompanied by written permission to use the photograph.

Figures should be numbered consecutively according to the order in which they have been first cited in the text. If a figure has been published, acknowledge the original source and submit written permission from the copyright holder to reproduce the material.

Legends for Illustrations

Type or print out legends for illustrations using double spacing, starting on a separate page, with Arabic numerals corresponding to the illustrations. When symbols, arrows, numbers, or letters are used to identify parts of the illustrations, identify and explain each one clearly in the legend. Explain the internal scale and identify the method of staining in photomicrographs.

Units of Measurement

Measurements of length, height, weight, and volume should be reported in metric units. Temperatures in degrees Celsius, Blood pressure in millimeters of mercury and all hematologic

and clinical chemistry measurements in the metric system in terms of the International System of Units (SI).

Abbreviations and Symbols

Use only standard abbreviations. Avoid abbreviations in the title and abstract. The full term for which an abbreviation stands should precede its first use in the text unless it is a standard unit of measurement.

Sending the Manuscript to the Journal

Submit manuscript by e-mail: editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

All correspondence regarding submitted manuscripts will be via e-mail.

S No	Type of	Abstract type and word	Key words	Total word	References	Tables	Figures	
	Article	count		count		(Max)	(Max)	
1	Editorial	-	-	1000-1500	10-12	-	-	
2	Review Article	Unstructured (150)	3-6	3000-3500	40-60	4	2	
3	Original Article	Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-25	3	2	
	Medical Education	1. Original Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-25	3	2	
4		2. Review Unstructured (150)	3-6	3000-3500	40-60	4	2	
		3. Reproducible work (guide lines, questionnaire)	I	Mention Source, Acc	essed on, Retriev	al date		
5	Short Communication /Commentary/ Opinions/ Perspective	-	-	1200-1500	15-20	2	1	
6			1. Original article Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
	Student Corner	2. Views/Perspectives/ Opinions Unstructured (150)	3-6	1200-1500	8-10	1	1	
7	Case Report	Unstructured (150)	3-5	1200-1300	10-12	1	5	
8	Letter to Editor	-	-	400-500	1-5	-	-	

JBUMDC Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College Peer Reviewed Multidisciplinary Quarterly Published Journal ISSN (print): 2220-7562, ISSN (online): 2617-9482, CODEN: JBUMB7 Recognized by HEC Online edition is available at URL: https://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk, Indexed with Index Medicus for the Eastern Mediterranean Region (IMEMR), https://vlibrary.emro.who.int/journals/jbumdc-journal-of-bahria-university-medical-and-detal-college/ ROAD Directory of Open Access Scholarly Resources at https://portal.issn.org/resource/ISSN/2617-9482 Pakmedinet at www.pakmedinet.com/jbumdc, Google Scholar at https://scholar.google.com.pk/, Crossref at https://doi.org/10.51985/aluu2996 ICMJE at https://www.icmje.org/journals-following-the-icmje-recommendations/#J Bahira University DSpace Repository at http://111.68.99.22:8080/xmlui/handle/123456789/6388, Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Center (PASTIC) at http://pastic.gov.pk/

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College is an open access journal and is licensed under CC BY-NC 4.0. which permits unrestricted non commercial use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited.

To view a copy of this license, visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0





Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Published by Bahria University Health Sciences Campus Karachi Adjacent PNS SHIFA DHA Phase II Karachi, Pakistan +92-21-35319491-9

http://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk

editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

f https://www.facebook.com/jbumdc/, https://www.facebook.com/journal.bumdc.7